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How to
control the M or cl,
.

If you've always found foreign affais less than intriguing, get ready. Now there's an international p kyment system
that gives you what you've always wanted — l orld control.
Because it's part paper, there's an auc it trail for quick
traceability and a tangible record of every payr nent made.
Because it's electronically supported, transactions,
status inquiries and stop payments can occur atthe speed of light.
The system is WorldLink. And it lets you do things
you never imagined possible.
You can issue checks in the world's imajor trading
currencies without leaving your office. You card easily pay
overseas vendors in their own currencies and r(' d uce your FX
exposure. You can even use the WorldLink PC software to
significantly reduce transaction errors and che(< issuance time.
And that's just part of the story.
If all this makes you wonder
how
you ever lived without the WorldLink
system,
stop wondering. Call Gerald Gualano at
Citicorp
Services Inc., at 1(312) 380 -5215.
Tell him you want the world on a string.
Abetter way to move money around the world.CITICORP 0 WORLDLING
Citicorp Services Inc. (CSI) provides remittance and other services to and on behalf of Citicorp entities. C 1986 CSI. All rights reserved . World Link is a service mark of Citicorp.
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For your free booklet contact one of
100 Accountemps offices on three continents, or write:
Accountemps, Administrative Services Dept.,
522 Fifth Avenue, New York, NY 10036

WorId's largest temporary service
specializing in accounting, bookkeeping, and data processing.
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Chairman Don Kirk Leaves FASB Stronger

C

By Kathy Williams
Looking back over almo st 14 y ears of service to the Financial Accounting Standards
Board, Don ald J. Kirk reflects on some of the Board's m ore controversial issues, and colleagues describ e his im pact on the Board and its operations.

C os t s

W ill the Real Cost Please Stand Up?

29

By Frederic E. Lesser
Even though your budgeted costs are properly classified, the real secret to an optimum
pricing d ecision may be locked inside the variable costs. A day in the life of an accountant
demo nstrates why a co n troller also has to be a detective.
Certificate of Merit, 1985 -86

Do Cost Accounting Standards Fill a Gap in Cost Allocation?

34

By Patricia James Bo st
The work of the now defunct Cost Accounting Standards Board can provide management
acco un tants with valu able information on avoiding the problems and pitfalls in cost
allocation.
Certificate of Merit, 1985 -86

M a n u f a c t u r i n g Six Problems in Accounting for N/ C Machines

38,

By David E. Keys
Some preliminary findings from a research project funded by NAA describe common problems in cost accounting systems related to factory automation. Based on in -depth interviews at fou r com pan ies, a researcher analyzes the problems and suggests solutions.

Budgeting

Do Executives Practice W hat Academics Preach?

-4.9

By Suk H. Kim, Trevor Crick, and Seung H. Kim
Academics have tried to convince executives to use discounted cash flow, quantitative risk
assessm en t, risk ad ju stm ent, and m anagem ent science techniques, but their efforts have
met with little response. This is expected to change, however, when more efficient personal com pu ters and software program s become available.

Inventory

W hen Should LIFO Liquidated Inventories Be Replaced?

� 3

By Richard L. Rogers and Jerrold J. Stern
When the after -tax cost of replacing inventory before year -end is equivalent to the per -unit
purchase p rice of in ven tory in the next period, m anagem ent can choose to replace inventory either this year or next. Otherwise, it must weigh the tax burden against the tax savings, which may contain hidden costs.

Productivity

Bonus System s DO Motivate

`38

By John W. Hardy, Bryce B. Orton, and J. Weldon Moffit
Managers in three stores were surveyed to discover if bonus systems in place really do
wo rk. The resp on se was affirm ative but m anagers did not perceive a close tie between
store performance and the size of the bonuses.
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FASB

Memo to FASB: A Cash Flow Statement Suggestion

63

By Dann F. Ho vey
The FAS B co ncedes that inf ormation o f a f irm's cash f lows is useful to investors and credito rs —but it has failed to def ine what sho uld be included in the statement.

Certificate of Merit, 1985 -86.

NAA

GASB /FASB Round Table

74

T he po tential pro blems arising f ro m dif f erent standards set by the Financial A cco unting
Standards B o ard and the Go vernmental A cco unting S tandards B o ard are discussed at a
special NA A meeting.
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PERSPECTIVES

Super Blue Ribbon Strategic
Planning Committee
I am in the process of forming an ad hoc
Super Blue Ribbon Strategic Planning
Committee, This Committee will be taking
a look at all areas of NAA to see where
we should be going for the next five to 20
years.
We will be critically reviewing each and
every function that exists today to see if it
should be continued as is or altered, expanded, contracted or eliminated. No activity will be exempt from review by the
Committee.
NAA has been and continues to be the
leading management accounting organization in the world and we
want to continue to be just that. However, we are not without serious problems that must be addressed now.
The one thing we all know is that time changes things. The accounting profession has changed. The question is are we keeping
up with these changes? That is what I want the Committee to answer for us.
The Committee will be made up with the best possible minds we
can muster within NAA and will represent a good cross section of
the membership. The Committee should be appointed by the time
you read this column.
This will be a very large assignment and will require sincere dedication by all the Committee members. We are very fortunate to
have this kind of talent in NAA. The time frame for completion of
this project is open; however, I can anticipate it taking two years or
more to complete.
I encourage everyone to send us input for the Committee to consider. Your ideas are important. Please mail them to me in Montvale. The address is National Association of Accountants, 10 Paragon Drive, Montvale, N.J. 07645 -1760.
1 am sure we will all be looking forward to the program and final
report of this most important Committee assignment.
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With this issue (my last as publisher), I wish to acknowledge
with many than ks and praise the contribut ions of three
groups —our authors, our readers, and our staff.

sure (and also pain) in the publication effort. This has been a
self - satisfying and fulfilling experience.
To our Editor, and my friend, Erwin "Speed" Koval, who
edited with devoted and sincere constructive criticism my
Our Authors
first, and this my last, project for MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTTo give something in return to your profession —to give to ING, my sincere thanks and praise for helping us both to grow
your fellow colleagues something that you have accrued in in our professional and in our personal lives. I am confident
your experience —I am sure is the most admirable and self - that our professional and personal relationship will endure.
satisfying experience of your career. I wish to acknowledge To our Managing Editor, Robert F. Randall, and to the other
here the 42 Lybrand medals
members of the editorial and
and 350 Certificates that I
production staff, my sincere
have been pri vi leged to
gratitude for being a memaward for major contribuber of our team, for being
tion s to management acsincere and dedicated procounting literature in my 14
fessionals, and for helping us
years as publisher. Thank
to prod uce this premi er
you and all t he o th er auproduct.
thors for sharing the wealth
To the risk takers —Dorof experience with our readyne Gerstein, advertising
ers. The ess en ce o f yo ur
manager, and Joseph Loren,
work is your sacrifice.
circulation manager —who
h ave wo rk ed man y long
Our Readers
hours — talked until they
The discipline of accountwere blue— twisted arms —
ing can become a delicious
licked stamps —and cajoled
form on which to dine. It is
clients and prospects until
far above just eating —one
the extra income necessary
cannot merely eat —one must dine upon the full meal which to produce this unique product was found —my sincere
has been provided by our authors. To see our readers devour gratitude.
with gusto the knowledge of our authors touches my mind.
To all other members of our staff, to our authors, readers,
To be able to share this experience of career and personal members of our Committee on Publications, and members of
growth through exchange touches my heart. It is an accepted the leadership of the Association, I co nvey to you many
axiom that the best method by which to learn accounting is to thanks for permitting me to be a part of your life.
teach it. The second best method is to write about it, and the
third is to read about it. It is fulfilling to know that MANAGE00
MENT ACCOUNTING provides a medium in support of all
methods.
Our Staff
I have shared with my very close associates years of plea-
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James D. Collier

Opinion
Robert L. Shultis, Executive Director

Will It Be a Cold Winter?
It's easy to be complacent about the future sitting here on the balcony of Big Meadow Lodge,
looking down 3,600 feet to the floor of the
beautiful Shenandoah Valley. It's easy to think
of Mother Nature as being complacent, too —
soft autumn breezes, early morning mists, and
the hawks gliding languidly on the upper air currents with nary a movement from their three foot wingspan.
That's illusory, however, Looking closer, one
can find evidence of Mother Nature and her
family getting ready for the all- too -rapid onslaught of winter. The leaves on the oaks and
other deciduous trees are browning, then falling, a process that allows the tree itself to
stand the rigors of cold. The swarms of chipmunks are gathering acorns for their winter's
larder. And those languid hawks are ready to
pounce on a tasty squirrel or rabbit to fuel their
flight further south.
It seems to me there is an analogy here with
the current state of the accounting profession.
Things generally look pretty good, don't they?
Most members of the profession are prospering. The new Tax Reform Act didn't turn out to
be the "do- it- yourself' simplified law that was
originally promised and the accounting field still
is attracting its share of the best and the brightest young people.
Nevertheless, there are certain clouds on the
horizon that may well indicate that the accounting profession is facing its version of the long,
cold winter and, like Mother Nature, those of us
who are members of it had better be ready.
Let's look at a few of these clouds. See if you
agree with me that they represent issues that
need addressing.
`Cost Accounting in the '90s'
The most nebulous of these, the one with the
longest time horizon, and the one which will
probably have the greatest impact on the ac6

counting profession — particularly management
accounting —is the responsiveness —or rather
the lack of responsiveness of cost accounting
practitioners to the changed manufacturing and
service environment of the late '80s and '90s.
Perhaps "lack of responsiveness" is too mild
a term. Commentator after commentator at
NAA's cost accounting conference in April castigated the accounting profession for not recognizing that times and processes have changed
and that cost accounting —or management accounting, if you will —had better change with it.
A survey completed as part of a major research
study currently in progress for NAA by Allen
Seed and Robert Howell bears this out. With
few exceptions, it's business as usual among
cost accountants. Nor is t he prob lem one
which is confined to the United States alone. A
noted Japanese industrialist, Dr. Taichi Ono,
head of production of Toyota, has publicly commented that the success of his company has
come in spite of his cost accountants, not because of them.
What needs to be done? Research, study,
education and, most of all, a large helping of
creativity and imagination. Bob Townsend has
said that accountants are members of a risk
adverse profession. Accountants would rather
look a number in the eye than a person, but the
mark of a successful manager, according to
Townsend, is the willingness to try, to fail, to fall
down; then to get up and try again, We need
some of that spirit in our cost accountants
these days, too.
FASB/GASB
Recently, NAA sponsored a round table of
about 25 prominent accountants of varying
backgrounds and interests to discuss the
emerging problem of different accounting standards issued by different bodies for essentially
the same set of economic circumstances. For
example, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board has recently issued, after years of deliberation and discussion, FAS 87 and 88 on pension accounting. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has announced that its
constituenc ies are not expected to follow
FASB's lead. That's OK, perhaps, for a municipality such as the City of Yonkers. But what
about similar economic entities —a public versus private hospital, or a public university versus a private one? Or, worse yet, what about a
quasi - public institution which is neither one nor
the other? Which set of rules apply?
NAA's round table did not generate many
specific answers, which disappointed some of
the participants. Actually, however, it was not
0 75
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n mainframe financial software, as in anything

Williams, Merrill Lynch, Bankers' Trust, Bristol Myers, Federal Express, Litton, Lloyd's Bank, The
NewYork Times Company, Owens-Corning, Royal
priceslashing. At Data Design, we don't cut our
Business Machines, Warner- Lambert and hundreds
prices to make a sale. That's becauseafterthe sale
ofotherFORTUNE 1000 companies who choose
we don't plan to cut service and support, either. So,
Data Design over other major vendors.
while getting "bargain" may make your day, we'd
Our customers know that it's important to keep
prefer to make your next ten years.
the purchase price in perspective. The cost of a
mainframe system is comprised of three elements;
We have a hard - earned reputation to a hold. A
reputation built on 13 years of providing the high1) The purchase price of the package; 2) The cost of
installation and conversion and 3) The cost of daily
est quality systems and support in the mainframe
industry And nationally recognized independent
system operation and maintenance. Of these three
software surveys confirm Data Design's unsurpass- cost elements, the first is byfar the smallest. What's
the point of saving even 850,000 on the purchase
ed record of user satisfaction —year after year.
We believe that the fast, trouble -free installation price if implementation and operations costs evenand responsive, knowledgeable supportbymanage- tually add several hundred thousand dollars to the
menl levelpeople is worth what we charge for it. So total? The trouble with cheap financial software is
do companies like Alcoa, Gerber, Pillsbury, Sherwin- that you may never stop paying for it.

else, you get what you pay for Remember that
Iwhen
you read about rampant discountingand
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Financial software by Data Design. When you
can't afford anything but the best.

GENERALLEDGER
ACCOUNTSPAYABLE
PURCHASEORDERCONTROL
FIXEDASSETS
CAPITALPROJECTMANAGEMENT
Learn more about the best financial software
available. Call Betty Fulton toll -free at 800- 556 -5511.

AS OGATES
Erce llenceinfiirancialsoflu!are. Bydesign.
1279 Oakmead Parkway, Sunnyvale, CA 94086

Computers
and
Accounting
Alfred M. King, Editor

Focus:ABC Is a Useful T ool
I grew up working in my family's lumber yard,
and for several years we debated buying a forklift. We thought it would be a help, but it represented a great deal of money for a small, family -owned business. Finally we took the plunge
and bought the forklift, and a month later we
could not imagine how we ever got along without it. I feel the same way about Focus:ABC, a
program developed by accountants for accountants. It promises to make life easier for anyone
in management or public accounting who frequently needs to prepare trial balances, financial statements, tax returns, consolidations, or
workpapers.
Focus:ABC, created by Hemming Morse,
Inc., a CPA firm in San Mateo, Calif., is a series
of templates that works with Lotus 1 -2 -3, Release 2. Its modules contain a trial balance that
can be set up in either a "tax" format or a "difference" format, the distinction being that the
"tax" format includes a summarization that will
provide inputs for preparation of the federal tax
form 1120 or 990 plus the principal pages and
schedules for tax forms 1120S and 1065. It
also can be used to prepare a summary for the
Schedule C of a 1040 form. The "difference"
format is intended for audit or review applications. It allows for the preparation of a more detailed financial analysis and analytic review.
Many people have created trial balances using spreadsheet programs such as Lotus 1 -2 -3,
and they are a help in doing the work. The real
magic of Focus:ABC, however, is in how information is moved from other modules into the
trial balance and then from the trial balance to
the final reports. The trial balance has 10 columns of account balance information, two each
(debit and credit) for unadjusted balances;
book adjustments for the creation of financial
statements; adjusted book balances; tax adjustments for posting schedule M items or other
differences between book and tax income; and,
8

finally, tax adjusted balances.
The first step in using Focus,-ABC is to enter
the trial balance from the company's accounting system. The entries are what you would
normally expect: account number, account title,
and balance before adjustments. Columns for
workpaper references and workpaper classifications also are included. From the summary
trial balance, financial statements or other summaries are very easy to create. The same general principles apply to the Tax Summary Trial
Balance creation process.
Behind the trial balance sheet are the adjustment worksheets that have, for me, relegated
to oblivion the process of manually posting adjustments to trial balances, cross - footing them,
trying to get the adjusted columns back into
balance, and then redoing it for the tax return
or any new adjustments. For both book and tax
purposes there are Adjusting Journal Entry
worksheets into which the adjustments are
posted. When the adjustments are entered, the
worksheet is saved and then "booked," a process of preparing a summary worksheet of the
adjustments.
While I generally am very satisfied with the
performance and capabilities of Focus:ABC,
there are some features I am not ecstatic
about. The most noticeable problem is that
even with the new version of Lotus, an 8087
math co- processor, and adequate space on a
hard disk, the program is very slow. Anyone
who has worked with the database functions of
1 -2 -3 or Symphony will know why, with large
spreadsheets and complex queries (both of
which are features of what really becomes a
full -sized accounting system), the Lotus program really slows down in Focus:ABC.
While in the worksheets and when a macro is
not running, the user has full access to Lotus
commands. They should be used carefully, as a
change to the structure of the worksheet could
confuse the carefully prepared macros. They
can, however, be very useful.
The program contains many other features
that promise to make it one of the most useful
tools in the accountant's toolbox, allowing us to
realize the full benefits of the advanced spreadsheets available today, such as Lotus 1 -2 -3. It
makes extraordinary use of the macro and database management functions of the program,
providing an almost transparent interface to the
user and making it seem that Focus:ABC is a
program instead of a series of templates. Hemming Morse, Inc., has made a real effort to maximize the tremendous capabilities of Lotus 1 -2 -3,
especially Lotus 1 -2 -3, Release 2. For those of
us who continually need to set up trial balJ# 69
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user big dividends. Our mainframe class systems products.
were developed exclusively for the VAX —you
Discover the difference that Ross Systems'
won't be working with converted technology
total commitment can make in your VAX
developed for an IBM mainframe system. Our
environment.
VAX software is truly on -line and interactive —
not batch with an interactive front end. Our
■ MAPSIGL— General Ledger
exclusive VAX support is provided by our own
■ MAPS/AP—Accounts Payable
expert professionals. Our professional client
■ MAPS/AR—Accounts Receivable
services department can offer you everything
■ MAPS/FA—Fixed Assets
from custom consulting to training and educa■ MAPSIMODEL— Financial Modeling
tion, and VAX system consulting— something
■ MAPSIMICROLINK— MicrolMini Link
other major software vendors are not able to
■ MAPSIDB —Data Base Management
provide.
Our product enhancements, accommodation
Call (415) 856 -1100 or write us at
of DEC technical advances and changing accoun- 1860 Embarcadero Road, Palo Alto, CA 94303.
ting requirements are handled immediately —not
as a third or fourth priority.
Major corporations around the world have
already selected and benefitted from Ross
r, r
•
•
M• k o ng
Systems' MAPS family of financial software
ROLSSSISJFMS
R

DEC and VAX are registered trademarks of Digital Equipment Corporation. MAPS is a trademark of Rocs Systems, Inc.
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Ross Systems is the only financial software
vendor with a 100% commitment to Digital's
broad family of VAXTM computers. Simply put,
we know more about DECIVAX than any other
vendor. Because it's all we do.
Other suppliers may devote as little as five
to ten percent their efforts and technological
expertise to the DEC/VAX market. Therefore,
their commitment to product quality, support
and enhancements cannot match that of Ross
Systems' total commitment.
As the industry leader in VAX integrated
financial management software, we offer the
best answers for the needs of today's financial
managers. Our MAPS° family of software products integrates financial accounting applications and decision support tools to address the
requirements corporations in a wide variety
of industries.
Our total VAX commitment pays you as a

Software

Financial
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NOKnowsMoreAboutDEC/VAXThan
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Taxes
Israel Blumenfrucht, Editor

Home Deductions
The Tax Reform Act of 1986 includes provisions relating to the use of an individual's personal home that significantly affect the ability of
taxpayers to deduct home expenses, both for
business and personal purposes.
In the Tax Reform Act of 1984, Congress attempted to eliminate the abuses associated
with the deductions of home office expenses
by enacting new Section 280A into the Code. In
general, those rules state that a taxpayer cannot deduct expenses attributable to an office at
home unless it is used exclusively and on a regular basis as the principal place of business or
as a place of business that is used to meet patients, clients, or customers. Employees must
meet an additional test: The use of the home
office must be "for the convenience of the employer" as opposed to being merely appropriate and helpful,
The Tax Reform Act of 1986 further restricts
the home office deduction by overruling two
court decisions recently decided in favor of the
taxpayer, as well as placing limits on the
amount that may be deducted when the home
office deduction is allowed.
Last year, the Tax Court ruled in I.S. Feldman
that a taxpayer could avoid the strict requirements for the home office deduction by the expedient of renting space occupied by the home
office to his employer. In that case a manager
of an accounting firm was permitted to deduct
the costs of maintaining a home office that was
leased to the accounting firm. In addition, the
accounting firm was allowed a business deduction for the rental payments (see Taxes, April
'86). The 1986 Act, however, overrules the Tax
Court decision and disallows all taxpayers from
taking a home office deduction when a portion
of the taxpayer's home is leased to an employer. Furthermore, this new restriction also will
apply to independent contractors who are not
employees. For purposes of the home office
deduction, an independent contractor is treated
as an employee, and the business for whom
the taxpayer is performing the services is treated as an employer.
10

The 1986 Act also overrules the Tax Court
decision in C.A. Scott. In that case, the taxpayer incurred expenses from his rental and chemical analysis business that exceeded his gross
income. While the law specifically states that
the home office deduction is generally limited
to the "gross income" of the business, it is unclear whether or not the home office expenses
must be deducted before other business expenses. The Tax Court held that the statute requires that home office expenses should be deducted first and, therefore, these expenses
could increase the taxpayer's net operating
loss, The 1986 Act, however, overrules this decision in that home office deductions would be
limited to the "net" income of the business and
would not be allowed to create or increase a
net loss. Deductions disallowed solely because
of the net income limitation can be carried forward to subsequent years.
Other provisions of the 1986 Act also limit
the deductibility of the home office expenses.
For example, the lengthening of the period over
which depreciation must be calculated (31.5
years, straight -line, for commercial property)
and the limiting of miscellaneous itemized deductions (which generally includes the home
office deduction) only to the extent they exceed
two percent of adjusted gross income will reduce significantly the home office deduction.
Although the home office deduction rules
have been tightened under the 1986 Act, a taxpayer's personal residence may still offer important tax benefits. The 1986 Act eliminates
the interest deduction on consumer loans such
as credit cards and the purchase of an automobile. However, the interest deduction is allowed
on mortgages and home - equity loans for principal and second residences. The interest deduction is limited to mortgages and loans equal
to the original purchase price of the home plus
any capital improvements, but there is still plenty of leeway for taxpayers using mortgage and
home - equity loans.
First, no limits are placed on mortgage and
home- equity loans obtained for educational
and medical expenses. Second, because personal residences have greatly appreciated over
the last years, it would be quite simple for many
taxpayers to obtain home- equity loans equal to
the entire purchase price of their homes. Thus,
taxpayers could use the home - equity loan, instead of the conventional financing methods,
for purchasing automobiles and other consumer items and still get the interest deduction.
Some analysts, therefore, believe that having a
standing line of credit arranged via a home -equity loan on a residence could become a way of
life for U.S. homeowners.
0
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YOUARETHE RUNNER.The cor-

for some tax returns? Or do you want that makes running with FAST -TAX
porate tax runner. An independent.
the options to run all the functions second nature for anyone. You can
Your wants are simple: You want
of your department? TheFAST-TAX use it to explore any level of your
to finish ahead.
fn -house system is a full complement corporate data base. And you don't
So you decide to run in- house. And of hardware, software, and laser
have to learn the FAST -TAX system.
what do you think of first? Software.
All you need to know is "tax."
printing that embodies 20 years of
But the question goes beyond software industry- leading technology, It is the
As you weigh your alternatives,
diskettes. The question is how easily only system with such a pedigree.
don't worry about expecting too
do you want to run? "Automated" or And the only one that does it all.
much from computer software. The
not, will you really be out in front,
TheCORPORATE SERIES Software 1120 is a long race. Be sure that
or will you be struggling to keep up? features an integral Guidance System you expect enough.
Look at it this way. What do you
want to run? Your P.C.? Or do you want
Running ahead.
to run the whole 1120? Will you settle

Get the whole corporate
tax story: Ask for your
1986 Runner's Guides
to full seraice, in- house, and
integrated tax processing.
Call 1 -800- FAST -TAX.
Circle number 20 on reply card.
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Management
Accounting
Practices
Louis Bisgay, Editor

FASB Proposes Changes
in Accounting for Income Taxes
The Financial Accounting Standards Board has
iss ued a p ropos ed s tat em ent t hat wou ld
change the way companies report the deferred
effects of income taxes in their financial statements. Deferred effects result from reporting
income or expenses in one year for financial reporting purposes and in a different year for tax
purposes.
The proposal would supersede Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 11 and related
pronouncements, which require the "deferred
method" of accounting. That method measures
the deferred effects in the year when differences between taxable income and financial
reporting income first occur, using that year's
tax rate. Under the method, deferred tax liabilities or assets are not adjusted for subsequent
changes in tax rates or other tax law provisions.
The proposed statement would require the
"liab ilit y m et h od , " in which subsequent
changes in tax rates and tax law provisions are
reflected in measuring deferred tax liabilities
and assets and are recognized in net income
when the changes are enacted.
Opinion 11 used the term "timing differences" for differences between the years in
which transactions affect taxable income and
the years in which they enter into the determination of pretax financial income. Timing differences create differences between the tax basis
of an asset or liability and its reported amount
in the financial statements. Other events, such
as business combinations, also create differences between the tax and book bases of assets and liabilities. All such differences collectively are referred to in the proposed statement
as "temporary differences." Inherent in the current proposal are the notions that:
Future recovery of the reported amount of
assets and settlement of liabilities at their re12

ported amounts in financial statements are
assumed in accrual accounting;
• Accrued accounting therefore creates a requirement to recognize the deferred tax consequences of temporary differences.
The Board's thinking led it to reject nonrecognition of a deferred tax liability based on the
control an enterprise may be able to exercise.
An enterprise may be able to postpone the settlement of a deferred tax liability, and thus the
settlement date for the deferred tax liability may
be indefinite —but the existence of the tax obligation is definite, contends the Board, which
now proposes to require deferred tax accounting also in the so- called "special areas" that
were exempted from the deferred tax accounting requirements of APB Opinion 11.
The exposure draft would require other differences from current practice, but aspects of present practice that would remain unchanged are:
• Comprehensive recognition of deferred
taxes;
• Accounting for the investment tax credit;
• Accounting for income taxes in interim periods; and
• The prohibition against discounting deferred
taxes.
The FASB will hold a public hearing on accounting for income taxes on January 7 -9,
1967, in Stamford, Conn_

Internal Control Bill Introduced
Senator William Proxmire (D- Wisc.) has introduced a bill that would require contractors with
the U.S. government to establish systems of internal accounting and administrative controls
and to report on the adequacy of those systems. The bill would apply to federal contractors (and subcontractors) that expect to have
billings of at least $10 million. Those contractors would have to indicate in their Form 10 -K
reports to the Securities & Exchange Commission any weaknesses in their internal controls
that are material to the estimate, cost, price,
billing, and performance measurement data
submitted to the government and the plans for
correcting any such weaknesses. The measure
would penalize contractors that fail to maintain
adequate controls by making it illegal for them
to receive advance payments on contracts.

MAP Replies to GASB
The Governmental Accounting Standards
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TAN DY.' °..Better A g a m U
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Tandy 3000 HD
A powerful workstation
with networking and
muldusercapacities.

The 3000 HD is compatible with
the IBM PC/AV, offers greater hard
disk storage (40 megabytes vs. the
PC /AT's 30),yet is priced at only
$4299 (vs. $5295 for the PC /AT).
Based on the 16-bit Intel 80286
microprocessor, the Tandy 3000 HD
(25 -4001) operates at 8 megahertz 33 % greater than the industry standard. The Tandy 3000 HD features
640K main memory and a high capacity 51/4" slim -line floppy disk
drive which has been designed to
read both 1.2-megabyte and 360K
formats, allowing it to run either IBM
PC /AT or IBM® PC software.
The high - performance design of
the 3000 HD makes it a natural for
use in a local area network such as
ViaNetO. ViaNet can link together

multiple MS -DOS® computers into a
powerful office automation system.
The Tandy 3000 HD also uses the
forthcoming XENIX® System V
multiuser operating system. Up to
five users with low -cost display terminals are capable of tapping the
power of the Tandy 3000 —
permitting each to work independently on .such projects as
accounting, word processing and
electronic filing. Each remote user
has all the power of a fully configured computer system ... for the
price of a terminal.
The Tandy 3000 HD is quality designed and built by Tandy in the
U.S.A. We back the 3000 HD with
full support, nationwide service,
commercial leasing and professional
training. Come see it today!

Available at over 1200
Radio Shack Computer Cwdm and at
pKII11C Ming Radio Shady
and dealer&

icons

11adielhaek
COMPUTER CENTERS
A DIVISION OF TANDY CORPORATION
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Send me a Tandy 3000 brochure. ,
Mail to: Radio Shack, Dept. 87 -A-884
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Hurdman's current chairman and chief executive, would become executive vice chairman of
Peat Marwick in the U.S.

Wyden Bill Revised

Beresford Named FASB Chairman
Dennis R. Beresford, national director of accounting standards for Ernst & Whinney, has
been appointed to a five -year term as chairman
of the Financial Accounting Standards Board.
Mr. Beresford, a certified management accountant and CPA, is a long -time NAA member. He
served as a member of the Committee on Management Accounting Practices and also as a
national vice president, 1984 -85. He was serving as a member of NAA's Executive Committee and chairman of the Committee on Research when his appointment was announced.
The appointment is effective January 1, 1987,
according to Rholan E. Larson, president of the
Financial Accounting Foundation. Mr. Beres ford has been closely involved with the standard- setting process not only by virtue of his
E &W position but also as a member of the Financial Accounting Standards Advisory Council, 1980 -83, and as a U.S. representative on
the International Accounting Standards Committee, 1982 -84. He also served as chairman of
the Accounting Standards Executive Committee of the American Institute of CPAs.

Peat Marwick -KMG Merger

will

The world's largest accounting firm will result if
the merger of Peat Marwick International and
Klynveld Main Goerdeler is consummated.
Revenues from PMI and KMG were $1.7 billion
and $1.0 billion, respectively, for their fiscal
years ending earlier this year. In the U.S. the
combined firm would be known as Peat Marwick and the name in auditors' statements and
legal documents would be Peat Marwick Main
& Co. The name of the international organization would be Klynveld Peat Marwick Goerdeler
negotiate the
(KPMG). The two firms
names under which the member firms would
practice, a process that is expected to be completed by January 1, 1987. Larry D. Horner,
Peat's U.S. chairman, would become chairman
and chief executive. John A. Thompson, Main
14

In response to criticism from the accounting
profession, Rep. Ronald Wyden has amended
his bill that would require auditors of public
companies to detect and disclose financial
fraud and illegal corporate activities. Under the
revised bill, the auditor would be required to
bring suspected fraud activity to the corporation's audit committee or the board of directors.
The original bill called for the auditor to report
suspected fraud directly to the Securities & Exchange Commission and the authorities. The
revised bill will also include a materiality standard. Accountants had criticized the bill because of the lack of such a standard. Observers see little chance of enactment of this
proposal in this session of Congress.

Business /Accounting Briefs
The Second Cairo International Conference of
Accounting will be held in Cairo, Egypt, Dec.
12 -15, 1986. The Conference is being sponsored by the Syndicate of Commerce Professions, Accounting & Auditing Div .... Substantial changes in the domestic relations area
were made by the Tax Reform Act of 1984.
Connecticut Mutual Life Insurance Co. (140
Garden St., Hartford, Conn. 06154) is offering a
booklet, "A Financial Checklist for Divorce,"
free. The guide outlines the changes affecting
those going through a divorce.... W . Grant
Gregory, 45, chairman of Touche Ross,
retire from the firm on November 1. His retirement is consistent with the firm's policy of limiting the term of the office of the chairman and
managing partner_ _ _ . Laventhol & Horwath
has merged with Rampart Group, Inc., a leading health care consulting firm in Los Angeles
.... IRS Deputy Commissioner James 1. Owens has been named acting commissioner of
the Internal Revenue Service, succeeding Roscoe L. Egger, Jr., who resig ned April
30.... Roger W illiams, author of "W illiams
Trend Indicators," has developed a new yardstick to measure growth of the U.S. economy.
Called "Poem," it measures Production, Orders, Employment and Money and relies on figures from the National Assn. of Purchasing
Management. Based on his latest computations, he predicts a 3 % -4% rate of growth this
year for the economy.... The largest Big 8
CPA firm, Arthur Andersen, increased its U.S.
revenue 15% to $1.182 billion.
O
will

Robert F. Randall, Editor
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You could load their walls with plaques. Or
you could offer something that costs even less and
is a lot more attractive. Like a benefits package
financed with PERQ from Provident Life and
Accident. PERQ is a uniquely designed corporate owned life insurance product that not only pays its
own way, but generates additional cash flow for
other corporate purposes.
Quite simply, PERQ is financed insurance
designed with ultimate efficiency. So it can be
used in a variety of corporate situations that call
for ongoing cash allocations such as — though not
exclusively — executive benefit planning.
PERQ Solves the Cash -Flow Dilemma
Through accepted tax - arbitrage borrowing
techniques and competitive interest rates paid on
cash values, PERQ eases your cash -flow dilemma.
What you end up with is a product that lets your
corporation get the most possible mileage from its
cash and cash values. So you get all the attractive

guarantees of traditional life insurance, plus a
product that responds instantly to changes in the
financial scene.
PERQ Isn't For Everyone
PERQ is unsurpassed in the way it recovers
benefit costs — but it's not designed for everyone.
However, if your company is spending, rather than
saving, on activities that require cash funding,
chances are PERQ could be for you. All it takes is
a phone call to find out. A phone call that could
save your company a bundle.
To learn more about PERQ and how it can work
in your company, write Bill Luse, National Sales
Director, Executive Compensation Plans, Provident
Life and Accident
Insurance Company, PROVIDENT
Fountain Square,
LIFE &.ACCIDENT
Chattanooga, TN
INSURANCE COMPANIES
37402, or call
615- 755 -1857.

PERQ31 is a registered trademark of Provident Companies

CHATTANOOGA, TN 37402
Circle number 11 on reply card.

eventually be turned into disloyalty.
Again, this applies to the business
world. If you've decided to look elsewhere because you're unhappy and
disgruntled, work hard to give precisely the opposite impression. Attack
Robert Half, Contributing Editor
your work with even greater enthusiasm and professional pride. Look as
though you're happy and content. Besides helping throw off anyone who
suspects you're looking, it creates an
atmosphere that will result in a posiLooking for Another Job: a Bondian Caper
tive view of you when you leave and
After six years with one company,
Spies for "the other side" are paid that will be reflec t ed in future
I've started looking for another job small, regular sums of money rather references.
Don't, however, suddenly become
in the same industry (aerospace; than large, lump -sum payments.
unusually
ebullient when you're getWhy?
To
avoid
having
them
suddenly
I'm in the tax department). I know
ting
close
to
landing a new job. Don't
that my boss considers job hunting change their lifestyle, a sure indicabreak
you
r
p at t ern t o an y g reat
to be a distinct act of disloyalty tion that something is amiss. The
and has fired others whose outside same principle applies in the business extent.
Never use your present company's
explorations becom e know n to of job hunting. Employees who sudhim. Any tips on looking for anoth- denly change their habits at work stationery when applying for a new
er job w ithout tipping off one's (dressing better than usual on certain job. Not only might the return address
days, unexplained and unusual ab- backfire on you, it certainly won't imsuperior?
Surreptitiously looking for a new job sences from the office, a sudden rash press a potential new employer with
can have all the trappings of a James of p h on e c alls t h at n ec es s it at e your honesty and sense of fairness.
Bond espionage caper, and some of hushed, private conversations) are all Have your resumes reproduced outthe "rules" of the espionage game signs that a new job is being sought. side the company. Don't run the risk
Establish a new pattern prior to actu- of a stray copy jamming in the office
can be put to good use here.
Every intelligence organization de- ally looking for that new job. Start copier or failing to the floor. And, as
termines who is told anything based dressing better as a matter of routine. with using company stationery, it isn't
upon a "need -to- know" basis. Simply Inform potential employers that you fair to your present employer.
If your boss does get wind of your
put, it means that only those who ab- are not to be contacted at work, and
solutely mu st have kn owledge of make it easy for them to contact you outside search and confronts you with
something are told. Apply this as Rule at home, perhaps by investing in an it, don't lie. On the other hand, don't
Number One in your situation. Tell only answering machine. Be selective in offer more detail than is asked for in
those who need to know that you're those jobs you pursue to the extent of the event he or she is acting upon rulooking. You'll be surprised how few taking time off from your present em- mor and really doesn't know whether
you're looking. If your superior does
people this involves. Under no circum- ployment for interviews.
All governments keep a close eye know for sure, use the opportunity for
stances discuss it with anyone at
work, even your "best friend" there. on people in sensitive positions to dis- a good conversation about why you're
Well- intentioned people suffer occa- cern discontent which, possibly, can doing it. It could end up in your favor,
so much so that you decide to stay
sional slips of the tongue. Also, in
where you are.
many organizations, there are people
Finally, unlike spies who are doing
who make it a point of picking up such
something disloyal and dishonest,
slips and, combined with office gossip,
you are entitled to seek a new job that
keep superiors informed of what's gobrings you more fulfillment and reing on within their organization. If you
ward. There's nothing nefarious about
don't want word of your job search to
it
as long as you continue to produce
get around, keep it to yourself, and
on
your current job, and approach
that goes for friends not only within
your
search without treating your curyour company, but within the aero0
rent
employer
unfairly.
space industry as well. That proverbial
small world seems to get impossibly
Robert Half is the author of Robert
smaller when job hunting. (But, by all
Half on Hiring. He heads Robert Half
means, get the word out to those peoInternational, Inc., which has more
ple who might be instrumental in findthan
90 franchised offices specializing you a new job. Just keep the numing
in
financial and EDP jobs.
bers as small as possible.)
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Standards set so high, they soar.
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Letters
TO THE EDITOR
Erwin S. Koval, Editor
This department welcomes comments on any topic

of interest affecting the accounting community in
general and NAA in particular. Correspondence is
not limited to comments about material previously
published in this magazine. Letters cannot be acknowledged individually, and the Editor reserves
the right to edit for space or for other reasons. All
correspondence must be signed, but your identity
will be protected if requested. Address all letters to
The Editor, Management Accounting, Montvale,
NJ 07645 -1760.

The AICPA Responds
Mr. Ettore Barbatelli asserts that performing certain appraisal, valuation or
actuarial services for an audit client

"may p lace t hem in violation of the
AIC PA's Incompatible Occupations
rule" (Sept. '86). He is wrong!
Moreover, Mr. Barbatelli may have
misled readers into believing that the
American Institute of CPAs is weakening its professional standards in this
area. Nothing could be farther from the
truth.
First, Mr. Barbatelli starts with the
wrong facts. The existing "incompatible
occupations" rules was never intended,
and was never used, to deal with appraisal, valuation, or actuarial services.
Guidance relevant to those services is
found in interpretations of and rulings
under Rule 101 on independence. An
existing ruling deals with actuarial services and states that independence is not
impaired "if all of the significant matters of judgment involved are determined or approved by the client and the
client is in a position to have an informed judgment on the results." Furthermore, the Institute will soon expose
for public comment a proposed revision
of that ruling which explicitly makes

Accountants: Start

your own practice.
We'll send you The Book
on how and why. Free!
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the existing conclusion applicable to appraisal and valuation services. It is unfortunate the Institute was not consulted on such a basic, factual matter.
Second, Mr. Barbatelli quotes from
SEC Accounting Series Release No. 264
to gain added support for his argument
that performing certain services for audit clients places the CPA in an unacceptable position, that of reviewing his
or her own work. He fails, however, to
note that the SEC went on only to observe that the registrant "should weigh
carefully the projected benefits against
any potential adverse effect," such effect
being the loss of the opportunity for the
"second look" normally associated with
the audit.
Third, Mr. Barbatelli fails to recognize that auditors who perform no other
services for a client continually make
judgments related to the carrying values
of assets. They must deal with questions
like whether all obsolete inventory has
been identified and written off, whether
all doubtful accounts receivable have
been considered in determining the related allowance, and whether warranty
allowances are reasonable. And they
need to appraise the continuing appropriateness of their judgments when they
perform their next audit. Users of financia l s t a t e m e n t s h a ve c o n f id e n c e in
C P A s with respect to such m at ter s.
Why should they have less confidence
when the CP A ha d a greater involvement —and therefore a greater responsibility—in the process?
Finally, num erous studies have uncovered no evidence that advisory services, including those of a valuation nature, im p air C P A independence. But,
th e AI CP A re c ognize s th e im p or ta nc e
of a ppea ranc e a s we ll a s fa ct. Fo r th at
reason, the peer review guidelines of the
SEC Pra ctice S ection require consideration of whether advisory services provided to SEC audit clients po se any inde p en d en c e pr ob le m . In its A n n u a l
Report 1985 -86, the Section's independent Public Ove rsight Board reports
that "the application of such procedures
... throughout the eight -year history of
pee r re vie w ha s n ot b rou gh t for th a ny
evidence that serving in an MAS capacity has d ilu te d a f irm 's ob jec tivit y. ... "
Thomas P. Kelley, CPA
Group Vice President , AI CPA
New York, N. Y.
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under $50.000.
By combining optical disk technology with a personal
computer the new TAB Modular Laser -Optic System
eliminates bulky files and time- wasting searches.
Your documents are scanned in seconds, digitally filed on
high - density optical disks, retrieved at the touch of a key and
laser printed to their original clarity.
With a comprehensive database package you have
cross- indexing and random access capabilities that allow

immediate file location. Arid because of its digital format.
documents can be transmitted via standard communications
C. Ode
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The Modular System ad
be expanded for access bpi
specialized functions Such'
view-only in stand -alone workstations or connected through
a local area network. Every workstation is ergonomically
designed for comfortable work flow. And this system is
backed by TAB's nationwide Field Service Organization_
Best of ail. "tomorrow's filing system" is ready for
shipment today. Learn more about this new system by calling
800 - 672 -3109 Ext. 4902. In Calif. 800.742 -0099 Ext. 4902
Or write us at 1400 Page Mill fed,. Palo Alto. CA 94304.
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Chairman
Don Kirk
Leaves FASB
Stronger
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By Kathy Williams
When Don Kirk steps down as chairman of the
Financial Accounting Stan dard s Bo ard next
month, he can walk out the door with a great feeling of satisfaction and accomplishment. It is largely through his dedication and influence that the
standards - setting body has become such a highly
respected, accepted, independent organization,
Although he modestly denies such assertions,
claiming he just happened to be present during the
right time, his colleagues insist they are true.
During his nine -year chairmanship, he has
guided the FASB through some of its most difficult years —years fraught with controversial issues, intense criticism for Board operations and
some decisions, hostility from some powerful constituents, and suggestions that the Board's due
process be modified. An articulate spokesman, he
has carefully and patiently explained the mission
and purpose of the Board to users and preparers
of financial statements, government regulators, independent auditors, accounting professors, and
others interested in financial information. He has
insisted that Board members be allowed to follow
the established due process of standards setting
and has maintained the Board's independence,
"even leading it into some very strong stands at
times when it might have been more politic to sit
back, and this includes stands with the SEC, the
FAF trustees, and others," says Paul Pacter, Don
Kirk's executive assistant from 1978 until 1984
20

The Board is at an all -time high
in public esteem — thanks, in part,
to its chairman's dedicated service.

and now Commissioner of Finance for the City of
Stamford, Conn,
"He has stepped on th e toes of s ome pretty
powerful people," agrees David Mosso, FASB
vice chairman. "You'll find dissatisfaction and
discontent with the FASB in some quarters, mainly because he didn't roll over when power pressures were applied."
The confrontation with General Motors Chairman Roger Smith and the Business Roundtable's
Accounting Principles Task Force is a prime example. After several meetings during which Don
Kirk and a few other FASB representatives discussed the pension project, the conceptual framework, and the Board's procedures, explaining why
things were done a certain way, the Roundtable
members went to the managing partners of the
largest CPA firms, trying to drum up support for
change. About a year later, Mr. Kirk suggested
that the trustees of the Financial Accounting
Foundation, FASB's overseers, meet with the
Task Force and hear its suggestions firsthand. After listening to various proposals, including one
"that a blue ribbon committee be formed comprising prominent outsiders who would consider how
standards should be set," the trustees opted to
conduct their own review of the process. The current procedures were maintained.
Desp it e t hes e occas io nal skirmish es, the
FASB's respectability continues to grow, and Mr.
Kirk has earned others' regard because of his
"evenhandedness, frankness, integrity, and ability
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING/ NOVEMBER 1986

to defuse a tense moment with his natural wit and
humor," notes Board member Robert J. Swieringa. Former Vice Chairman Robert T. Sprouse
adds: "The most important factor that has contributed to his and the Board's success is his ability to command respect, even from those who
might disagree with his judgment on particular
accounting issues."
A Master Motivator
Guiding the Board through its cumbersome series of meetings and public hearings requires a
special leadership style. Because the FASB is a
collegial decision- making group, each person has
one vote, including the chairman. Nevertheless,
he must conduct all meetings and deliberations
and try to move the Board to conclusions. He is
"the first among equals," Board member Victor
H. Brown notes. "He's more like the dean of a
business school or president of a university rather
than chairman of a corporation. A corporate leadership style might not work here."
In other words, the FASB chairman cannot
give Board members orders or assign them roles
and responsibilities. He has to motivate them toward conclusions. Former Board member Frank
Block uses the analogy of a general and his army.
"A general can give an order, but if the army isn't
behind him and he doesn't understand why, and if
the army isn't ready to move, he can order it to
march 30 paces and it won't. The chairman has to
know the pace at which the Board can operate.
There's a certain pace of change —a willingness of
all parties to accept answers that aren't pat answers, yet remain loyal. Don Kirk more than anyone else has a sense of that pace and movement."
He also communicates openly with the other
Board members. He's always willing to talk over
an idea with them individually, and he'll offer his
candid opinions. Moreover he regards it as his responsibility to keep them aware of activities inside
and outside FASB headquarters. "Don has a marvelous political sensitivity to the Board's constituencies, and he always comes back and reports
with a great deal of frankness what he has heard,
whether it's gossip or official position," Mr. Block
adds. "He shares with the Board members and
gives them a sense of where the Board stands in
society —where they are being effective in communications and where they are falling down
this
....
sharing makes us more inclined to be supportive
of his position."
"He argues his points lucidly and like all the
rest of us is trying to convince us about his views,
but he tries to convince with the logic of his position, not his power. There's no horse trading. He
does nothing behind closed doors," David Mosso
notes.
Mr. Kirk even makes everyone else aware of
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING/ NOVEMBER 1986

telephone calls and letters. "If someone calls me
to make a particular plea about their problem,
about what we are going to do to them with a particular decision, I'll write a brief memorandum,
circulate it among the Board and staff, and file it
so everybody is aware of it."
A Consummate Technician
One of the most important skills for the chairman to possess, Mr. Kirk notes, is an understanding of the technical issues. "If you don't have that,
you feel at a loss in your job. That's the one thing
about the job that isn't always understood —the
chairman can't delegate the technical responsibilities. As a matter offact, he needs to have as good
an understanding ofeach of the technical subjects
as any other Board member. If he lets himself slip
too far behind, he's going to fail in his major responsibility, which is to conduct the Board meeting deliberations and try to move to reasonable
conclusions. You have to see the ramifications of
a particular solution. You've got to understand
what a Board member is saying or implying or

Following the FASB's Due Process
Being the chairman of a body like the FASB is no easy task. The seven member private sector group is charged with setting standards of financial
accounting and reporting for publicly held companies in the United States.
Most privately held companies also adhere to its principles in order to get a
clean opinion from their auditors because the American Institute of CPAs
sanctions FASB pronouncements in its code of ethics. Under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, the Securities & Exchange Commission has statutory authority to set financial accounting and reporting standards, but it
prefers to rely on the private sector —the FASB —for this responsibility.
The Board was created in 1973.Since the 1930s, other, intermittent attempts at establishing a set of generally accepted accounting principles and
various standards had been undertaken by committees of the AICPA, such
as the Committee on Accounting Procedure and the Accounting Principles
Board. In the 14 years of its existence, the FASB has issued 88 Statements
of Financial Accounting Standards.
Issues considered by the Board can be quite complex and controversial,
such as pension accounting, computer software costs, or foreign currency
translation, because these matters would not have been brought to the
Board's attention if some problems hadn't developed with their use. Raymond C. Lauver, current Board member, explains: "The Board is intended
to be an instrument of change. If there were no need for change, then there
would be no need for the Board. In that light, we are always going to be
regarded as undesirable. Humans like the status quo. Change upsets us."
The process to reach decisions on accounting issues can be lengthy and
involves much discussion and debate among Board members, staff, and
constituents. The first step is placing a project on the Board's agenda. The
last is voting on the pronouncement. In between, for major projects, come
task forces, discussion memoranda, public hearings, comment letters, open
Board meetings, exposure drafts, more letters, and more meetings. Sometimes this process takes years. If the process seems too unwieldy, remember
that Board members must become experts before they can make decisions
that will affect an entire profession. Mr. Kirk notes: "We all start with
different backgrounds and understanding of issues, so it takes each of us a
different length of time to be comfortable with a subject."
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tens, and com es to a decision. He really
to
what people s ay and the sub tleties of what they
say and fram es questions that wrap up the issues.
By nature he asks — whether to himself or aloud —
a w hole ser ie s o f 'wh at if questions and pushes
into those 'what if areas. He has the ability to
look at the im plications, seeing ram ifications in
multilayers. Most of us can look at the first layer,
and som e the second layer, but few can see to the
third and fo urth layers of an idea o r issue."
C. Ar th ur Northrop, current Board mem ber,
agrees. "He's sensitive to the issues raised in term s
of tec hnical cont rib utio ns and im plications. H e
has a very clear view of what is im portant, He's a
sensitive and acute listener in understanding others' points of view. H e im m ediate ly get s o n t he
sam e wavelength with those who are e xpressing
their views. He asks them probing questions to
understand the issues that are sometimes better
than the questions they them selves asked."
"He's a lso ve ry resp ectful of the views of others," form er Board m em ber Ralph Walters notes_
" H e never tried to influence the view s o f ot her
Board mem bers overtly. He always voted last. Actually, he probably should have tried to lean on us
listens

su ggestin g o r in ferrin g o r in ten d ing to say. You've
really go t to b e ab le to so rt o u t the ir ar gu m en ts
an d see wh e re th ey ag ree o r d is agre e w ith other
Bo ar d m em b ers an d tr y t o p o in t ou t th ose ar eas
so , th at while th ere may be th e appearance of seven d ifferen t views, you can find the co m m on
th read o f th e m ajo rity ."
Accord in g to h is colleagu es, Don Kirk is a master in th is role. "His a b ility to a nalyze co m plex
issu es q u ickly an d co m p letely h as led to his success as ch airman. The two mo st com plex issues we
wo rked o n were fo reign c u rren cy translation and
acco u n t in g fo r pensio ns. His ability to m aster
th em qu ickly was am azin g an d outstanding. H e
was far ah ead of th e rest o f u s, and it was clear,"
ex claim s Bob Sp rou se. "He has an uncanny ability
to see the long -ran ge ramificatio ns of an issue and
p lan ah ead f o r th em ," n o tes Pau l Pac ter. "Rarely
wou ld so meth in g co m e up that he wouldn't alread y h ave th o u gh t a b o u t an d thou ght thr ough."
Pau l Ko lto n , ch airm an o f t h e Financial Acco un tin g Stan dards Ad viso ry Co uncil, finds it fascina tin g to wa tch Do n Kirk d u ring m ee tings. "It
is an in terest in g ex p erien ce to wat ch how he abso rb s in fo rmatio n an d views, co mm unicates, lis-

Kirk on theControversial Issues
During Don Kirk's term, the FASB has dealt with some controversial issues and problems, such as moving its operations from behind
closed doors into the sunshine, inflation accounting, the length of
time it takes the group to reach a consensus, and criticism that its
heavily promoted Conceptual Framework is unsuccessful. Mr. Kirk
allows that some criticism is founded, but much is unfounded, and
offers his insights into some favorite issues.
The Conceptual Framework Many people consider the Conceptual
Framework project the most important in the Board's history, mainly because it is supposed to lay the foundation for the future directions in standards setting. The six Statements on Financial Accounting Concepts that compose the framework are not designed to solve
accounting problems but to offer a common frame of reference from
which Board members can proceed to deal with other issues. Some
constituents have argued fo r a prescriptive set o f con cep ts that
would help solve future problems, and others wanted a descriptive
set that examines current practice, Many observers have said that
FASB's Conceptual Framework is n either and th erefo re doesn't
meet its own criteria for usefulness. Don Kirk says, "The concepts
documents are intended to serve the needs of external users by setting the objectives, qualitative characteristics, and other concepts
that guide selection of economic events to be recognized, measured,
and displayed in financial statements. We've been criticized for the
Conceptual Framework not going far enough, but I have found satisfaction in taking it as far as we did. I think we made some strides,
and I suppose it could be taken further, but I leave that to my successors to add to it and modify it and see that it fills in areas where
people feel it has failed. But I do think we address the conceptual
issues. We haven't satisfied everybody, but I think it's a framework
that's useful to us and to those on the outside."
The Board's Mission Statement "Having defined our mission has
been helpful and satisfying. It is published in our Facts about FASB,
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which is circulated widely. You can look at it and say, well that's
like motherhood —why do you get satisfaction from it? It wasn't
easy to develop. It says what now is obvious, but to be able to state
what we did took a good many years. We had internal debate and
external discussion and finally came up with a good explanation of
the Board."
The Board's Lengthy Process "Learning to live with the tim e it
takes to analyze a subject, understand it, deliberate and debate about
it, propose something, listen to what the constituents have to say
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more becau se it was very d ifficu lt to reach a co n sensus on issues. Mo st o f th e issu es are t o u gh o r
they would n ever b e on o ur p lates. But, he h as an
incredible am o un t o f p atien ce with o u r very cu m bersom e due p ro cess. He's very aggressive, b u t h e
takes great p ain s to m ain tain his self - co n tro l."
Mr. Kirk ackn o wled ges th at his patien ce an d
tolerance of oth ers' views h ave helped him en du re
the rigor of th e stan dards- setting pro cess. "if y o u
didn't have th at, y o u'd go b an an as in th is jo b," h e
laughs. "I do n 't kn o w wh eth er I h ad th at o rigin ally or have d evelo p ed it over the years, b u t at least
it's there."
Staying Cool
Sometimes th e very attribu tes th at make him
such a good co llegial lead er and ex cellent tech n ician with un d eniab le devo tio n to th e Bo ard 's p ro cess tend to aggravate co n stitu en ts. Ar t h u r R.
Wyatt, curren t Bo ard mem b er, ex p lain s: "D o n ' s
involvem en t is pervasive an d all en com p assin g.
The decision s arou n d th e Bo ard h ave been largely
direc ted b y h im in th e p ast tw o y ea rs sin ce I' ve
been here, alm o st witho ut exception. Th is is o n
the stre ngth o f h is p ers o n ality . In the hand s of

so m e people, this power could be sorely abused,
b u t it has n't bee n in h is. He exhibits good judgm ent and a stud ied, thor ough invo lvem e nt in all
m atters. With others he's frank but not argum entative. When challenged, he pursues without a
boiling point being reached. He's very rational.
He doesn't get irritated, or, if he does, he doesn't
sh o w it, which ir ritates others w ho disagree with
or challenge him . If they can't convince him with
th e logic of their ar gum e nts, they als o can't get
h im irrit ated, which in tur n irr itat es th em ."
Sunup to Sundown
His colleagues tease that his work habits could
discourage lesser m ortals. They say he 's intense,
serious, and a no- nonsense type of taskmaster, devoting 100% effort to whatever he does. He h as
an almost photographic memory and will often
ask m on ths or even y ears la ter, " Do you rem em b er Pr oje ct X?" If you don't, he'll quot e you its
co n tents alm ost verbatim . He keeps a sm all spiral
st en ogra ph ic notebook with him at all tim es,
wh ich contains a punch list of things to do, and he
go es through each one rapidly until all are com pleted. H e doesn't waste tim e, and he usually

about it, and then ultimately decide is time consuming. It's also frustrating, but it's very much a built -in part of the process. We're an
unusual kind of institution. We have a pu blic responsibility, but
we're privately financed. We operate in a democratic society, a society where there are many well - organized special interests, not just in
standards setting but in the who le social, p olitical fab ric of this
country. To achieve anything in our society is often a difficult task,
and achieving things in our environment is especially difficult and
time consuming, but we have adjusted to it.
"The criticism of our moving too fast or too slow depends on the
person's side of the issue. Those who aren't affected by major projects say we aren't moving fast enou gh. Th ose who think they are
adversely affected usually are on the side that we've gone too fast
and suggest we should do some field testing, or we should do some
more work and the light will come in and we'll see it their way.
"In addition, we're not expert on every subject. We have to become expert on the subjects. Insurance accounting might be Greek
to us, so we have to spend the necessary time to understand it before
we can make a pronouncement."
The Sunshine Rule In 1978, when Don Kirk took over as chairman, the Board moved all its deliberations into the public arena. He
has been the major supporter of the process and says its advantages
far outweigh its disadvantages. "I've been a supporter of openness of
the process. It forced some discipline upon the organization—discipline in preparing for meetings, discipline in the conduct of meetings— because you had to announce what was going to be on your
agenda. You had to invite the public to the Board meetings. It forces
each Board member to think through what he is going to say, and in
that respect he might say it's inhibiting, but it brings self - discipline
into the system. We choose our words a little more carefully, and
maybe we're a little mo re po lite th an we m ight have been if we
weren't operating in the sunshine, but that's not bad.
"Before the rule, there had b een a great deal of mystery to our
system. We had not indicated what the Board's position was on a
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subject until an exposure draft came out. Now people know exactly
what's going on with the deliberations. Some have suggested it's like
the making of sausage and law —you should never see how it's done.
The public gets to see that the members are uncertain at tim es or
that they change their minds or that the Board as a whole changes
its direction. Some people would look at that and say 'What are
those idiots doing up there? Don't they know what they're up to?'
But I think it helps people realize that the subjects are complicated,
that the Board goes to great lengths to understand them, and that we
don't have our minds made up beforehand. We are influenced by
new information and try to see how that new information affects the
issues.
"Take public hearings, for example. This summer we dealt with
regulated industries and the savings and loan industry. Without exception, people who were there were very impressed with the way
the Board prepares for and conducts public hearings. They go away
with the feeling we're trying to understand the issues. In fact, it convinced me that we have to get a pamphlet out to all prospective testifiers emphasizing what the Board goes through in preparing for a
hearing and how we'll conduct it and that all Board members will be
there."
FASB /GASB— Problems? "First you have to decide if there is a
problem with having a Financial Accounting Standards Board and a
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Is the jurisdiction between two boards a problem? A decision has to be reached as to
whether having different standards for a governmental hospital and
a privately owned or public hospital is 'a problem.' It's my belief it
is. The financial managers of the hospitals and of colleges and universities believe it is a problem as well. A key question is, 'Do the
users of those financial statements share that concern?' I'm personally convinced the standards of reporting in the separate financial
statements of colleges and universities and hospitals should be the
same regardless of ownership. The ownership may suggest the need
for special disclosures, but when you deal with the basic recognition
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lun ches alon e at h is desk, ch oosing a cup of coffee,
yo gu rt, o r crackers an d p ean u t butter while readin g , u n les s h e h as s o m e e rra n d s t o run . A vor aciou s read er, h e go b b les up whatever is put in
fro n t o f h im , men tally catalogu ing pertinent data.
He also watches FAS B's budget closely. " H e
ru n s a no- frills o p era tio n . He 's very tough on
stickin g to th e b u d get an d b ein g within a reasonab le lim it," David Mo sso ex p la ins. This in cludes
go in g o u t of his way to fin d t he lowest possible
airfare fo r h is freq u en t trip s.
His jo b h as n ever b een 9 to 5. "Don can be deand measurement questions, the standards should be the same. The
objectives of what you're trying to measure should be the same. I'm
led to believe that the users of those financial statements would be
better served by comparable reporting.
"I think the great hope that somehow two independent boards —
each with its own mission —could somehow create the same standard is naive. Two boards looking at the same issue clearly can reach
different decisions because their orientation is somewhat different
and they're different individuals. The conflict of standards is inevitable. The real question is whether it's harmful or detrimental to have
different standards. That's the key question to resolve... The solution should not be left to territorial struggle, however. It should be
resolved on a basis of what serves financial reporting the best, and
that should govern, not whose territory it is."
FAF/FASAC/FASB Structure How well d oes it work? "There
have been temptations at times to knock down the barriers between
the three parts of the structure. There have been thoughts at times of
imbuing the Financial Accounting Standards Advisory Council with
voting power or veto power. Those ideas were never seriously advocated, but they were discussed.
"There's periodic pressure for the Board of Trustees of the FAF
to get involved in standards setting —to push the Board in one direction or to keep it from do ing something. The trustees have had to
struggle with those kinds of pressures. But, to their credit, they have
com e down o n th e sid e o f keep ing th e Bo ard in dep en d ent and
watching that line. At variou s times, however, it has been a great
temptation to step o ver that line, an d I'm sure th at temp tation is
going to continue. We live in a world now of very pointed political
lobbying activity that will co ntinue and p robably increase in the
future."
The Oil an d Gas Issue Statement No. 19, Financial Accounting
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scribed as FILO —th e first on e in ever y m orning
and the la st one out every night. He's a n incredible wo rker, " say s Ralp h Walters. Board m em ber
Ray Lauver a dds, "Yo u can't im agine how disconc erting it is th at n o m a tter wh at t im e you arrive in the m orning, to get inside you have to pass
his car, an d no m at te r wh en yo u le ave at n ight ,
you have to pass it again on your way through the
parking lot."
Bob Sprous e recalls the first trip they took together. It was in the spring of 1973, just after they
had joined the Board, and they went to Washington, D.C ., to meet with S E C com m is sio ner s.
"Don picked m e up and we chatted on the way to
the airport. The m inute we got on the plane, however, out cam e Don's briefcase, and he read all the
way there, preparing for the m eeting. At lunch at
the Na vy Club, w hile t he re st of us talked, Don
sat down in a nearby chair and continued to work.
These habits never changed in the 13 years we
worked together. Don is never distracted. He's an
intense person and an intense worker."
At the sa m e tim e, "h e's a ve ry wa rm and ve ry
caring person. He's devoted to the FASB staff —
both professional and adm inistrative. H e knows
people by nam e and som ething personal about
them —more than any other person there. Yet he's
ver y pr ivate a nd is n ot a n eas y pe rs on to get to

and Reporting by Oil and Gas Producing Companies, ended up being
one of the most controversial for the Board because after it was released, there was much political lobbying, and the SEC revoked it.
"We had been under pressure from our trustees and everybody else
to finish the project. We were under pressure from others to junk it
and not go forward. Then the SEC got forced into the issue and
eventually rejected our proposal and came up with their own. The
fact that the SEC rejected our proposal was viewed by many as the
death knell for the Board or as a great threat. So I spent a lot of time
pointing out to people that, to me, it demonstrated the way the system works. It demonstrates that we're an independent board which
can reach its own decisions and there is a governmental power which
exists to overrule what the Board may do. However, I am convinced
that private - sector standards setting is at least partially sheltered
from political pressures. It was the statement of a representative of
the Departm ent of Justice's Antitrust Division to me that the Department knew how to stop another governm ent department or
agency, but they did not know how to stop the FASB from issuing
Statement No. 19."
Should Standards Be Revisited? "Each Board member has voted
against some particular standard. I've certainly done my share. That
doesn't mean I would redo the standard. In fact, I believe strongly
that standards should stay in place until there really is overwhelming evidence that something is wrong or there's some new change in
the environm ent that requires a revisit. There are few perfect answers, if any, in accounting, and if you have a reasonable solution
that's honestly developed, it shouldn't be dismissed because you now
have four out of seven Board members that would reach a slightly
different conclusion.
Take Statement No. 13, Accounting for Leases. People have
learned their way around it and it is no longer doing what people
thought it set out to do. In instances like that, if there's a feeling that
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know," Dr. Sp ro u se ad d s.
Don Kirk enjoys the in teraction with staff' members and isproud o f them . As ch airman , he oversees
operations of the technical staff, not d ay - today details but in policy- making areas. Jam es J. Leisenring, director of research and technical activities,
heads the 45- mem ber staff and ru ns its o peration s.
He's considered equ al to a Bo ard m emb er.
Mr. Kirk b elieves th at, "Wh en y o u h ave an o rganization, y o u wan t it to o p erate with a feelin g.
You want p eo p le to u n d ers tan d wh at th e o rgan ization is, develop a sen se of lo yalty an d a comm on
mission. I always viewed this respo nsib ility as on e
aspect of th e wh o le Bo a rd o p eratio n . Every th in g
is here to su p p o rt th e Bo ard . On th e ad m in istrative side, tho se tasks h ave b een d elegated to very
com petent peop le, but th e ch airm an mu st still
take an interest in th em ."
The t hird a re n a in wh ic h h e is.in vo lved is th e
environmen t in wh ich th e Bo ard op erates. He h as
pace d m a n y a Co n gression al co rrido r, esp ecially
during the o il an d gas crisis of th e late 1970s an d
the current in vestigation s in to th e acco u n tin g an d
auditing pro fessio ns by Rep . Jo h n Din gell an d
others. He gives speeches ab ou t th e Board , its mission, and its iss u es to v ario u s g ro u p s ar o u n d th e
country, an d he meets with in du stry lead ers as
much as po ssib le, tryin g to get th eir in pu t in to th e

stan dards - setting process and getting the Board's
vie ws a cr oss t o th em when the Board th in ks a
gro u p o r c om p any might be affected by an upco ming decision.
A 1985 Harris poll of 451 people, including 78
ch ief executive officers and 79 chief financial officers, shows the Board's credibility at an all -tim e
high even though there's a diversity of opinion on
th e outcom es of the issues. Rho lan E. Larson,
president of the F in an cial Ac co un ting Foun datio n , says that Don Kirk's leadership has contributed greatly to this public approbat ion and the
wid espread acceptance of the standard - setting
pro cess. "He puts a strong em phasis on the indepen dence of the Board. He wants to preserve that
in d ependence and has worked har d to war d th at
ob jective. The bottom line is that he has helped us
earn the right to keep sta ndard setting in the private sector. That objective is second to none."
In Purs uit of Public Service
Although th e m ajority of his tim e is ta ken up
by FASB pursuits, he leaves room for fam ily and
co mm unity activities, especially local government.
He was a m em ber of the Greenwich, Conn., Representative Town Meeting and has been elected to
its Board of Estim ate and Taxation every two
$# 72

there's a lack of comparability in reporting an d th ere m ight be a
better solution, then a subject ought to be looked at. We looked at it
again. We weren't convinced that there was a better solu tion that
could be achieved at a reasonable cost - benefit trade -off."
A Few More Difficult Issues "Let me talk about some of the issues
we have dealt with. Statement 2, Accounting for Research and Development Costs, and Statement 5, Accounting for Contingencies, were
very important standards because they set the stage for definitions of
an asset and a liability. When should you recognize something as an
asset? On th e other side, wh en d o yo u in cur liab ilities? We have
three others that have very significant recognition and measurement
aspects. Foreign currency translation —When should you recognize
a change in exchange rates? How? Pension accounting —When
should you recognize changes in the value of the assets in the pension fund? When should you change the liability for amending the
plan? Statement 33, Financial Reporting and Changing Prices —How
might you reflect changing prices? Those were three very significant
issues, one of which we revisited already, foreign currency translation. People are telling us we ought to revise pensions (No. 87) already. Now we're talking about suspending No. 33 as a requirement.
They've all added significantly to an understanding of recognition
and measurement questions. They have been helpful, provided we
maintain an institutional memory of all that we have gone through
already.
"With regard to Statement No. 33, I don't know whether an upsurge of inflation will bring back the clamor for some supplementary
or adjusted financial reporting. In my op in io n, it wo n't because
we've made several tries at supplementary reporting during times of
rapidly changing prices or inflation. The information hasn't added
that much to the users' understanding of the enviro nment. We
haven't been able to come up with a method ofgauging inflation that
is viewed as reliable or widely relevant."
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Cookbook vs. General Standards "A good chef does not sneer at a
recipe. He doesn't create something with a few eggs and some salt.
He knows exactly what should go into a good meal. A good standard has to be operable. To be operable, it must have some specificity in it, if you're going to get comparable results from its implementation. Does that put me into the cookbook camp or the broad,
general standards camp? The answer depends on the issue. The result has to be comparable reporting."
The Future of the FASB— What's Ahead? "There are some technical issues that will keep the Board very busy, som e of which I
thought I would see to completion, but I won't. I believe we will get
more and more involved in insurance accounting, as accounting for
some of the new products, and it looks like we are going to endorse
solutions that will be very controversial and in some instances may
call into question the accounting for the more traditional insurance
policies. Income tax accounting and accounting for stock options are
very controversial subjects. Our proposal on tax accounting will ultimately require that your deferred taxes be adjusted for changes in
tax rates. With the recent reductions of corporate tax rates, we're
getting letters from companies telling us to hurry up because they
want to reduce the deferred tax liability on their balance sheet. If it
were going the other way, I can assure you they wouldn't be telling
us to hurry up. There are some other very controversial aspects of
our proposal that will probably make it impossible for us to hurry
up, so I'm leaving a very full agenda of technical issues for my
successor.
"He also will have the continual responsibility of communicating
to constituent groups because they change. Nothing stands still, The
SEC commissioners change. Members of Congress change. What
you think you've solved, the relationships you think you've built,
have to be rebuilt constantly. Those external concerns will continue
to be a very important responsibility for the FASB chairman."
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WilltheRealCostPleaseStandUp?
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When we dug deeper, we discovered
only
of our variable costs
were really variable.

I was sitting in my office one day when Dick
Johnson, sales manager, walked in and began
what proved to be a very enlightening discussion.
"We have an opportunity," he began excitedly,
"that only comes once in a career."
"Really!" I responded, leaning forward in my
seat.
"You know that for 10 years I've been beating
down the doors at Miracle Enterprises trying to
lure them away from Scrufty Sales Co., our leading competitor."
"Yup, I hear they don't want anything to do
with us because of some personality clashes between their buyer and one o f o u r fo rmer
salesmen."
"Exactly" Dick shouted, "but now he's finally
softening and he's agreed to let us quote. You
know with the volume they do, we could increase
our sales by 30% and raise our market share to
70 %!" Dick was now talking so fast I could hardly understand him. "This is our chance to dominate the market," he continued. "Don't you see ?"
he said, reading the puzzled look on my face,
"Once we push Scrufty out, the sky is the limit.
With that much volume we can get more automated equipment, lower prices from our suppliers,
cut our costs, and pass that along to our customers, and no competitor will be able to touch us.
We will have a virtual monopoly." Dick was so
exicted by this time he didn't even realize he was
shouting_ "Wow!" he said, "What a day!"
Feeling totally overwhelmed, I asked, "How do
I fit into all of this, Dick ?"
"Well, obviously," he stated, "Miracle is only
going to give us one shot, so it's got to be our best
one. So, I'm suggesting that we quote at $7.50."
"What ?" I shouted. I couldn't believe my ears.
"Dick, you know our variable cost is $8,15. Your
price won't even cover our incremental 'out of
pocket' expenses. No way! If it takes $7.50 to get
Miracle's business then it won't be us."
"Relax!" said Dick, "Remember I told you we
could automate some more. That additional volume will get us the payback we need to buy the
'Super- Loader.' That alone will cut our cost by
$.30 to $.40 each. Plus, what we can get from supMANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING/ NOVEMBER 1986

pliers on volume discounts —no problem."
"Dick," I said, exasperated at this point, "that
machine is not even designed yet. All it is right
now is an idea in Sam Miller's head. We can't
quote below our variable cost based on an 'idea.'
But listen," I said, "I'll take another look at our
costs and see what I can do."
"What do you mean 'take an other l ook'? "
Dick asked.
"Well," I responded, "I don't know —we'll just
take a look."
"Good grief," said Dick, "If your costs are
wrong, and that 's wh at you're impl ying, why
would you wait until a situation like this comes up
to make a correction ?" Dick was really annoyed
now. He continued, "Why aren't your costs right
to begin with? Do you mean all your costs are
wrong? I can't believe it! How do you expect me
to get us profitable business if I can't rely on the
cost data? How can you even tell me t hat my
$7.50 quote is out of line? I'm quoting at $7.50
unless you can prove to me that your costs are

r
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right."
With that, Dick mercifully ended his barrage
and left mumbling words I hadn't heard in a long
time.
Digging Deeper
I sat in my office for several minutes wondering
how I had opened myself up for such a relentless
assault. All I really meant was that if this account
was so important we should be certain that our
costs are as low as can be. And, if some things
needed refinement, there would never be a better
time. Why couldn't Dick see that I was only trying to help? What a hothead! I was determined
not to allow him to sell them at $7.50. But just to
be sure, I called in my cost accountant, Dan D.
Tail, and quickly brought him up to speed. "Dan,
let's look at the cost structure of this product from
the ground up. I especially want to focus on how
we calculate the burden rate."
Later that afternoon, Dan presented me with
what I had asked for or what I thought I had
asked for.
Product #43Q124
Material:
1. Pan # 1435 -2 Purchased
2. Part # 1447 -6 Purchased
3. Part # 1473 -1 Purchased
Total

$1.32
.47
.64
$2.43

Labor:
Operation 10
Operation 20
Total

2.24
1.75
$3.99

The ne xt day Dan presented me with an eye
opener.
Variable burden for De pt. 43:
Indirect labor
Supplies
Fringes
Allocations
Total

$ 67,500
25,200
143,000
350,100
$585,800

Hours
Rate $585,800/192,700 =

192,700
$3.04

"Look at this, Dan ," I exclaim ed, " 60 % o f the
variable burden is not even incurred in Dept. 43."
"I kno w, " s aid Da n. " Tha t's th e c ha rges f ro m
service departm ents like Maintenance and Tool
Room . They tell m e how m uch of their budget is
going to be spent on each production departm ent,
To te ll you t he tr ut h, though, it's only a guess.
They d on't have any a ccurat e rec ords to su pport
the allocations."
"And!" I interru pted, "O nce they are set in the
budget, our pr od uct c ost s a re ca lc ula ted a nd we
use that all year. Even if the actual costs differ, we
don't recalculate product costs."
" N o t only th at ," said Da n, "b ut we classify
these as variable costs. When was the last tim e a
m aintenance m an or too lm aker was laid off?"
"Exa ctly," I cha rge d. "I b et tha t if p rod uct ion

no maintenance or
toolmakers would be laid off. I wo nder what
would happen if production went up 20 % ?" This

o f 4 3 Q 1 2 we nt d o wn b y 2 0 % ,
.32 hours
.25 hours
.57 hours

Variable Overhead:
.57 hours Co $3.04

$1.73

Grand total variable cost

$8.15

" D a n , " I said , d is a p p o in t e d , " T h i s re ally
d o esn 't t ell m e w h at I n e ed t o kn ow."
" W e ll, " he replied, " Th is is all we've got. I
d o n 't h ave an y m o re d etail th an what's here. This
is righ t f ro m m y co st b o o k."
"Th e n we have to dig d eep er," I said. "Th is
tells me n oth in g ab o ut th e $1.73 variable burden."
"Wh at's to tell ?" said Dan . "You know our form u la, lab o r h o u rs t im es b u rd en rate."
" T h e b u r d e n r a t e , " I s a i d , " h o w is it
calculated ?"
Dan rep lied , "It 's th e b u d geted burden divided
by b ud geted ho u rs. Simp le en o ugh!"
"Bu t" I in q u ired , "what is really in there? What
co sts, wh ose co sts, ho w m an y costs ?"
"Slo w do wn ," said Dan . "I'd h ave to go back to
th e bu d get and d ig that o ut. We don't use that detail after th e b u d ge t is p u t to gether."
"Well then `d ig it. o u t', " I com manded, "and
let's ex am in e wh at we h ave."

lit tle p iec e o f det ect ive w ork h ad bro ught m e to
the realization that only some of our variable costs
were really variable.
Subseque ntly, a convers ation w ith the m aintenance forem an confirmed m y initial conclusions.
"Wh at wo uld b e t he im pa ct to m a in ten an ce if
we i nc r e a s e d 43 Q 1 2 p r o d u c t io n b y 2 0 % ? "

IF SOME OF THE BURDEN `_,\
COSTS ARE INDEED VARIARLE 1

..TH EN THE BURDEN OF
PROOF 1S ON ME
, ,
0 000.

ELEMENTARY.`

,�
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"Oh" replied the foreman, "not much. That
equipment is in pretty good shape. We hardly
have to service it much now, oth er than o ur
scheduled preventive maintenance program. Even
if we did have more trouble, we'd spend whatever
time we had to."
"Would you have to add any people ?"
"Are you kidding? Man, I'd get canned if I suggested that. You remember the last Iayoff we had?
I didn't get rid of anyone. The boss thinks I'm
over staffed now. Don't get me wrong —we're always busy, but we can handle more with the same
staff."
The next day I researched the remainder of the
allocated variable costs and found similar situations. It all boiled down to this: we classified
many service department costs as variable —and
correctly so (i.e., supplies, indirect labor, etc.).
However, in reality few of these costs are truly
variable. In fact, they are stepped variable. This
means that although the costs vary with activity it
is not a one - for -one relationship.
Costs are incurred or shedded in chunks by
adding or laying off indirect labor. (Figure 1).
This situation is critical when dealing with allocated service department costs. "Direct" production department variable costs generally do behave as truly variable. These allocated variable
costs behave more like fixed costs. Feeling quite
pleased with my discovery, I asked Dan to come
to my office. "Dan, let's recalculate the real variable cost of 43Q12 based on what we know about
the allocated costs."
"Yeah," he responded. "If we can make 20%
more without additional maintenance and tool room costs, we should treat them as fixed costs."
Dan's recalculation looked like this:
Variable burden for Dept. 43

Hours
Rate $235,700/192,700 =

67,500
25,200
143,000
$235,700
$

Indirect labor
Supplies
Fringes
Total

192,700
$1.22

Product 43Q12
Material
Labor
Variable
burden (.57 hours times $1.22)

$2.43
3.99

Total variable cost

$7.12

.70

"Look's like a price of $7.50 is okay, doesn't it,
Dan ?"
"Sure does! Our real profit from those sales will
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING /NOVEMBER 1986

contribute $38 a piece right to the bottom line."
"To think," I added, "I was ready to go to the
president to stop Dick from selling these below
our costs. Good thing I told him we'd take a look
at our costs." Of course, Dick had no idea that
our cost was incorrect. But his impetus had led
me to an important discovery — variable costs are
not necessarily incremental costs. And when costing new jobs or increased volume, the wrong cost
could lose the job! I almost caused us to lose out
on an important piece of business. Now, we will
dominate the market.
I wonder how Scrufty figures their costs?

Accountants
get caught up
in theory and
forget their
primary goal—
to make more
money.

Figure 1

ACTIVITY

DOL LA RS

What you just read was purely a fictional account of what may go on at many companies. Let
us hope they also reach the right decisions. Sometimes we management accountants get too caught
up in our theory to be of any practical value. We
need to focus on our prime goal in business —
make more money.
As accountants we can offer very little "value
added" toward the bottom line. Much of our efforts are directed toward keeping track of what
happened yesterday. We need more forward
thinking to guide our companies to the proper
business decisions.
This particular example was designed to get
you to think about the real problem in this situation—Is $7.50 a good deal or not? To answer that
we need to know what it costs to produce the next
piece. Not yesterday's piece, but tomorrow's
piece.
The case of allocated variable costs is a real dilemma. We need to know what portion of the
variable burden is directly impacted by volume
and which one is not. Without that information it
is impossible to make the correct decision.
If your cost system does not address variable
costs as two elements—direct and allocated —then
change it. By assuming that all your variable costs
are incremental, you may be... well, talk to the
people at Scrufty!
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Accounting
Education
Melkote K. Shivaswamy and George F. Hanks,
Contributing Editors

How Students View a Career in Management Accounting
It has been alleged that U.S. colleges
promote public accounting at the expense of management accounting. If,
indeed, there is a bias in favor of public accounting careers on college
campuses, has this tilt adversely affected the image of management accounting in the eyes of students? We
surveyed 712 students at Ball State
University in Muncie, Indiana, to determine their attitudes toward careers
in management accounting.
These students were enrolled in accounting courses at the sophomore,
junior, senior, and graduate levels.
Management accounting careers
were defined as those in the private
for - profit sector. Our sample included
approximately 70% of all students enrolled in accounting courses that
quarter. Virtually all junior and senior
students were included in the study.
Our group was predominantly unmarried (87 %) and almost evenly split as
to males (54 %) and females (46 %).
Sophomores accounted for approximately 32 %, juniors for 35 %, seniors
for 28 %, and graduate students and
others for 5% of those surveyed. Ball
State has a total enrollment of about
17,000 students and an accounting
program that graduates approximately 200 accounting majors each year.
The survey examined students' attitudes toward industrial and commercial accounting careers as related to
earnings, opportunities to be innovative, job and financial security, opportunities for advancement, and psychic
(nonmonetary) rewards. Students
were presented with a series of statements relating to these five factors
32

and, for each statement, the student
indicated the extent of agreement or
disagreement with the statement on a
five -point scale. Data were analyzed
by sex, marital status, class rank, declared major, grade point average in
the major area, and grade point average overall. In order to determine
whether responses differed significantly by demographic and academic
characteristics, the chi - square test
was used. For this study, differences
are considered significant if the level
of significance is 0.05 or less.
Most of the students in our study
have a favorable outlook on the high
earnings possibilities in industrial and
commercial accounting. Forty -three
p erc en t of t h e res pon den ts expressed favorable, and 48% presented very favorable attitudes, while only
8% of the respondents remained neutral, and 1 % expressed unfavorable
attitudes. None had very unfavorable
attitudes.
A majority of all respondents in all
class ranks had favorable or very favorable attitudes toward earnings in
industry. However, as students progressed to higher class ranks, the
numbers indicating favorable and very
favorab le at titu des app ear to
diminish.
Even though a majority of students
without regard to major field of study
entertained favorable or very favorable attitudes, a higher proportion of
those who were not accounting majors appeared to believe careers in
management accounting offered
good earnings prospects.
A majority of respondents (60 %)

believe that careers in industry and
commerce offer opportunities for innovation. A significantly higher proportion of accounting majors (66 %)
as compared with students with other
declared major fields (51 %) indicated
responses that were favorable or very
favorable to industrial accounting careers as they relate to innovation.
A very high proportion of respondents (about 80 %) have the opinion
that industrial accounting careers offer both financial and employment security. Two characteristics, marital
status and class rank, accounted for
differences in responses that were
significant.
Whereas a high proportion of both
single and married respondents reported favorable or very favorable attitudes, single people appeared to
feel comparatively more secure about
such careers
than married
respondents.
A greater proportion of respondents at all class levels entertained
favorable or very favorable attitudes
toward industrial accounting careers
on this score, but attitudes appear to
be progressively less favorable for
students in their senior or graduate
year. Of the sophomores, 83% expressed favorable or very favorable
attitudes as compared with 75% of
those in the senior /graduate category. It appears that as students get
closer to the job market, they are less
certain about management accounting careers on this count.
A very high proportion of respondents (87 %) think that there are good
opportunities for advancement in industrial accounting careers. The only
characteristic that accounted for a
significant difference in responses
was class rank.
Regardless of class rank, a high
proportion of all respondents had favorable or very favorable attitudes.
However, students closest to the job
market were less sanguine about opportunities in management accounting careers. Whereas 90% of sophomores expressed favorable or very
favorable attitudes in this matter, only
84% of senior /graduate students had
similar attitudes.
A majorit y of students (71 %)
$# 73
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In addition to $35,000...5 very good
reasons to choose our credit line.
The convenience of a revolving
credit line. Once your credit
line is approved, you
have unlimited access
to any amount of cash
up to your designated
credit limit. It only takes
a phone call to activate
yourcredit —a check is then
mailed immediately.
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Satisfaction guaranteed. If you activate
your credit line and ore not completely satisfied, simply return the money within 30 days
and there is absolutely no cost to you.

As a member of the National Association of Accountants, you now have
access to an unsecured line of credit up
to $35,000.
Designed specifically for executive
clientele, this special program can provide you with major funds for major
expenditures. With all transactions handled by mail and no collateral required,
the program is remarkably convenient.
As an association member, you'll
receive a reduced interest rote of 5.9%
over prime. Given current market conditions, this program could represent one
of your least expensive sources of
financing.
This unique credit line is administered
by Security Pacific Executive /Professional
Services,lnc. —o national leader in providing mail loans, with a historydating

you

Your signature is the
only collateral required. There s
no need to tie up any of your
valuable assets.

back to 1905. It is a subsidiary of Security Pacific Corporation, the notion's
seventh lorgest bank- holding company
with assets over $50 billion.
To cover the administrative costs of
arranging the national program, the
Association receives a small fee. The
offer should not be construed as on
endorsement by the Association of the
lender, or any other products or services
included in the Group Discount program.
You'll find it easy to apply for your
line of credit. Just fill out the coupon
and mail it today. By return mail you'll
receive a one -page application, It's that
simple. For further information call toll free 1-800- 525 -1132. Colorado residents
call collect 341 -6581. In California, call
toll free at 1- 800 -654 -7288.
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Do Cost Accounting
Standards Fill a Gap
in Cost Allocation?
By Patricia James Bost

-r
Patricia James Bost,
CMA, is on the faculty
of George Mason
University, Fairfax, Va.
She is a member of
NAA and submitted
this article through the
Albuquerque Chapter.
Certificate of Merit,
1985 -86.

34

Internal full - absorption cost allocation has traditionally been the ugly step sibling in academe, and
the dream date courted for the prom in industry.
Academics have for the most part avoided the
area of full - allocation costing and tended to view
full -cost allocation as arbitrary and situational.
Thus, industry has had to adjust its cost allocation
philosophies and procedures to meet the passing
internal whim of management without the time or
conceptual academic framework available to assess eco n o mi c imp l icat io n s o f al t ern a t i ve
allocations.
Some experts have suggested that the practice
of full allocation might make sense for certain
business objectives, such as performance appraisal, lump sum "taxes" on limited resources, upward monitoring of perquisites in decentralization, and as sub stitutes for shadow prices in
manufacturing overhead. Allocation problems for
transfer pricing, divisional performance evaluation, and line of business reporting may be viewed
as cost allocation issues as pressing as inventory
costing and pricing.

Help Is Available
Negotiated government contracts offer considerable history and documentation on full- allocation practices. The framework for the use of these
procedures was put together by the Cost Accounting S tand ards Board (CASB). Although the
Board is no longer in existence, the organization's
promulgations retain the full force and effect of
law.
The Board defined its objective "as codifying
cost accounting standards." The scope of its work
included universally accepted principles that underlie the derivation of the standards, guides that
point toward accounting procedures, as well as
the criteria for when they should be put into use.
The Board worked within that scope to establish
continuity in government contract negotiations,
control and review. Members of the CASB were
appointed by the Comptroller General and included talented professionals from several fields, such
as Herman W. Bevis, Gordon Shillinglaw, Fred P.
Wacker, and John M. Walker. In addition, a staff
support group, professional orga niz atio ns, and
governm ent agencies including, am ong others, the
National Association of Accountants, the Defense
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING /NOVEMBER 1986

This gets a little fuzzier in practice, but the guidelines do illustrate how this situation can occur if
there are not careful definitions ofcost pools and
allocation hierarchies.
CAS 403, "Allocation of Home Office Expense
to Segments," deals with allocations of the cost of
centralized services to segments. It suggests a hierarchy of allocation techniques that are further
defined in other allocation standards including —
CAS 418 "Al locati on of Di rect and Indirect
Costs." The hierarchy suggests the following
structured approach for allocation of costs to end
objectives (anything to be measured on a full -absorption basis).

The CASB may be
defunct, but the 19
standards it created
provide useful information
on full- absorption
allocation techniques.

1. Specifically identifiable costs should go directly
to the objective.
2. Homogeneous pools of related expenses should
be allocated on some relationship between the
expenses (usually a causal factor or on benefit
received).
3. Residual expense should be allocated by any
appropriate technique. A three factor formula
is suggested that uses an arithmetic average of
the segment's percentage portion of property,
payroll, and sales.
For centralized service functions and management, CAS 403 suggests the following possible
bases.
FUNCTION

Contract Audit Agency, the American Accounting Association, and the American Institute of
CPAs, offered professional assistance and advice.
The CASB's 10 -year existence (1970 -80) as a
congressionally funded board did not allow
enough time to accomplish all of its goals. However, the 19 standards, discussions, correspondence,
resulting litigation, and interpretations constitute
a general outline of full-absorption cost allocation
techniques. This work also has illustrated many of
the pitfalls and some solutions to problems in
these areas.
Academics and management accountants in
nondefense industries have largely ignored the
standards the CASB promulgated. Two are particularly interesting because they focus on consistency in cost allocation (CAS 402), and allocation
ofcorporate overhead to segments (CAS 403).
CAS 402, "Consistency in Allocating Costs Incurred for the Same Purpose," requires each cost
to be allocated only once and on only one basis to
each cost objective (in CAS, "objectives" are contracts). Therefore, a cost cannot be allocated to a
final cost objective as a direct cost and then be
allocated again as part of an indirect cost pool.
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING/ NOVEMBER 1986

ALLOCATION BASE

Centralized Service Functions
Personnel administration
number of personnel, labor
hours, payroll, number of
hires
Data processing
machine time, number of
reports
Centralized warehousing
square footage, value of
material, volume
Management
Manufacturing policies
manufacturing cost input,
manufacturing direct labor
Engineering policies
total engineering costs,
engineering direct labor,
number of drawings.
Marketing policies
sales, segment marketing
costs.

As you can see, many traditional methods are
listed. Supporting information in the standard
elaborates on how to handle some specific types of
expenses and residuals from other pools. For example, taxes should be allocated directly according to the actual assessment base and to the maximum extent practical.
Lockheed and McDonnell Douglas
Much of the CASB's work is straightforward.
However, the guidelines are general enough to be
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open to interpretation. Because they are law, the
guidelines have been interpreted and discussed in
hearings conducted by the Armed Services Board
of Contract Appeals (ASBCA) and the appellate
court appeals system. The ASBCA has jurisdiction over appeals involving contracts made by the
Department of Defense, the Military Departments, and any other executive agency when that
agency designates the ASBCA to d eci de the
appeal.
Two cases that came before the ASBCA concerned the McDonnell Douglas Corporation and
the Lockheed Corporation.
The McDonnell Douglas case involved the allocation of major payments for California franchise

in compliance with CAS 403. This case provides
an example of the complexity of cost allocation issues. The ASBCA attempted to define appropriate
allocation bases for joint costs to segments. Of
special interest is the dollar impact of different allocation bases. Formulas are included that the
participants suggested as possible procedures to
follow in allocations. In Lockheed's case, a 300%
difference in reimbursement depended on the elements in the allocation bases.
Reinventing the Wheel
With the continuing use of full - absorption accounting for transfer pricing, ROI, and other internal measurement issues, companies are looking

Most firms outside the defense industry have chosen
to ignore CAS, and instead reinvent the wheel everytime a new
cost objective requires an allocation technique.
tax and Missouri income tax. The company accumulated the total payments for state and local income and franchise taxes in its corporate office
and allocated them to its segments using each segment's gross payroll dollars as the allocation base.
The main issue centered on CAS 403 guidelines
for all ocation of cost to th e s egment s . Th e
ASBCA questioned if the methods were consistent with the causal or beneficial relationships required for allocation bases in CAS 403 and from
initial cost accumulation through intermediate
segments to final cost objectives. The case information shows alternative dollar impacts of the allocation bases. Seven possibile allocation methods
were introduced by the parties to the litigation.
The discussion and details of these methods furnish an interesting review of allocation implications. The case also led to discussions of whether
the expense was a direct cost or a joint cost. Because the base for calculating the tax was mixed
(unlike sales or real property tax), the ASBCA favored a joint cost that was not possible to identify
and allocate directly. This opinion led to a discussion on weighing factors in the allocation base,
specifically property, payroll, and sales by segment and for the total corporation.
The Lockheed dispute also involved the allocation of the California franchise expense to segments. The company allocated the California
franchise tax expense to the company's profitable
segments using a two -step, four factor method
based on sales, payroll, and property, Segments
operating at a loss were not allocated any part of
the tax liability nor did such segments receive any
credit. The ASBCA found the company's method
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for a consistent and easily understood approach
on how to allocate cost based on the contribution
made by each segment of the consolidated business enterprise. The Cost Accounting Standards,
the supporting documents, and litigation provide
management accountants with useful information
on full - absorption allocation techniques and the
impact of selecting alternatives. Most firms, outside the defense industry, have chosen to ignore
these guidelines and instead reinvent the wheel every time a new cost objective requires a technique.
The elusive ideal of full - absorption cost allocation
remains undefined in CAS, but the ethereal form
has a semblance of shape. The details are for the
company, the circumstance, the objective, the environment to complete —but there is enough to relate to interpretations of the dream.
Most management accountants would agree full
absorption is not the route to take for many internal decisions, such as selected data decision models, incremental or differetial cost decisions, review of capi t al pro jects after start -up, or
short-term analysis of deviations from business
plans. However, nervous CEOs are seeking better
ways to communicate the requirements for performance that will bring segment objectives more in
line with their own. The work of industry and academe is encouraging, but sparse.
J
Sources
Robert E. Verrecchia, "An Analysis of Two Cost
Allocation Cases," The Accounting Review, July
1982, pp. 579 -593.
Jerold L. Zimmerman, "The Costs and Benefits of
Cost Allocations," The Accounting Review, July
1979, pp. 504 -521.
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By David E. Keys
Last year, representatives of seven manufacturing
companies met to discuss common problems in
their cost accounting systems that are related to
factory automation. As a result of these meetings,
the National Association of Accountants funded a
research project titled "Cost Accounting for Factory Automation."
One section of this research project was concerned with cost accounting system problems that
are related to numerical control (N /C) machines.
These problems were investigated in depth at four
of the seven companies. Interviews were conducted with cost accountants, managers, systems people, and engineers. Although the original purpose
of the project was purely descriptive, some preliminary findings and some solutions to the identified
problems are discussed here.
Six cost accounting system problems that are
related to N/C machines are:
1. The identification of wages of machine operators as direct or indirect labor is difficult.
2. Direct labor is becoming increasingly fixed and
less variable.
3. Benefits derived from N/C machines are hard
to quantify.
4. The short run is overemphasized to the detri38

ment of the long run.
5. Overhead al locations are not accurate and
cause poor decisions.
6. Performance of N/C machines is difficult to
measure.
Direct Versus Indirect
Several cost accounting system problems are
encountered in the identification of wages of machine operators as direct or indirect labor. Some
managers and cost accountants feel pressure to
identify labor as direct to keep overhead rates
(which are based on direct labor) down. Therefore, the identification of direct labor is influenced
not only by whether or not the cost is easily traceable to the product, but also by political considerations such as the effect on the already high overhead rates.
When direct labor is recorded on work tickets,
it is separated into set -up time and run time. Setup time usually includes the time to prepare the
job for a machine, the time to prepare the machine for the job, and the time to run a trial part.
Run time includes time to run the rest of the
parts on the machine. Set -up time varies quite a
bit among jobs and can sometimes be longer than
run time. The set -up time on some jobs is done by
the machine operator while the machine is producing another job (satellite or off -line work). The
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING /NOVEMBER 1986

set -up time on other jobs is done while the machine is not running.
There were three situations where N/C machines caused difficulty in determining whether
operator's wages were direct or indirect. First, satellite work makes it difficult to allocate the operator's wages between the job running on the machine and the satellite job. Some companies ignore
the satellite work in recording direct labor. This
practice understates direct. labor on the satellite
job and overstates direct labor on the job running
on the N/C machine. A second problem occurs
when an operator could work on a second job but
no other jobs are available. Conceptually, the job
that is being run should not receive all of the operator's wages, and the cost of the time that the operator could have spent working on a second job
should be assigned to overhead as idle time.
In either of these two situations, a key issue is
whether or not the time spent on the satellite job
can be easily recorded. If it can be, the wages of
the machine operator can be split between the two
jobs. Ifthe satellite time cannot be easily recorded, the operator's wages should be considered indirect labor.
Another issue is whether or not the idle time
can be easily determined. This may be difficult,
because it would require a determination of how
much of the machine time can be unmanned and
also h ow mu ch of the u nmanned time can be
spent working on other jobs. If either of these determinations cannot be easily made, then all of the
operator's labor should be considered indirect.
A third problem occurs when the number of
N/C machines exceeds the number of operators.
The operators' time has to be split between all jobs
running on the machines. Also, any idle time
should be recorded as overhead. At least two
methods are used to allocate operator time between jobs. One method is to record the number
of machines operating when each job is completed. The direct labor time is then divided by this
number. This method assumes that the number of
machines operating at the completion of the job
was the same as the number of machines that were
running while the job was being produced. This
assumption will not usually be correct.
A second method is to divide the total direct
labor time recorded on these machines into the actual direct labor time. This ratio is then used to
divide up direct labor cost. For example, if one
operator records 16 hours of time during an eight hour shift, each labor hour would be assigned one
half of the hourly labor rate.
A problem with this method is that it assumes
that all jobs require the same amount of operator
attention per unit of operator time. For example,
assume that for two jobs each runs one hour on a
machine. If one job requires more attention than
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING /NOVEMBER 1986

the other during the hour of run time, it should
receive more than one half of the hourly direct labor rate.
A common problem of both methods is that
they ignore idle time. The possibility that the
same number of operators would be running more
machines at a given time is disregarded, If idle
time is ignored, jobs run with fewer machines operating will have more direct cost assigned than
they should. All other jobs will be assigned too
little idle time because of understated overhead
rates.
These three problems in recording direct labor
not only result in muddled direct labor cost reporting, but also muddled overhead cost reporting. Overhead cost allocations are affected by direct l ab o r b ec au s e al l o f t h e in ves t igated
companies use either direct labor hours or cost as
their overhead bases.

David E. Keys, CMA,
Ph.D., is a professor at
Northern Illinois
University. He is a
member of the Fox
River Valley Chapter,
through which this
article was submitted.

Direct labor is becoming
increasingly fixed and less
variable.
A radical solution to these problems would be
to treat all of the cost that is now direct labor as
indirect labor and, therefore, part of overhead.
This would leave direct material as the only direct
cost. A less radical solution, which some companies have already started to implement, is to reexamine direct labor costs to determine if some of
direct labor should be classified as overhead. The
advantage of this approach is it can be easily calculated. Not all of the direct labor costs would
have to be reclassified as overhead, and direct labor could still be used as the overhead base. Some
of the labor, however, may be improperly identified as direct or indirect, causing errors in product
costs.
The criterion that should be used is whether or
not the labor can be easily and accurately traced
to the product. If labor can be easily traced to the
product, the labor should be direct; if not, it
should be indirect. If companies used this approach, they would probably reclassify a significant portion of direct labor as overhead. The reasons for this reclassification were discussed above.
While this approach would still result in some
classification errors, it should be more accurate
than classifying all labor as indirect or the current
approach.
Fixed Versus Variable
A second cost accounting system problem
caused by N/C machines is that direct labor is be39
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labor variances, direct labor should be considered
a variable cost.
On the other hand, assume that none the output was produced in overtime and that actual production was less than expected. Then when direct
labor variances are calculated, direct labor should
be treated as a fixed cost. This will result in variances that are more controllable and more useful.
this al ternat ive is its
Th e di s ad van t age
complexity.
of

of

policy

coming increasingly fixed and less variable. The
number of direct laborers has declined and their
average skill level has increased. Also, companies
not laying off N/C mahave adopted a
chine operators. Machine operators replaced by
automation are not laid off and machine operators
who are not needed when volume declines are not
laid off. Therefore, direct labor is usually a fixed
cost when activity level declines. The only exception is when operators are working overtime when
volume declines. In this situation, the overtime is
reduced and direct labor cost declines.
When the activity level increases, the results are
mixed. Sometimes overtime is increased or more
direct laborers are hired. Thus, direct labor has
variable characteristics. However, the relationship
between volume and direct labor is not linear. For
example, as direct labor increases, machines are
used more efficiently and direct labor does not increase as fast as volume. One reason for this result
is that as volume increases, more machines are
run by fewer operators.
One solution to this problem would be to consider all direct labor to he a fixed cost. In cost/
volume /profit analysis, flexible budgeting, variance analysis, direct costing, etc., direct labor
would be treated as a fixed cost. This solution is
not a completely satisfactory solution because direct labor cost does change with activity in some
situations.

Quantifying the Benefits
A third cost accounting system problem caused
by N/C machines is that the benefits derived from
N/C machines are hard to quantify. This drawback makes justification of the purchase of N/C
machines and any review of the effectiveness of
the machines difficult. Accordingly, the manager's judgment in making the decisions to purchase
and how to utilize the machines is very important.
The benefits of N/C machines include direct labor cost savings, decreased inventory levels, increased machine capacity, decreased lead time,
and increased flexibility in the manufacturing process. All of these advantages, except direct labor
cost savings, are considered difficult to quantify.
Even the direct labor cost savings are hard to
quantify accurately. For example, assume a new
N/C machine has replaced three conventional
machines and that one of the conventional ma-

A fuel pump armature assembly line at a Ford plant, Rawsonville, Mich.

Page 38: sensors, pushbuttons, motor control starters at GE's General Purpose Control Components Operation.

A better solution might be to treat direct labor
as a variable cost when appropriate and to treat it
as a fixed cost when appropriate. For example, assume that actual production was greater than expected and more overtime was worked because of
the increase in production. In calculating direct
42

chine operators will operate the new machine.
Most companies would quantify the annual direct
labor savings as the labor rate for the two displaced operators times two (the number of displaced operators) times the number of hours
worked in a year.
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These same companies have a policy of not laying off employees unless there are extreme circumstances. Therefore, the two displaced operators will be reassigned. The question becomes one
of cost avoidance rather than cost reduction. In
other words, what costs can be avoided by the reassignment of the two operators.
The companies usually address this problem by
assuming their original calculation is correct because two laborers will not have to be hired when
volume increases at some point in the future. This
assumption, however, raises several questions
which may be difficult to answer. When would the
laborers have been hired? If volume never in-

Efficiency often does not mean
optimal productivity.

creases there may never be any labor cost savings.
What is t he labor rate of t he employees that
would have been hired? The labor rate of new employees is likely to be significantly less than the
labor rate of the two original machine operators.
At what volume level will new people be needed?
Because there is no simple method of accurately
quantifying most of these benefits, companies
probably are handling such questions in an optimal manner by not quantifying them. But care
should be exercised to make sure these benefits are
considered subjectively and are properly weighted. Overoptimism can be a problem when subjective decisions are made. Also, giving too much
weight to quantified factors and not giving enough
wei ght to su bj ect ive facto rs are co mmo n
problems.
The benefit that is usually quantified for the
purchase of N/C machines is direct labor cost
savings. At least four issues need to be considered
before this calculation can be made more accurate. First, will there really be direct labor cost
savings? If employees are not laid off and volume
never increases, no direct labor savings will be realized. Second, when will the labor savings occur?
It may be difficult to estimate when the direct labor savings occur because the timing of the increase in volume cannot be accurately predicted.
Third, what is the appropriate labor rate? The labor rate of the displaced operators will probably
not be relevant and the relevant labor rate may be
hard to predict. Fourth, the manager responsible
for buying the N/C machine may not be the same
manager that is responsible for managing the labor force. Measuring the amount of the labor savMANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING/ NOVEMBER 1986

ings will be complicated if one manager makes
savings possible by purchasing an N/C machine
while another manager decides when to hire and
fire operators.
Short Run Versus Long Run
A fourth cost accounting system problem related to N/C machines is that management emphasizes the short run to the detriment of the long
run. This problem is caused primarily by two factors: excessive emphasis on short -run profit and
the use of information that was created for financial accounting purposes for managerial accounting purposes. While the other problems (and possible solutions) in this section have not been well
documented in the cost accounting literature,
overemphasis on the short run has been well documented. What has not been documented is how
this problem relates to N/C machines.
Several managers complained that the cost accounting system caused them to emphasize efficiency rather than productivity in operating their
machines. Company managers use the term "efficiency" to refer to what is measured by the cost
accounting system. Measures used to evaluate machines are usually dominated by machine utilization. Machine utilization is often measured by
comparing the number of hours the machine was
operating with the number of hours the machine
was available. Company managers use the term
"productivity" to refer to what is optimal for the
company. Productivity can include efficiency but
is more general. For example, it may be optimal
for the machine not to be operating.
Too often, emphasis was placed on keeping the
N/C machines running and reducing direct labor
on jobs by running them on the fastest machines.
Not enough emphasis was placed on priority of
orders and getting orders delivered on a timely basis. At the same time, expediting was excessive
and there was more activit y at th e end of the
month than at the beginning of the month.
Efficiency in these companies means keeping
costs down, especially direct labor, or using more
efficient machines to a greater extent. Productivity refers to achieving the goals of the organization. For example, the concept of productivity
would be consistent with producing an order on a
less efficient machine if lost sales would be avoided. Because the cost accounting system never records lost sales but does record both relevant and
irrelevant costs, efficiency is overemphasized.
Another facto r in the overemphasis on the
short run is that the purchase of expensive new
machines may be postponed because the depreciation expense from the new machines is greater
than depreciation from current machines. This
postponement may enhance return on investment
(ROI) in the short run but hurt the company in
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the long run.
Moreover, the useful life of N/C machines that is
used for financial accounting purposes is sometimes
too long. For example, assume an N/C machine is
expected to be sold after six years but a 12 -year life
is used for financial accounting purposes. During
the first six years of the asset's life, depreciation will
he understated and ROI will be overstated. Then after six years, when the machine is no longer useful,
it will be kept to avoid higher depreciation expenses
from a new machine and so that a loss from sale of
the old machine does not have to be shown on the
income statement.
Another short-run factor was that when volume
decreased or was less than expected, managers believed that excessive pressure was put on them to
control costs. Managers believed that the excessive pressure to control costs resulted in inadequate support for N/C machines. One manager
said, "When volume decreases, we do not have the
money to learn how to better utilize the equipment, and when volume increases, we do not have
the time to learn how to better utilize the
equipment."
This problem is exacerbated in the companies
that have longer lead times. This is due to the fact
that temporary declines in volume will have a
weaker relationship with the optimal level of current manufacturing costs as lead time increases.
Current manufacturing costs will be related to future sales. If costs are cut and then demand increases, companies may not be able to respond
quickly enough.
The severity of this overemphasis on the short
run should not be exaggerated. The cost and useful life of N/C machines has forced companies to
emphasize the long run more. Also, companies
that had this problem to a greater extent are no
longer operating. Moreover, there was some evidence of managers taking actions that hurt them
in the short run but helped the company in the
long run. For example, jobs were taken at no profit to penetrate new markets.
A radical solution to overemphasis on the short
run would be to maintain "two sets of books ": one
for financial purposes and one for managerial.
Each set could be completely independent of the
other, The purpose of the managerial accounting
set of books would be accurate, relevant, and cost efficient records for management to ensure that
much better information would be generated for
management.
This "second set of books" would increase emphasis on the long run because the information on
the financial statement is almost entirely short
run. Almost all areas of cost accounting would be
improved, not just information concerning N/C
machines. The disadvantages of a second set of
books would include the cost of developing and
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maintaining a second set of records. Also included
in the disadvantages would be the attitudes of
those people such as external auditors and stockholders who are not provided access to the second
set of records. While this solution has not been
implemented in U.S., it should be pointed out that
some European companies already do keep a second set of books.
Overhead Allocations
A fifth cost accounting system problem related
to N/C machines is that overhead allocations are
not accurate and cause poor decisions. For example, product lines that were profitable have been
dropped because overhead allocations made the
product lines look unprofitable. Managers who
are responsible for manufacturing the product do
not believe that overhead costs are accurate.
Much of this inaccuracy is caused by the commonly used overhead bases of direct labor hours
and direct labor cost. Two symptoms of the problem are extremely high and volatile overhead
rates.
Direct labor is not a good overhead base because overhead costs in manufacturing departments (rather than assembly departments) have
almost no relationship with direct labor. Most of
the overhead costs are tied directly to machines
(e.g., depreciation) or tied indirectly to machines
(e.g., power, N/C programmers, or engineers).
Most managers and cost accountants are aware of
this fact, but they still use direct labor as an overhead base.
One reason for the use of direct labor as an
overhead base is that some people believe machine
hours would not result in significantly different
cost allocations. This reason is often used in companies where most machine operators are assigned
on a one to one basis with machines.
When the number of operators is less than the
number of machines, the differences between direct labor hours and machine hours can be significant. Even in the situation where one person is assigned to operate one machine, direct labor hours
will not necessarily equal machine hours.
Set -up time and machine idle time are both reasons for machine hours not being equal to direct
labor hours. Set -ups require some direct labor
time but no machine time. This is true whether
set -ups are done on line or off line. If a machine is
idle for short periods of time, machine time will be
reduced but the operator will record all of the
time as direct labor. Idle labor time is usually recorded only if it exceeds 15 to 30 minutes. Moreover, the amount of set -up and unrecorded idle
time varies by job. Therefore, not only are the
number of direct labor hours different from machine hours on each job, but, also, the ratio of the
two is different among jobs.
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING/ NOVEMBER 1986

An engineer uses workmaster to monitor a systems check on the
Centraflex 11 660 printing press.

The amount of direct labor causes ano ther
problem when direct labor is used as an overhead
base. Overhead rates are very high because the
amount of direct labor is small. Moreover, what
little direct labor is left may not even be direct
(discussed above). Companies will soon encounter
the situation where, because of unmanned machining, machines are used to manufacture a job
but no direct labor will be used on jobs. If direct
labor is the overhead base, then no overhead
would be allocated to these jobs.
Overhead allocations are inaccurate because the
activity level used to calculate the overhead rate is
hard to forecast and is not usually adjusted more
frequently than every year. This practice causes
fixed overhead to be spread over an incorrect
number of units. For example, assume a price on a
job is being calculated for bidding on that job.
Also, assume that the price is based directly on
cost including an overhead allocation or the price
is determined independently of cost but then
checked against cost to determine profitability. If
the job is not profitable enough, then sometimes
the price is changed. Therefore, the overhead allocation may affect price.
The problem is that the overhead rate is based
on an annual forecast of activity. Once the forecast of activity level is made, the assumption is
that cost and, therefore, price will not alter the
chances of getting jobs. This assumption often will
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING/ NOVEMBER 1986

be incorrect. For example, if activity level does
not include all the jobs that the company should
get next year, then the overhead rate will be overstated, the price on the job will be overstated, and
the chances of getting the job will be lower. Thus,
the forecast of activity level will affect the chances
of getting jobs.
Another factor that causes inaccuracy in overhead allocations is that for many decisions the relevant overhead costs are not recorded and some of
the recorded overhead is irrelevant. The future
costs that the company has to cover in the long
run have not been entered on the books. The future costs will probably be at different amounts
than past costs. Moreover, it would be impossible
to determine which of these costs relate to a given
job. Also, most of the past overhead costs that are
recorded are irrelevant for future decisions. The
best interpretation of overhead allocated to a given job is that it is a crude approximation for the
costs the company has to cover in the long run to
remain operating.
Another reason for inaccuracy of overhead allocations is that some companies use plant -wide or
even company -wide overhead rates, These companies have departments (and plants) which are fundamentally different with respect to how overhead
cost is incurred. The departments have different
activity levels and should have different overhead
bases. Therefore, if companies can determine de45

An operator checks equipment on fuel pump armature assembly line at Ford plant.
(All photos In this article courtesy of General Electric.)

partmental costs accurately, departmental rates script time (the time it should take the machine to
will be more accurate than plant -wide or compa- produce the part). Run time is currently recorded
by machine operators and separated from set -up
ny -wide rates.
Using different overhead bases for different time. Manuscript time is inherent in the N/C protypes of overhead costs within each department gram for man ufactu ri ng t he p art. Therefore,
would be more accurate. For example, the over- manuscript time is known if an N/C program has
head base for machine - related costs could be ma- been written for the part.
In terms of cost, run time would be the least
chine hours and the overhead base for other overcostly
of the three machine times. Actual machine
head costs could be direct labor hours or cost.
time
would
be the most costly and manuscript
Most of the companies have resisted the development of multiple overhead rates on the grounds time would be moderately costly. In terms of acthat they would be too costly to calculate. This curacy, the ranking of the three machine times
argument seems to be getting relatively less im- would probably be the opposite of the cost ranking. Actual machine time would be the most accuportant as automation becomes more prevalent.
The four reasons for inaccurate overhead allo- rate, run time would be the least accurate, and
cations were: the overhead base, relevance of re- manuscript time would fall in between the other
corded costs, activity level, and departmental ver- two. In many companies, all three of these masus plant versus company -wide rates. The solution chine times would be more accurate overhead
to problems caused by using direct labor hours bases than direct labor but also would be more
and cost as an overhead base is to use machine costly.
hours as the overhead base. The trade -off in making this change is that although machine hours Solution: Direct Costing
The second and third reasons for inaccurate
will make overhead allocation more accurate,
overhead
allocations have a common source. The
switching to machine hours will be costly. Keeping track of machine time and educating person- inclusion of fixed overhead as a product cost causes
more irrelevant costs to be related to the product
nel will require money, time, and effort.
In considering this trade -off, management and causes product costs to be inaccurate if the acshould realize that there are several different ma- tivity level is inaccurate. The solution to this probchine times. Besides actual machine time, there is lem would be to use variable (direct) costing.
Only one company included in the study is using
run time (direct labor less set -up time), and manu46
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variable costing. Why have not more companies
changed to variable costing? After all, the advantages and disadvantages of variable costing have
been known for almost 30 years. The answer to this
question is probably too complex to fully explain
here. It is clear, however, that companies should
reconsider the use of variable costing to avoid the
pitfalls of fixed overhead allocation. This advice is
especially true for companies that do not want to
switch to machine hours as an overhead base and
do not want to use departmental rates. Both of
these solutions would make fixed overhead allocations more accurate and probably decrease the
need for variable costing.
The use of variable costing does not totally rule
out the use of absorption (full) costing. For example, the company that uses variable costing still
uses absorption costing for pricing. Because absorption costs still have to be calculated for external purposes, management may want to use absorption costs for some decisions such as long -run
pricing but use variable costing for most internal
decisions.
The fourth reason for this problem was the use
of plant -wide or even company -wide overhead
rates instead of departmental rates. In making this
decision, management faces the same trade -off discussed in connection with overhead bases. Departmental rates would be more accurate (assuming departmental costs can be accurately determined) but
also would be more costly. This has always been
true. However, increased automation of factories
has increased the attractiveness of departmental
rates. Some departments are now populated with
very expensive machines where departmental overhead rates would be high. Other departments with
less expensive machines would have low departmental overhead rates.
If a company uses departmental rates, rates can
be varied by department, and different overhead
bases could be used in different departments. For
example, direct labor could be used in an assembly
department and machine hours coud be used in the
machining departments. The use of multiple overhead bases like the use of multiple overhead rates
should increase accuracy but would also be more
costly.
Performance Measurement
The sixth cost accounting system problem
caused by N/C machines is the difficulty in measuring N/C machine performance. Many reasons
for this problem already have been discussed. The
reasons include the difficulty of quantifying the
benefits of N/C machines and the inseparability
of the cash flows from different machines. Also,
there is difficulty in evaluating machine utilization
using statistics that are intended to evaluate direct
labor (because direct labor hours are not usually
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING /NOVEMBER 1986

equal to machine hours). Moreover, current methods evaluate machines on efficiency rather than
productivity. It is imperative that new measures of
productivity be developed. The first step in doing
this is to determine the purpose of the N/C machines. Does management want the N/C machines operating all the time or do they want machi nes pro d uci n g u n i t s t h at will be sold?
Judgment cannot be totally eliminated from evaluating the performance of N/C machines but the
numbers used to evaluate N/C machines need to
be improved.
Although these six cost accounting system
problems were discussed in relation to N/C machines, other areas of manufacturing technology
may be similarly affected. Flexible manufacturing
systems, computer assisted design, computer assisted manufacturing, heat treating, plating, and

Cost Accounting for
FactoryAutomation
This article is based on research for a new
NAA publication titled Cost Accounting for
Factory Automation. The book will be published in 1987. In addition to Mr. Keys, the
researchers includ e Robert E. Bennett,
CMA, associate professor of accountancy,
Northern Illinois University, James A. Hendricks, professor of accountancy, Northern
Illinois University, and Edward J. Rudnicki,
retired partner — Coopers & Lybrand, graduat e
stud ent — North ern
Il li no is
University.

automated storage and retrieval systems are all
highly automated and may be related to the six
problems.
Two additional points should be made. First,
the people interviewed for the project generally
feel that these cost accounting system problems
did not originate with recent advances in automation. They feel that the problems have been present for some time and have been exposed and
magnified by recent advances in technology. Second, in my opinion the theory underlying the traditional cost accounting system is sound enough
to deal with these problems. For example, I do not
feel that the definitions of direct and indirect or
variable and fixed costs are wrong. However, I do
feel that some costs that have been assigned to one
category need to be reassigned.
O
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Do
WHAT
PRACTICE
EXECUTIVES
ACADEMICS
PREACH?
Most corporations ignore
the capital budgeting techniques
academics consider superior.

By Suk H. Kim, Trevor Crick, and Seung H. Kim
Capital budgeting decisions have become increasingly important in recent years due to unprecedented but fundamental changes in the
U.S. economic system — supply -side economic
policies, deregulation of all major industries,
strong international competition, and rapid advances in technology.
Leading theorists have attempted to deal
more explicitly with the existence of risk in capital bu dgeti ng decis ion s and have su ggested
the application of various management science
or operat ion res earch tech ni ques to cap it al
budgeting problems, To find out if major corporations are listening to what the theorists are
prescribing, we surveyed chief financial officers
of all corporations on the 1985 Fortune 1000
list. Representatives of 367 corporations completed and returned the questionnaire (vice
presidents of finance /directors of finance department (45 %), treasurer /controllers (26 %),
managers of corporation development or corporation appropriations (12 %), and other positions /positions unidentified (17 %)).'
We compared the resul ts of ou r s urvey to
four other studies with similar survey characteristics (Table 1). These studies — although they
reveal some differences — indicate an increasing us e of disco unted cash flow to measure
rate of return and present worth in investment
MANAGEMENTACCOUNTING/NOVEMBER 1986

decisions. These same capital budgeting surveys suggest that capital budgeting methods
un der u ncert ain ty an d man agemen t s ci en ce
techniques are not widely used. In addition, the
studies do not show a clear trend toward the
techniques that academicians heavily favor.
Theory vs. Practice
THEORY:
Business firms should use discounted cash flow
techniques for ranking and selecting their invest-
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method than rules of thu m b, but they are less
popular as a secondary m ethod.
Overall, 48% of the firm s exclusively u se either
the internal rate of return or the net present value
as a prim ary m easure wit hout using t he accounting rate of return or payback. Alm ost 83% use at
least one of the discounted cash -flow techniques
as a prim ary tool of analysis. Mo r e t ha n 90% o f
the firm s reported that they em ploy at least one of
the discounted cash -flow methods as a prim ary
method or a secondary method, or both. Theorists
and practitioners seem to agree on capital budget-

ment projects because these methods clearly recognize the time value of money and also employ the
cash flows of a project over its entire life span.

Companies
prefer
discounted
cash -flow
methods when
evaluating
major
in vestmen t
projects.

PRACTICE:
We asked th e resp o n d en ts to indicate the capital bu dgeting tech niqu es th ey u se most frequently:
acco u n tin g rate o f re tu rn , pay back, internal rate
o f retu rn , o r n et p resen t valu e (Table 2). Clearly,
discou nted cash -flow m eth od s are preferred when
evalu atin g m ajo r in vestm en t p ro jects. Forty -nine
percen t use th e intern al rate o f return as a prim ary evalu atio n m eth o d; an o th er 21% select the net
presen t valu e as th eir p rim ary technique. Thirty five percen t of th e resp o nd en ts identified payback
as their secon dary criterio n; p ay back was followed
by th e net present value (24 %) and accounting
rate o f retu rn (19 %). Th us, d iscounted cash -flow
ap p r o ac h es ap p ea r m o re p o p u lar as the primary

ing techniques.
THEORY:

Businesses should use either probability theory or
sensitivity analysis to determine the amount of project risk because these two methods are, in theory,
scientific.

Table 1
Trends In Use of Quantitative Tools in Capital Budgeting
Quantitative Tools
1959

1964

1970

1971

42

40

34

26

18

31

30

28

7

16

22

6

15
4
1

18

53

2

3

26
11
6
7

7
4

7

13
28

22

10
21
4

18
24

1977

1979

17

9

11

25

14
9

30

13

22

33
3

40
13

39
3

7
7

13
25

8
8

1975

Current
Study
0985.

1. Evaluation Method
A.Primary Method'

-

11

12
2

13
43

-

-

1

3
2

26

14
19
3
3

7
29

12

9

13
7

3

9
4
3

10
11
6

28
17

19
12

5

8

-

13

23

4
16

19
7

11
7

'

-

-

-

-

-

-

4

7

-

4

27

-

-

-

1

3
1

120
23

25
31

_

9

16

5

10

45

-

7

is

-

2

27
33
21

-

9
12

9

-

Accounting ROR
IRR
NPV
B.Secondary Method"
Payback
Accounting ROR
IRR
NPV
2. Risk Assessment'"
Probability theory
Sensitivity analysis
3. RiskAdjustment"
Shortening payback
Risk - adjusted discount rate
Utility theory
Certainty equivalent
4. Management Science Techniques"
Decision theory
Non - linear programming
Game theoryr
PERT /critical path
Linear programming
Goal programming

-

Payback

Management,

'All percentages shown are percentages of total responses for only four techniques: payback, accounting rate of retum,nfiernal rate of re
turn, and net present value.
"All percentages shown are percentages of total respondents (367 firms)
Sources:
James M. Fremgen, "Capital Budgeting Practices: A Survey," ManagementAccounting,May 1973.1awrence J. Gitman and John R.
Forrester, "A Survey of Capital Budgeting Techniques Used by Major U.S. Firms, "Financial
Fall 1977.
Suk H. Kim and Edward J. Farragher, "Current Capital Budgeting Practices," Management Accounting,June 1981.
Thomas Klammer, 'Empirical Evidence of the Adoption of Sophisticated Capital Budgeting Techniques," Journal of Business, July 1972.
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THEORY:
Business firms should use either the risk- adjusted discount rate or the certainty equivalent approach to adjust project estimates for risk because
these two methods are sophisticated.
PRACTICE:
Despite the relative popularity of the risk -adjusted discount rate, there is still a considerable
gap between theory and practice in the area of adjusting for project risk. Risk - adjusted discount
rate and certainty equivalent approach are frequently made arbitrarily, and the time pattern of
risk variables is ignored. Nevertheless, they are
the theoretically prescribed techniques. But our
survey showed that only 124 firms, or 34 %, use
these methods.
Utility theory describes risk -return trade -off in
terms of preference. Once risk -return preferences
are given, capital budgeting analysts are in the position to adjust project estimates for risk. The risk adjusted discount rate and the certainty equivalent appro ach are two theoreti cally superior
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING/NOVEMBER 1986

Table 2
Capital Budgeting Techniques Used by Respondents
Technique
Payback period
Accounting rate of return
Internal rate of return
Net present value
Others
Total responses'

Primary Method
19%
8
49
21
3
100° /
a

PRACTICE:
Only 116 firms or 32% use at least one of the
two risk assessment techniques academicians advocate: probability theory and sensitivity analysis.
Most firms ignore risk completely or assess it subjectively. To make our discussion simple, we define "probability theory" to include standard deviation (variance), the coefficient of variation,
semivari ance, d ecision trees, and co mp ut er
simulation.
When business firms evaluate investment projects under uncertainty, they can use two measures: index of expected value and index of risk.
The internal rate of return, net present value, payback, or the accounting rate of return could be
used to measure the expected value of a project.
There are a variety of theoretically prescribed
methods to determine the amount of project risk:
standard deviation, variance, semivariance, the
coefficient of variation, decision trees, computer
simulation, and sensitivity analysis. The expected
value of a project and its relative risk do not indicate whether the project should be accepted or rejected, although they provide valuable information for effective capital budgeting decisions.
We asked firms to indicate the risk assessment
techniques they use most frequently. Their responses to this question are shown in Table 2.
Over 70% of the respondents reported that they
either ignore risk or assess it subjectively. Twenty seven percent of the respondents use sensitivity
analysis exclusively or in combination with other
risk assessment methods. They did not often use
other quantitative risk assessment techniques even
though academic writers favor them.

Secondary Method
35%
19

is
24
7
100%

Risk Assessment Techniques Used by Respondents
Technique_

Number of Firms

Percentage

No method is used
77
21%
Risk is determined subjectively
190
52
Standard deviation (variance)
4
is
Coefficient of variation
4
1
Semivariance
0
0
Decision trees
11
3
Computer simulation
26
7
Sensitivity analysis
99
27
Others
36
10
The 367 firms made 587 responses with respect to the primary method and 469
responses with respect to the secondary method. Thus, the figures represent the
percentages of times a given capital budgeting technique was mentioned.

Risk Adjustment Techniques Used by Respondents
Technique
No adjustment is made
Adjustment is made subjectively
Certainty equivalent approach
Risk - adjusted discount rate
Shortening payback period
Utility theory
Others

Number of Firms
51
176
26
106
26
4
15

Percentage
14%
48
7
2g
7
1
4,

Management Science Techniques Used by Respondents
Technique
Decision theory
Linear programming
Non - linear programming
Game theory
PERT /critical path
Goal programming

Number of Firms
33
40
11
15
59
26

Percentage
9%
11
3
4
16
7

methods that are commonly used to incorporate
risk into investment analysis.
Table 2 presents the methods of adjusting project estimates for risk. Eighty -six percent of the respondents claimed that their firms made an allowance for different levels of risk in investment
projects, while the remaining 14% said they made
no adjustment for risk. However, most firms adjusted project estimates for risk subjectively or by
shortening the acceptable payback period. The
risk- adjusted discount rate was relatively popular
in practice with a usage rate of 29 %. Such a popu51

The rational
use of capital
resources is
critical to the
future wellbeing of a
company as
well as the
economy.

larity for the risk adjusted discount rate is not surprising because of its easy application. Several
studies, moreover, have confirmed its popular
practice (Table 1).
THEORY:

Business firms should implement management
science techniques because they provide a basis for
effective investment decisions.
PRACTICE:

Very few companies actually use capital budgeting analysis: decision theory, linear program-

Table 3
Factors Affecting a Choice Between NPV and IRR
Percent of
Total Response

Factors
1. NPV is easier to compute
2. NPV is consistent with the firm's value maximization
goal
3. Reinvestment rate under NPV is more realistic
4. A single project may have more than one IRR
5. A project's IRR remains constant over its entire life
6. IRR is easier to visualize and to interpret
7. IRR does not require the prior computation of the cost
of capital
8. Executives am more comfortable with IRR
Total responses

6%
13
7
2
1

20
1
34
1000/ 0

ming, non - linear programming, game theory,
PERT, and goal programming in their capital
budgeting process (Table 2).
THEORY:

Net present value is better than the internal rate
of return for a number of'reasons. Net present value is easier to compute than the internal rate of
return. Second, if the primary goal of a firm is to
maximize its value, net present value leads to correct decisions, while internal rate oj* return may
lead to incorrect decisions. Third, a single project
has only one net present value at a particular rate
of discount, though the same project may have
more than one internal rate of return. Fourth, once
computed, the internal rate of return remains constant over the entire life of the project. But uneven
discount rates present no problems when net present value is used. Finally, the implied reinvestment rate under net present value approximates the
opportunity cost for reinvestment, but the implied
reinvestment rate under the internal rate of return
does not.
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dents to check only one of three techniques used
most frequently by them: the net present value,
the internal rate of return, and other methods. We
asked, moreover, that they indicate the reasons for
using a particular capital budgeting technique.
Sixty -two percent of the respondents use the internal rate of return, 26% employ the net present
value, and the remaining 12% use other methods.
Executives gave a variety of reasons for selecting net present value or internal rate of return
(Table 3). The first five reasons were cited by corporations that use the net present value, while the
last three reasons were cited by companies that
use the internal rate of return. Overall, the first
five reasons accounted for 29% of the total responses, while the last three reasons amounted to
71%.
Thirteen percent of the respondents favor net
present value because they believe it is superior in
max imizin g th e val ue o f a fi rm (stockholder
wealth). Thirty -four percent favor internal rate of
return because business executives are more comfortable with the internal rate of return than the
net present value.
Internal rate of return has certain advantages
although net present value is superior theoretically. First, internal rate of return is easier to visualize and interpret because it is identical with the
yield to the maturity of bonds or other securities.
Second, we do not need to specify a required rate
of return in the computations. In other words, internal rate of return does not require prior computation of the cost of capital. However, the popularity of internal rate of return seems to be in part
psychological. The most important reason given
by 34% of the respondents for using the internal
rate of return is its intuitive appeal. Finance literature has argued persuasively that net present value is superior, even though internal rate of return
is more often practiced.
The Right Decision

PRACTICE:

Major U.S. firms are not yet convinced why
they should pract ice what academic writers
preach. State -of -the -art analytical techniques for
the capital investment decision- making process
are not used by most executives.
We expect this will change, however, as more
efficient personal computers and standardized
computer programs become available. Risk assessment, risk adjustment, management science techniques, and net present value as opposed to internal rate of return —will be used more frequently
and improve the management accountant's ability
to make the right investment decision.

The popularity of the internal rate of return is
due to its psychological and intuitive appeal.
To isolate specific reasons for using a particular
capital budgeting technique, we asked the respon-

This response rate of 37% is relatively high for a voluntary survey and reduces the
likelihood of nonrespunse bias. Nonresponse bias would suggest a difference between captial budgeting practices of respondents and nonrespondents. We performed a follow -up telephone survey with 20 nonrespondents to determine whether
they were biased by a lack of knowledge on capital budgeting. This follow -up revealed no significant nonresponse bias.
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Should LIFOLiquidated Inventories
Be Replaced

Conventional wisdom says to do it
before year -end to avoid increased
taxes, but depletion may be justified
according to a new analysis.

By Richard L. Rogers and Jerrold J. Stern
Since the late 1960s, hundreds of corporations
have adopted the last -in first -out (LIFO) method
of inventory valuation. The movement toward
LIFO has accelerated during the last eight years
because the Internal Revenue Service began permitting LIF O ado pti ons without extensive
justification.
The traditional rationale for using LIFO has
been that it allows corporations to include their
most recent inventory acquisition costs in the cost
of goods sold. In this manner, current inventory
acquisition costs are matched with revenue. During inflationary periods, LIFO leads to a higher
cost of goods sold amount and a corresponding
lower balance in the ending inventory account. As
a result, gross margin and taxable income are lower, which means the company also pays less tax.
The tax savings becomes a source of cash inflow
for the company. Not surprisingly, a large number
of companies have chosen this tax break.
Unfortunately, LIFO may not be a costless tax
MANAGEMENTACCOUNTINGINOVEMBER 1986

savings, While a company is permitted to match
its most recent inventory acquisition costs with
revenue, it also must assign older, presumably
lower, costs to the balance sheet inventory account. These lower costs will have no bearing
upon financial accounting profitability or federal
income tax liability unless a liquidation of inventory occurs —if, for example, actual physical inventories begin to be depleted and remain partially or completely depleted at year -end. What are
the tax consequences of such an inventory
liquidation?
Taxes May Increase
The liquidation of previously established LIFO
inventory layers can be costly from a tax perspective. For example: Assume current inventory for a
company is composed of units that cost $10 each.
Further assume that the current purchase price of
a unit is $30, and the company in turn sells the
unit for $35. The profit margin —and taxable income —from a sale is currently $5/unit ($35 minus $30) based on matching the most recent acquisition cost with the current sale price. If the
company were in the 46% corporate tax bracket,
the $5 /unit income would result in a tax liability
of $2.30 /unit sold.
Now assume the company sells all of its inventory and does not replace it before year -end. In
that case, the company would be described as having liquidated the $10 /unit LIFO inventory layer.
Rat her th an matching a $30 inventory cost
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against revenue, it would be required to match a example shows how. Following the case example,
$10 cost against the $35 selling price. The profit an algebraic decision model is identified, disand taxable income from this calculation is $25/ cussed, then used to generate a decision table useunit. This $25/unit income leads to a tax liability ful to managers facing a year -end LIFO layer liqof $11.50/unit, which is $9.20 higher than the uidation problem. Finally, other issues associated
$2.30/unit tax from selling inventory costed at with the LIFO replacement problem are noted.
$30/unit. The large tax liability is tantamount to a
The Case of Venus Candy
penalty and is the result of all the years of tax savConsider Venus Candy, Inc., a fictitious firm
ings permitted by the LIFO method.
Because of this tax cost, few profitable compa- that produces various types of candy and employs
nies permit their ending inventory to be eroded. the LIFO inventory method. As a basic part of
Under certain circumstances, however, the deple- inventory, Venus maintains a significant supply of
tion of LIFO inventory layers without replace- cocoa imported from South America. Because of
ment prior to year -end actually may be cost justi- dramatic price fluctuations that occur periodically
in the cocoa market, Venus's policy is to deplete
fied despite the sizable tax increase.
Companies using the LIFO inventory method its cocoa reserves during periods of unusually
may have to make an important decision toward high cocoa prices rather than incur exorbitant inyear -end. If one or more LIFO layers have been ventory costs. The last six months have been a

Companies should keep in mind that they
still could face the LIFO liquidation problem again
next year.
depleted during the year and are not replaced before the year ends, the company's tax liability
most likely will be increased as a result of inventory holding gains that have accumulated over
time. Assuming the company does not want to deplete its inventory permanently, it must purchase
some, either by year -end or during the next tax
year.
Expectations for future price increases typically
are positive during periods of inflation, so conventional wisdom has favored the replacement of
LIFO layers by year -end to avoid the negative tax
impact. In addition to the tax savings, this decision has intuitive appeal because an inventory
purchase at today's prices may forestall payment
of higher amounts in the future.
Changing with the Times
Expectations of future hyperinflation have declined recently. Moreover, a number of industries
have been experiencing sporadic price decreases in
their inventory costs. For example, markets for
petroleum products and electronic equipment
have benefited from these price decreases. As a result, conditions favoring conventional wisdom
may no longer exist. Routine replacement of
LIFO layers at year -end may be undesirable now
despite short -term tax savings.
There is a way to time LIFO layer replacement
that explicitly accounts for tax costs as well as future inventory price declines. An extensive case
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case in point. Cocoa prices have climbed to record
levels because of poor weather throughout last
year's growing season. As a result, Venus has been
relying solely on its cocoa reserves instead of buying cocoa in the open market, depleting LIFO
cost layers more than 10 years old.
Venus is just a short time away from its yearend, and the tax consequences of not replacing the
LIFO layers of cocoa inventory before year -end
are material. Venus will have to pay approximately $10 million additional tax if it doesn't buy
enough cocoa to replace the eroded LIFO layers.
The replacement cost of the needed inventory is
currently $30 million_ As a further complication,
the weather has turned favorable in South America, and cocoa prices are expected to come down
substantially during the new few months.
Table 1 shows the various assumptions and
computations associated with Venus's inventory
replacement problem. As illustrated, the tax burden of not replacing the inventory is $9.66 million. Alternatively, this amount can be considered
a tax savings received for replacing the inventory
before year -end. (For ease of discussion, we will
continue to refer to the tax savings amount as $10
million.)
The decision regarding the timing of inventory
replacement is dependent on three key variables:
(a) the tax burden for not replacing the inventory
before year -end, (b) the present purchase price of
inventory replacement, and (c) the estimated fuMANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING /NOVEMBER 1986

Table 1
Venus Candy, Inc.
Inventory Replacement Problem
Not Replacing
Inventory

Replacing
Inventory

(000,000)

(000,000)

200

$200

Sales
Cost of goods sold:
Beginning inventory
(4,000,000 units' $3)

The only key variable requiring calculation is
the tax cost of not replacing the LIFO layers. The
tax cost element is determined by the firm's marginal tax rate as well as the relationship between
the historical inventory cost per unit of the LIFO
layers and the current replacement cost per unit.
The following equation shows how the relative
values of the tax and other significant variables affect the LIFO layer replacement decision:

@

Purchases through 12/15/84
(10,000,000 units $8)

$

@

A Decision Model

$

ture purchase price of the inventory. By combining the first two variables, the net cost of purchasing the cocoa immediately is $20 million ($30
million purchase price less $10 million tax savings). The inventory acquisition decision would be
made by comparing the estimated future cost of
cocoa with the $20 million net cost of a current
purchase. If Venus expects to purchase the necessary cocoa next year for less than $20 million, the
optimal decision would be to buy it then. Otherwise, a current purchase would be appropriate.'

12

$12

80

80

92

30
122

@

Year -end LIFO replacement
purchase
(3,000,000 units $10)

@

-

Ending inventory
Without replacement purchase
(1,000,000 units $3)
3

Po - (Po-H)t = P,

When the conditions of this equation are satisfied—in other words, the left side of the equation
equals the right side of the equation— management would be indifferent between replacing inventory now versus waiting until the following tax
year. The first term on the left side of the equation, Po, is the current purchase price per unit of
inventory. The second term, (Po-H)t, represents
the tax savings per unit from replacing the LIFO
inventory prior to year -end. Thus, by subtracting
the second term from the first term, the result is
the after -tax cost of replacing the inventory before
year -end. A point of indifference is reached when
this after -tax cost is equivalent to the per unit purchase price of inventory in the next period (P, in
the equation).'
Perhaps it would be helpful to further explain
term (Po -H)t. When replacement inventory is
purchased currently at a price higher than the
original LIFO cost, part of the cost of the replacement inventory is retained in ending inventory
while the balance is transferred to cost of goods
sold. The portion that remains in ending inventory is equal to the original cost of the LIFO layer. In Venus's case, the current price of the reMANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING /NOVEMBER 1986

Cost of goods sold

89

Increase taxable income
from sales of cocoa

$111

Increase in tax liability
at 46% bracket from
sales of cocoa

51.06

110

in

$90
.

Purchase price per unit of inventory currently (at time O)
Historical cost per unit of LIFO
inventory
Marginal tax rate of the firm
Purchase price per unit of inventory next tax year (at time 1)

$

=

=

@

12

Decrease in tax liability
due to LIFO inventory
replacement (000,000)
'A

$51.06-$41,40=$9.66
=

t
P,

=

H

=

where:
Po

With replacement purchase
(4,000,000 units $3)

unit represents a sack of approximately eight pounds of cocoa.

placement inventory is $10 per unit. O f this $10
amount, $3 per unit is incorporated into ending
inventory. The remaining $7 becomes part of cost
of goods sold and provides a tax savings at Venus's marginal tax bracket level (46 %). Thus, the
tax savings per unit of replacement inventory for
Venus is $3.22 (46 % of $7). Given the tax savings
per unit, the total tax savings of $9.66 million
computed earlier can be derived directly by multiplying the $3.22 tax savings per unit by the number of units involved —three million.
Once the tax savings is determined, the only
step remaining is to subtract it from the current
replacement cost per unit to identify the indifference point. For Venus, the after -tax cost per unit
of inventory replacement is $6.78 ($10 less $3.22).
Therefore, if Venus expects the future price of cocoa to be less than $6.78 per unit, the optimal decision would be to postpone inventory replace55

ment. A forecasted future purchase price of more
than $6.78 would indicate that replacing inventory currently is the appropriate action,
Making a Logical Decision
The equation presented earlier describes an interesting relationship between the current and future purchase prices of replacement inventory, the
marginal tax rate, and the historical cost of the
LIFO layers. As the basic elements of the equation vary, all relationships are redefined in a logi-

Table 2
Percentage Decline in Future Inventory Price
Marginal Tax Rate'
15%

C/R

Ratio

10% 13.5
20 12.0
30 10.5
40
9.0
50
7.5
60
6.0
70
4.5
80
3.0
90
1.5
100
0.0

18

30

34

40

46

50

16.2
14.4
12.6
10.8
9.0
7.2
5.4
3.6
1.8
0.0

27.0
24.0
21.0
18.0
15.0
12.0
9.0
6.0
3.0
0.0

30.6
27.2
23.8
20.4
17.0
13.6
10.2
6.8
3.4
0.0

36.0
32.0
28.0
24.0
20.0
16.0
12.0
8.0
4.0
0.0

41.4
36.8
32.2
27.6
23.0
18.4
13.8
9.2
4.6
0.0

45.0
40.0
35.0
30.0
25.0
20.0
15.0
10.0
5.0
0.0

'The marginal tax rates displayed consist ofeach of the current corporate tax
brackets. In addition, the 50% bracket and the proposed 34% maximum
marginal corporate bracket also are included.
"The C/R ratio is the historical cost per unit of the LI FOlayer (C) divided by
the current replacement cost per unit of the inventory (R).

cal and predictable manner. We have taken advantage of this characteristic of the equation in
order to generate Table 2. The table displays the
percentage decline in future inventory prices
(PDFIP) that is necessary for a manager to be indifferent between replacing the LIFO layers prior
to year -end versus in the next tax year.
In order to use Table 2, a manager first. must
know the marginal tax rate of the company (top
line of Table 2) and the C/R ratio (left side of Table 2). The C/R ratio is the relationship between
the historical cost per unit of the LIFO layer (C)
and the current replacement cost per unit of that
inventory (R). Once a manager knows these figures, he can use the table to identify the PDFIP.
Taking the above example, the historical cost of
the LIFO layers for Venus is $3 per unit, and the
current replacement cost is $10 per unit. Thus the
C/R ratio is 30% ($3 divided by $10). With a
marginal tax rate of 46 %, Table 2 indicates that
the replacement cost of inventory would have to
56

drop by 32.2 %, or from $10 to $6.78, before Venus's management would be indifferent between
an inventory replacement purchase now versus after year -end. If Venus's management forecasts future prices to decline by less than 32.2 %, the company should purchase replacement inventory
before year -end. If a price drop of more t han
32,2% is predicted, management should acquire
the inventory after the price decline.
In general, at a given marginal tax rate, the
PDFIP declines as the C/R ratio increases because the tax savings of a current inventory purchase declines as more and more of the cost of
that inventory remains in ending inventory instead of being transferred to the cost of goods
sold. (See Table 2.) Thus, with declining tax savings, future inventory price decreases may be relatively small and still cause management to prefer
a future purchase. Conversely, as the C/R ratio
decreases, a larger portion of the purchase price of
inventory becomes part of cost of goods sold, allowing a larger tax savings to be realized. The
larger the tax savings from a current purchase, the
larger the PDFIP must be for a manager to prefer
a future purchase.
Table 2 also shows that for a given C/R ratio
the PDFIP decreases as the tax bracket decreases.
Such a decline enhances the likelihood for favoring a future purchase and is particularly noteworthy in light of recently proposed tax reform plans.
The tax proposal agreed upon by the House /Senate Conference Committee calls for a drop in the
top corporate tax bracket to 34 %. As noted earlier, the cu r re n t top b rack et is 4 6 % for
corporations.
The reason for the tax rate relationship is that
the tax savings from a current purchase decreases
as the marginal tax bracket decreases - because of
lower tax savings generated by the portion of the
inventory purchase which increases the cost of
goods sold. The PDFIP therefore falls to reflect
this decline in the tax savings. For example, a firm
with a marginal tax bracket of 46% and a C/R
ratio of 50% would need more than a 23% decline in future inventory price to decide to defer
replacement. If the current replacement cost of inventory for such a company is $100 per unit and
the LIFO layer cost is $50 per unit, it would be
optimal to replace inventory next year as long as
the replacement cost drops below $77 ($100 minus 23 %n of $100). However, if the firm's tax
bracket were cut to 34 %, it would take no more
than a 17% decline in inventory prices before a
future inventory replacement would be optimal.
The decrease in the PDFIP from 23% to 17% results from the decreased tax savings caused by the
drop in the marginal tax bracket.
Another interesting aspect of Table 2 is the
wide range of future inventory price declines that
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING /NOVEMBER 1986

%n

could cause a manager to prefer a future purchase.
While some PDFIPs are at the 30% and 40 levels, almost half (28 out of 70) are below 10 %.
Therefore, some companies that forecast only
moderate inventory price declines can benefit
from a future purchase.
Replacing Multiple Layers of LIFO
The p revio us ex ample illustrated only one
LIFO cost layer. Extend this analysis to consider
the additional problem of multiple LIFO layers, If
confronted by multiple LIFO layer erosions, the
decision maker should create a separate computation for each layer.
For example, assume a company has one LIFO
layer with an average cost of $3 per unit and a
second, more recent, layer at $6 per unit. Further
assume the current replacement cost is $10 per

into the model, a company would treat each one
as an adjustment to the cost of either a current or
future inventory replacement. Forecasting is yet
another dimension that could be brought into the
model. For example, the use of monte Carlo or
some other simulation technique could be employed in estimating the future purchase price of
inventory, carrying costs, stockout costs, and even
the corporation's tax rate, depending on the degree of the uncertainty.
Even when these factors are taken into account,
the nature of the basic relationships within the
model (equation) would not change. An indifference point still would be reached when the aftertax cost of a current inventory purchase is equal
to the cost of a purchase during the next tax year,
regardless of the level of sophistication in the
computations.

Sometimes the depletion of LIFO inventory
layers without replacement before year -end may be
cost justified despite a sizable tax increase.

A number of factors could be added to the decision model to increase its precision. The time value of money could be taken into account, particularly with regard to the future price of inventory.
A purchase price of $20 per unit to be paid currently is more expensive in terms of present value
than the same price paid three months hence. Carrying costs, stockout costs, and other elements of
inventory control models also could be included
in the decision process. To incorporate these costs
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING /NOVEMBER 1986

'The time value of money is not included in this analysis. The importance of this
concept is dependent mainly upon the amoam of time separating current versus
future purchases. As the time span becomes shorter, the need for present value
analysis decreases. The use of present value analysis in the context of inventory
replacement is mentioned at the end of the article.
Hedging is another factor that should be noted. For industries that can purchase
options to hedge against the risk of inventory price flucruatton, the benefits and
costs associated with hedging would be included in the analysis. The basic relationships of the model discussed later in this article, however, would remain the same
whether or not hedging were used.
'Note that P, is
adjusted for taxes. The reason is that the
cost of the
replacement inventory remains in ending inventory, and none of it is transferred to
cast of goods sold at the end of the next tax year (under the assumption that the
firm does not decide to reduce year -end inventory levels). Thus, there is no immedi.
ale direct tax benefit when the replacement inventory is purchased to the following
as year.
entire

Other Factors to Consider

Managers should not overlook the likelihood of
facing the LIFO liquidation problem again the
following year. When a company decides to replace inventory before year -end, the inventory is
assigned the original LIFO layer cost. Therefore,
the potential for a LIFO liquidation problem may
be faced again another year. If a firm defers replacement until the next period, however, the cost
assigned to the most recent LIFO layer will be at
current dollars, thereby removing the tax burden
associated with future LIFO liquidation.
We have suggested that the conventional wisdom for LIFO layer replacement decisions may
not always be appropriate. Given the marginal tax
rate of a company and the current cost structure
of LIFO inventory, managers may find it better to
delay replacing inventory if future price declines
are forecasted. By using our simple algebraic
model and decision chart, managers can easily
calculate the indifference point appropriate for
LIFO inventory replacement and then make their
decision.

not

unit and the marginal tax rate is 46 %. The C/R
ratio for the newer layer is .60 ($6 =$10) and is
.3 0 ($3 - $10) for the older layer. Using Table 2
for the newer layer, inventory replacement should
be postponed if the company forecasts a price decrease of more than 18.4 %. If the older LIFO layer also has been eroded, the company should postpone replacement if it forecasts a price decrease of
more than 32.2 %, according to Table 2. Assume
the company forecasts that the future cost of inventory replacement will decline by 30 % —a decline to $7 from $10. In this scenario, the company should replace the older layer before year -end
because the forecast price decline will not offset
the tax savings from that replacement. Conversely, the company should wait until the following
tax year to replace the newer layer because the
price decline would be larger than the tax savings
from replacement before year -end.
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By John W. Hardy, Bryce B. Orton,
and J. Weldon Moffit
ONUS SYSTEMS USUALLY HAVE
been established to provide a motivational incentive for improved performance by
managers_ A common hypothesis is that a motivated manager will work hard to achieve company objectives and improve profits. The use of a bonus system as a significant part of the total pay
package is a widespread practice. Many organizations have developed a bonus system that is related in some way to performance and other considerations important to management.
Managers have raised some questions regarding
their bonus system that probably need more intensive exploration. Such questions are: Does their
particular bonus system motivate managers to more effective performance? What factors are meas ured in their
own bonus system? Are the
factors those which the man agers' efforts can impact significantly? Should factors other than performance, such as
perceived potential
the
organization,
also be with
factored
%

B

into the bonus program? Does

Br ®r-`,
r

J S' Y J

o

,

the bon us sys tem have s ome negati ve con sequences for the organization? What would managers prefer as th e bas is fo r an effective bonus
system?
We conducted a study of the effective use of
management bonus systems in retailing organizations. While the study was limited to retailing, the
results and the suggestions made for development
of effective bonus systems have wide application.
Conducting the Study
Following interviews with a limited sample of
store managers and organization management, a
questionnaire was developed and distributed to
store managers within three retailing organizations in different geographical areas of the United
States. All three organizations were involved in a
similar business, though varying in size as well as geographic location. The questionnaire consisted of three
parts. One section examined
managers' perceptions of motivational aspects of their bonus system. A second section
examined the degree of perceived control over variables
frequently measured in bonus
sy stems. Th e th ird section

JMX
I

MOT/VATE

But they should be ba sed upon objectively mea surable factors that are controllable by mana gers.

the response is in the direction of "to a very great
extent." A positive Z score signifies the response
is in the direction of "to a very little extent."
Impact of Bonus on Store Managers'
Performance
Figure 1 illustrates the Z score results in graph
form. In the response to question 2, the managers
report that putting forth more effort is not seen as
significantly relevant to the performance measures
used in their bonus system. The Z score of —1.68 is
in the expected direction but does not reach the
significant level. In interviews, managers suggested that external factors to the management of the
store and the skill and experience of the manager
are probably more important than the effort the
manager puts forth. The bo nus ap pears to be
highly valued by the managers as evidenced by a
Z score of —5.17 for question 3. In addition to the
monetary reward it seems likely that it is a measure of achievement and recognition for the
manager.
Do the managers see a close tie between their
performance and the size of their bonus? The response to question 4 is in the direction of "to a
very great extent," but does not achieve significant levels (Z- score, — 1,79).The managers, however, generally regarded the bonus as a reflection of
performance (Z- score, — 2.50). An examination of
the scores by an individual store, and hence of the
bonus system, indicates that the nature of the bonus system may be the major determinant of this
perception.

Bryce B. Orton. Ph.D.,
is a professor, School
of Accountancy,
Graduate School of
Management, Brigham
Young University. He
also a member of
the Salt Lake Area
Chapter.

Perceived Fairness of Bonus System

The last factor of the motivation model we explored was the perceived fairness of the perfor• The value placed on the bonus by the managers; mance measures used in determining the bonus.
• The expectation that greater effort would result For question 6, the Z -score of —2.46 does achieve
in higher performance for the store;
significance, indicating a generally perceived fair• The expectation that higher performance by the ness. In store A (Z- score, —.85), however, the
store would result in a larger bonus; and
managers said that the bonus was not a good mea• The expectation that the bonus is administered sure of performance but saw the performance
fairly.
measures as significantly fair (Z- score, — 2.07).
To summarize, it appears that the managers do
To the degree that these conditions are met, the see the bonus system as an important incentive for
bonus system is assumed to be motivating to the motivation to higher performance. However, putstore manager. Each factor was presented on a Li- ting forth more effort is not seen as a significant
kert five - points scale.
determinant of store performance, nor do managZ scores were computed to test for significant ers see a close tie between the store performance
differences in the responses of managers. The Z and the size of the bonus. There appears to be a
score was considered significant if it was greater significant difference between organizations in rethan +/— 1.96, which is at the 5% confidence lev- spect to both effort and performance ties to the
el. For scoring, the categories "to a very little ex- bonus. To a significant degree, all organizations
tent" and "to a little extent" were grouped togeth- perceived that the bonus system was administered
er a n d were co n s i dered to rep res en t low fairly.
motivation. The "to a very great extent" categoIf the total pay package was tied to store perforries were grouped and were considered to repre- mance, store B viewed this as motivational (Zsent high motivation. A negative Z score signifies score, — 2.07). If the bonus was paid more freMANAGEMENTACCOUNTING/NOVEMBER 1986
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is

was directed to what store managers think should
be in an effective bonus system.
Retail store A is a small retail chain based primarily in California. Sales in 1984 were $55 million and there were a total of 26 stores in the
chain. Store A began its operation by acquiring
unprofitable stores from another major retail
chain. The bonus plan for store managers was primarily based on the bottom line net income for
the store. Twelve store managers responded to the
questionnaire.
Retail store B is a mid -sized retail chain based
in the western United States. Sales in 1984 were
$718 million with a total of 143 stores in the
chain. Store B had a formal bonus program. The
bonus program was based primarily on bottom line net income. However, top management made
a subjective evaluation of the incentive a manager
might need to receive in recognition of experience,
the location of the store, or other subjective factors. Twenty store managers responded to the
questionnaire.
Retail store C has a chain of 785 stores in the
eastern United States. Sales in 1984 were approximately $1.4 million. Chain A had a formal bonus
program which was based on sales, controllable
profit (profit before home office allocations), payroll of the store, inventory turnover, and an evaluation of the store manager's role as a manager in
such areas as customer service, security, and administration. Thirty -six store managers responded
to the questionnaire.
To obtain the data regarding managers' perceptions of motivational variables, we have used the
expectancy theory model developed by Porter and
Lawler to identify significant factors:
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Ph.D., is a professor,
Department of
Organizational
Behavior, Graduate
School of
Management, Brigham
Young University.
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Figure 1
The Impact of Bonus Systems on Performance as Perceived by Managers

To a
Very Little Extent

1. To what extent are you able to control the
following factors which are often used as
measures of store performance:
a. Sales
b. Payroll
c. Inventory
d. Meeting budget
e. Gross profit
I. Net income before depreciation and corporate headquarters allocation (controllable profit)

To a
Little Extent

To a
Great Extent

To a
Very Great Extent

a.
b•
C.

d•
e.

2. If you as a manager put forth more effort will
it have a significant effect upon the measures
of store performance used in computing the
bonus?
3. Store managers are motivated by many factors. To what extent is the bonus system an
important incentive for improving your
performance?
4. From yourexperience in retailing, towhat extent is the size of the bonus a good reflection
of your performance as a store manager?

5. To what extent do the managers in general
regard the bonus as a reflection of their performance as managers?

6. To what extent are you treated fairly with the
performance measures used in determining
the bonus in your organization?

7. To what extent would there be improvement
in your performance if your total pay packages
was tied directly to store performance?

8. To what extent would your performance improve if the bonus was paid on a shorter time
basis than is now used in your organization?

9. To what extent do you see management paying astore manager a bonus on the basis of
factors other than store performance?

.

10 To what extent does the bonus system
discourage cooperation between store
managers?

11. To what extent is the bonus system understood
by the store managers in your organization?

60

MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING/ NOVEMBER 1986

quently, there appears to be very little impact on
performance (Z- score, +3.52). The store managers do not perceive management as paying managers a bonus on other than store performance (Z,score, +3.94). The bonus system does not appear
to discourage cooperation between store managers
(Z- score, + 8.86). The bonus system appears to be
understood by store managers (Z- score, — 7.16).
To better understand the nonsignificant relationship between the managers' efforts, store performance, and the bonus system, we explored the
hypothesis that managers believe individual efforts will influence some variables used in measuring performance but not others. Again using Likert type scales in Question 1 we found that
Payroll and Inventory were the two measures
store performance that could be significantly influenced. Sales, meeting budget, and gross profits
were significantly controlled by managers. Net income before depreciation and corporate headquarters allocation did not have significant Z- scores. It
would appear, then, other factors must influence
net income or that the determination
net income is not as well understood by several of the
managers.

Table 1
Ways Managers Feel The Bonus System
Could Be Improved (in percents)
Store

B

C

Increase size of bonus as a proportion of
total pay package.

00

45

58

Increase frequency of bonus payments during
the year.

17

05

58

Change the factors used in determining the
bonus.

50

60

33

Use a greater number of measurable factors
in assessing the bonus.

50

20

42

Assign a greaterweight to the assessments
of higher management.

00

05

06

Limit the bonus to factors that are controllable
by the manager

33

60

69

Include the assessment of other people such
as buyers and/or district managers.

25

10

19

Reduce or eliminate the bonus as a part of pay
package.

17

05

10

of

of

A

of
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people, administration, ratings on security, and
ratings on customer service.
Bonus systems do have a motivational impact
on management. Based on the sample selected for
retailing, there are significant differences between
the managers of the different retailing organizations in some responses to the questionnaire. Store
A managers saw their efforts as having less effect
on their bonus and much less control of sales and
net income. Store C managers were less likely to
see the bonus as a reflection
their performance,
and were treated less fairly by the performance
measures used in their bonus system. They also
saw themselves as having significantly less control
gross profit and net income and would assign
these measures less weight in a bonus system.
Store B managers were most likely to see the bonus as an important incentive, to see factors other
than store performance as influencing the bonus
in their organization, and were most likely to
want to change the present system. Their managers also were most likely to see themselves as having control over the objective measures of store
performance: sales, payroll, gross inventory profits, and net income.
The bonus systems in use by the different stores
appear to be well understood and highly valued by
store managers. Generally, the bonus is regarded
to be a reflection of performance. In general, all
store managers perceived that the bonus system
was administered fairly. The majority wanted to
be evaluated and given a bonus based on factors
they can control.
of

To explore changes that would make the bonus
system mo re motivating to store man agers, a
checklist of suggestions was developed (Table 1).
The most frequently checked suggestion was that
the bonus should be limited to factors controllable
by the manager. This supports the expectancy theory concepts that the performance measures must
be controllable by the efforts of the manager and
that the bonus be determined by those measures
which can be personally controlled.
The second most frequently checked item,
"change the factors used in determining the bonus," suggests a strong interest in a change in the
bonus system. The direction
change is further
clarified by the very low number of checks for
more subjective measures such as "assign a greater weight to the assessments of higher management," and "include the assessments of other people such as buyers and /or district managers_"
This response suggests that the managers believe
the bonus system should be based upon objectively measurable factors which are controllable by
the store manager.
This observation was further tested by asking
the managers to give weightings to the measures
that should be used in an ideal bonus system. The
heaviest weights of performance measures that
should be used in an ideal bonus system again
pointed to the controllable factors: sales, gross
profit, inventory turns, payroll, controllable cost,
and net profit. The less desired performance measures were: ratings or assessments made by other

of

Ways to Improve Bonus System
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Memo to FASB:
A Cash Flow
tatement Suggestion'
flow statements,

By Dann F. Hovey
On the surface it would appear that the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) should be
applauded by proponents of cash flow reporting
for its recommendation that cash flow statements
be included in a full set of financial statements.'
The FASB should be taken to task, however, for
not delivering on its implied promise —to provide
clear -cut guidelines as to the requirement for cash
flow statements, their form, and the definition of
what is to be considered as cash. The Board has,
in fact, recently issued an exposure draft addressing this shortfall.
Current Formats Critiqued
Two cash flow statement formats dominate accounting literature. The reconciliation format generally begins with net accounting income and,
line -by -line, identifies non - operating sources and
uses of cash. By adjusting for these items, net income is reconciled to cash provided by operations.
A simplified example is shown in Table 1.
The direct format more closely follows the flow
of the income statement. Cash is derived from operations by deducting from revenues payments received for goods, services, interest, dividends, and
taxes. An example is shown in Table 1.
The funds statement format begins with cash
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING/NOVEMBER 1986

provided by operations and presents other sources
and uses of funds (cash) in traditional statement
of changes form. The classified format (Table 2)
also begins with cash provided by operations but
distinguishes between financing activities and investing activities. The reader is required to provide the link from operations to the identification
of other cash - related activities of the firm.
Criticisms of These Methods
Each format has components that provide insights into liquidity, financial flexibility, and stability. The reconciliation format presents changes
in current assets and liabilities. The direct format
is easy to read because it parallels the income
statement. The sources and uses approach as well
as the classified approach use logical groupings to
show clearly non - operating activities.
Two major failings, however, are common to
each of the methods discussed. First, there is no
continuous thread that begins with a presentation
of the cash flows generated through the day -today operations of the firm. The thread should
continue with a description of the financing and
investing activities of the firm relating to ongoing
activities. Its logical termination point would be
to describe nonrecurring activities that had an effect on cash flow. This approach weaves the reader not only through a historical path of the period

Dann F. Hovey is
controller for Pier 39
Limited Partnership,
San Francisco. He is a
member and vice
president of the Diablo
Valley Chapter of NAA,

through which this
article was submitted.
Certificate of Merit,
1985 -86.
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The cash flow statement should be a continuous
description of the cash flows associated with the key
activities of the firm.
examined, but it also compares the relative impact
of cash flows from ongoing operations to cash
generated and used from both non - operating and
nonrecurring activities.
The second failing in statement formats is not
as serious as the first but is still a major distraction —the necessity to reconcile the cash flows to
the accrual -based financial statements in the body
of the cash flow statement.
While a reconciliation of cash statement to accrual statements is needed to attest to the accuracy of the statement, that reconciliation belongs in
the audit workpapers and not as clutter in the
body of the statement.
Common Definition of Cash
A cash flow statement should be just that. It
should start with revenues collected from day -today trade operations deduct cash expenses, show
other investing and financing activities and, finally, describe the cash flows from nonrecurring or
unusual activities.
It makes sense, also, to agree on a common def-

Table 1
Cash Provided by Operations

(80,000)
8,000
(5,000)
(21,000)

Negotiable instruments such as certified checks,
cashiers' checks, and bank drafts may be considered as cash an d sh ou ld be recorded in th e
accounts.
Escrow accounts, contractually required sinking funds, and other restricted balances should be
shown separately and not included as unrestricted
cash.
Non - interest bearing marketable securities held
as temporary investments should be separately
stated if the principal balance or the securities are
subject to fluctuation.
Compensating balances, usually included in the
"cash -in- bank" account, are restriced only in the
sense there is a charge for their use and need not
be separately stated. Compensating balance data
normally are included in the footnotes. That
means of disclosure would seem to be adequate.
To sum up, cash to be used in cash flow statements can be said to be the balance in unrestricted
cash accounts plus cash equivalents readily convertible to cash such as temporary investments.

$ 8,000

Presenting Cash Flows

Reconciliation Format
Net Income

$30,000

Reconciliation to cash basis:
Increase in accounts receivable
Increase in inventories
Increase in prepaid expenses
Decrease in accounts payable
Gain on sale of equipment
Depreciation expense
Undistributed earnings of affiliate
Deferred income tax expense
Cash provided by operations

(4,000)
(5.000)
(1,000)
(6,000)
(8,000)
9,000
(10,000)
3.000
$ 8.000

Direct Format
Collections from sales
Payments for merchandise purchases
Payments for selling, general, and administrative
expenses
Interest and dividend received
Interest paid
Income taxes paid
Cash provided by operations

inition of cash when it comes to the preparation of
cash flow statements. To allow each preparer to
make his or her own judgments as to whether or
not cash should or should not include compensating balances, Krugerrands, postdated checks or
postage stamps invites chaos.
In accounting literatu re the terms cash and
cash equivalents are used without any indication
of what items on the balance sheet are considered
cash or equivalents.
A useful base for defining cash to be reported
on cash flow statements is: "... it must be readily
available for payment of current obligations, and
it must be free from any contractual restriction
that limits its use in satisfying debts."'
This definition seems to include the balance in the
cash account but excludes balances in money market accounts, savings accounts, overnight and
short -term investments, and other items that are
prudent, temporary uses of cash surpluses.
A useful definition of cash for cash flow reporting is: The balance in the cash account adjusted
for checks written, but not released, plus
• Petty cash and change funds
• Savings accounts,
• Interest- bearing instruments readily convertible
to cash within one year.

$310,000
(204,000)

A firm's operating cash flows are its essence. Its
64
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accounting functions to practice
management.
What's more, you'll find the
computers to be an asset... because
they'll grow with your company and
work alongside equipment you may
already have from AIXT and most
other vendors. We also offer support and service every step of the
way —from upfront installation and
training to ongoing maintenance.
For solutions you can count on,
return the coupon ... or simply call.
1800 247-12121 EXT. S2S

I

Are your accountants still
pushing pencils ... or relying on a
system that does only half the job?
AUT can help —with integrated
computer systems solutions and
applications that'll help your firm or
department with its most taxing
problems.
Whether it's a problem of time
(or the lack of it) for client consultations, or one of getting instant
access to critical information, AT&T
will solve it—with accounting system solutions that can be customized to speed you through your day to -day tasks without ever
disrupting your normal routine.
It'll put time back in your hands
by doing everything from increasing the productivity of individuals in
your accounting department to
integrating your practice's client

me

AT&T can put together accounting solutions that will help
you crunch out numbers in record time.

Name
title
Company

AT&T

The right choice.

I

Address
City

State

Zip

525

Table 2
Funds Statement Format
Sources and Uses

Total sources of funds

8,000

$

Cash provided by operations
Other sources of funds:
Collection of notes receivable
Sale of equipment
Proceeds of new long term debt
Sale of common stock

8,000
10,000
33,000
10,000
69,000

Uses off unds:
Purchases of property, plant, & equipment
Reduction of notes payable
Repayment of long -term debt
Payment of dividends
Increase in cash

20,000
11,000
10,000
_22,000
63,000
$ 6,000

Classified
8,000

$

Cash provided by operations
Dividends paid

(22.000)

Financing activities:
Proceeds of new long -term debt
Sale of common stock
Reduction of notes payable
Repayment of long -term debt

33,000
10,000
(11,000)
(10,000)
22,000

Net funds provided by financing activities

(20,000)

Sale of equipment
Collection of notes receivables

10,000
8,000

&

Investing activities:
Purchases of property, plant equipment

(2,000)

Increase in cash

$

Net funds used in investing activities

6,000

potential for generating cash through ongoing activities induces creditors to lend, investors to invest, and managers to energize plans for long -term
growth. It would seem appropriate that any useful
presentation of cash flows would begin with a description of the sources and uses of cash from
operations.
Sources of cash from operations should include
collections of both earned and unearned income.
This should incl ude th e adju stment for any
change in accounts receivable.
By breaking out operating cash inflows in this

manner, the reader can draw a number of insights
into the activities of the firm. Through the comparison of revenues on the income statement to
cash inflows from collections, the reader sees the
relationship of sales to cash flow, or the liquidity
of revenues. The efficiency of revenues in the
firm's cash cycle becomes apparent as does any future liability to earn already - collected revenues. If
accounts receivable is constant and cash flow is
greater than revenues, there exists the possibility
of collection of some unearned revenue, thus a future need to expend resources to earn it. If operating cash inflows are less than revenues, then a future period will be the beneficiary of past efforts.
Uses of cash through operations should include
costs of sales (net of any changes in inventories
and accounts payable), and operating expenses
(net of any changes in prepaid expenses, accruals
and other assets). Expenses relating to unusual,
extraordinary or nonrecurring activities should be
excluded from this section of the statement.
Presenting costs of sales cash outflows separately again helps the reader draw insights regarding
the cash cycle. Any inventory profits or losses
would become apparent if cash used to finance
costs of sales were materially different than costs
of sales shown on the income statement.
Financing activities should be shown in summary form because details are readily available in the
notes to the financial statements. Items should include proceeds of long term borrowings, sale of
stock (by class), reductions of notes payable and
advances against credit lines, payment of dividends, and repayment of long term debt.
This format isolates the financing decisions. It
succinctly demonstrates the cash flow activity
from debt and equity financing as well as reductions. Changes in borrowing and equities can be
related to the investing activities in the next section. Activities such as financing long -term assets
with short -term debt should be readily apparent
to the reader.
Investing activities should be primarily purchases of property, plant, and equipment. Sales of
equipment in the normal course of business also
should be included in this section. Issuance and
collection of notes receivable should be included
because the issuance of a note effectively becomes
an investing activity and a use of cash. How efficiently the firm's non - operating sources of cash
are managed can be determined by comparing investing activities with financing activities. Additionally, when investment in fixed assets on the

A comparison of investing activities to financing
activities will show how efficient the company is in managing its
non - operating sources of cash.
66
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The Ideal Statement
Cash should be defined as the balance in the
cash account, adjusted, plus cash equivalents such
as savings accounts and general types of short
term near -cash investments.
The cash flow statement should be a continuous
description of the cash flows associated with the
key activities of the entity. It should allow the
reader to assimilate key data regarding cash generated and used through the ongoing operating activities of the firm. It also should describe in succinct fashion the effect on cash flows of the
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING /NOVEMBER 1986

Table 3
Recommended Cash Flow Statement
Cash balance at beginning of year
Operating Activities:
Sources of Cash:
Collections from sales, unearned revenues and
net changes in accounts receivable
Uses of cash:
Payments for merchandise, materials and other
direct costs of sales
Payments for selling, general, administrative
and financing expenses
Income tax payments

$10,000

$310,000

(204,000)
(77,000)
(21,000)

Cash provided (used) by operating activities
Financing Activities:
Proceeds of new long term debt
Net proceeds from sale of common stock,
$1 par value
Reduction of notes payable
Repayment of long term debt
Payment of dividends
Net cash provided by financing activities
Investing Activities:
Purchases of property, plant equipment
Sale of surplus equipment
Collection of notes receivables
&

balance sheet is compared with the cash used for
the purchase of fixed assets, it can be ascertained
if cash will be needed to pay for recent aquisitions.
While unusual or nonrecurring activities may
generate earnings or losses on the statement of income, the net cash flow effect is not readily apparent. I recommend that these activities be shown
separately on the cash flow statement by simply
summarizing the sources and uses of cash by item.
For example, a presentation netting the cash flow
effect o f an acquisition may not disclose the magnitude of cash flow committed to consummating
the transaction. On the other hand, the reader
should be able to see that the write -off of a discontinued operation may have a minimal effect on the
firm's cash flows, because the plant had been purchased in a prior period.
The advantages of the recommended cash flow
statement (Table 3) are as follows.
• By starting and ending with cash balances, it relates the reader to the primary financial statements without a cumbersome and unnecessary
reconciliation of earnings.
• By presenting cash flows from operating activities as the first category, it emphasizes the main
purpose of the entity but does not isolate it
from other activities,
• By presenting the major components of operating cash flows (sales, costs of sales, and operating expenses), cash flows from operations can
be compared to earnings from operations.
• The net result of various financing activities is
readily apparent. As shown in Table 3, the firm
borrowed and issued stock to refinance a portion of existing debt and pay dividends.
• The impact of unusual activities on cash flows
are obvious without unnecessary detail.
• The format leads the reader through the natural
operations flow of the entity. It stops along the
way to consider each of the major activities of
the entity in the order of their natural occurrence. It provides enough information to describe the cash flow effect of each of the activities, but in a frugal, efficient manner.
• It does not cloud the issue with items that do
not have an effect on cash flow.

8,000

33,000
10,000
(11,000)
(10,000)
(22,000)
-0-

(20,000)
10,000
8,000

Net cash used in investing activities
Extraordinary or non - recurring activities:
Proceeds from settlement of lawsuit
Purchase of stock of ABC Company
Proceeds of sale of C Division of ABC
Net cash provided from extraordinary or
non - recurring activities
Cash balance at end of year

(2,000)

7,000
(10,000)
6,000

3,000
$19,000

investing and financing activities of the firm. Finally, it should provide information on the effect
of unusual activities on the cash flows of the firm.
It should not include complex reconciliations (in
its body). It should not contain descriptions of
noncash items such as depreciation and accounting allocations. Those are quite adequately represented in the accrual -based financial statements
and neither generate, nor use, cash.
Any presentation adopted by management account ants, whether of their own accord or
through prompting by the FASB, should offer
clarity and a continuous stream of thought. Both
qualities as well as a sense of purpose are contained in the statement format I am recommending to the FASB.
"'Recognition and Measurement in Financial Statements of Business Enterprises,"
Statement of Financial Accounting Concepts No. 5, Financial Accounting Standards Board, Dec. 1984, Stamford, Conn.
'Kieso and Weygandl. Intermediate Accounting, 41h. Ed., John Wiley & Sons, 1983,
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Computers
and
Accounting
8 "
ances and prepare financial statements,
especially those who intensely dislike
posting and balancing trial balances
man u a l l y, it is likely to b eco me
indispensable.
Focus.ABC currently is available in
two versions, Audit (reviewed here) and
Compilation. The Audit version, which
is more comprehensive, is available for
$495. Compilation contains some, but
not all, of Audit's features and is available for $245. Office and firm -wide licenses also are available. For a free broch u re an d d emo di sk , wri t e to
Hemming Morse, 1700 South El Camino, Suite 320, San M ateo, Calif.
94402 or call (415) 574 -1908.
Note: This review was written on a
Corona PPC -400 with 640k of memory,
8087 Math Co- processor, and a 10 -megabyte hard disk.
Focus.-ABC requires Lotus 1 -2 -3, Re-

lease 2 to operate and needs 512k of
memory and two floppy disk drives or
one floppy drive and a hard disk.
John C. Woosley, CMA, CPA
Audit Manager
Nydam, Scholtens & Stewart
San Diego, Calif.

MAP

12"
Board had issued a proposed statement
that would instruct state and local govern me n t al emp l o yers to mak e no
changes to their accounting for pensions
Publications
based on FAS 87, because the GASB
Computer-Assisted Business Plans
currently is working on its own stateMatt Oppenheimer and Gerry Young, ment dealing with accounting for penPrentice -Hall, Inc., Englewood Cliffs, sions. (See GASB /FASB Round Table,
N.J. 07632, 1986, 285 pp.— Developing p. 74.)
a completed business plan to help raise
In its co mmen t s to t h e GAS B ,
money is a complex process. Using one NAA's Management Accounting Pracof the available spreadsheet and word tices (MAP) Committee stated its funprocessing programs on a personal com- damental belief that accounting for simputer may well facilitate the process. ilar transactions should be the same in
This book, in a well- thought -out, 25- all organizations. The MAP Committee
chapter sequence, shows exactly how to urged the GASB to resolve the issue
go about doing it. The volume was writ- quickly, noting that the NAA could enten based on use of advanced VisiCalc. dorse a GASB pension standard that
It probably would have been more valu- differs from FASB Statement 87 only if
able had it been developed using Lotus "substantial reasons for different ac1 -2 -3. Instructions are given for con- counting in governmental entities are
verting advanced VisiCale to Lotus, identified and subjected to full due prohowever.
cess procedures."
❑
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In the Library
Members may borrow the books listed in
this section by telephoning M. Redrick,
(201) 573 -6235.
Social Software of Accounting and
Information Systems
Norman B. Macintosh, John Wiley &
Sons, 605 Third Ave., New York, N. Y.
10158, 1984, 289 pp. —This book deals
with the behavioral aspects of introducing and operating accounting information systems. The "social software" const i t u t es the link bet ween the
information systems and the people using those systems —in other words, the
knowledge of how to connect the system with organizational participants in
a valuable way. The theme of the book
is that social software is more important
than technical aspects of information
systems.
All too many accounting information
systems create effects not previously

When It's Important ...
Measure Up
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Miriam Redrick and Stan Stec, Editor

per se. Never theless, m any of the analyses and recom m endations contained
in the book pertain to DSS. Additionally, there are no explicit references to, let
alone discussion of, behavioral decision
issues such as inform ation overload and
functional fixation in the utilization of

"bargained for," Mr. Macintosh says.
".. .. (M )anagement accountants only
achieve success when they point to the
failu re o f o thers." (p. 12) Accountants,
according to the author, "should also
em p h asiz e th e va lue of inform at ion for
learn in g an d im provem ent." (p. 21) Acco u ntants an d inform ation systems people sh o uld not sim ply be information
pro vid ers, b ut also in -house consultants.
Design ers o f accounting system s ought
to b e very ca r ef u l in a t t e m p t in g to
ach ieve " t h e right chem istry between
person ality traits, participative budgetin g p a tt er n s , and the roles im po sed
u p o n t h e m a nager ." (p . 30)
Em p hasis is placed in the book on the
im p o rtan ce of participation in budgetin g even th o ugh the efficacy of participation rem ains an unresolved research
issue. After a detailed analysis of re search stu d ies on th e im pact of participatio n in b udgeting, the au th or conclu des th at the effects of participation
p ertain to "situational needs and evalu-

accounting data.
The boo k is t im ely in vie w of t he recent developm ents in information system s, especially with regard to the inadequate attention given in our accounting
curricula to the behavioral ramifications
of accounting and inform ation system s.
Im m ensely readable, it should appeal to
both st ud en ts and m an ager s. It furnishes a com prehensive analysis of accounting and interdisciplinary m anagem ent re s e ar c h on the man - machine
interface in inform ation systems. This is
the focus and the st rength of the book.
Robert Bloom
Professor of Accounting
John Carroll Uni versity

atio n sty les."
Co n sid erable attention is given to research o n Hu m an Inform at ion Processin g (H IP) an d, in particular, the e xpert
ju d gm en t process and the reliability,
co nsisten cy , and consensus of pr ofessio n als. Th e research eviden ce sho ws
th at ex p ert judgm ent is unreliable, even
wh en su p po rted by a good database; the
d ecisio n m akers need to have appropriate co n tact with the database. There are
no gen eral pat te rns o f H IP , a nd in fo rm at io n sy st em s de sign er s should be
aware o f th e different individual styles
o f in fo rm ation processing and decision

Inside Corporate Innovation
Robert A. Burgelman an d L eo n ar d R .
Sayles, Free Press, 866 Third Ave., New
York, N. Y. 10022, 1986, 212 pp. —Can a
large -scale multinational firm truly encourage innovative new business ventures? Anec dotal evidence, at leas t as
reported in the business press, suggests
that a corporation m ight find it difficult
to encourage innovation and diversification into a new field such as office autom a tion . Th is book, based on a case
study of E xx on Cor p., discusses one
large firm 's effor ts to encou rage e ntrepr e ne u r sh ip and sh ow s why it is s o

makers.
In sy stem s design and utiliz ation,
th ere o u ght to be a prudent m atching of
systems trait s and individual cognitive
ch ar acte rist ics. A rec urr ing them e is
that ac c o u nt in g syst ems and MIS
sh o uld b e co m pa tible w ith in their organ izatio n al contexts. The aut hor argu es th at th e structure of organizations
o u gh t to b e designed based on their information - processing needs, the basic
activity o f all organizations.
Th e book does have som e deficiencies. On ly limited explicit consideration
is given to Decision Support System s

difficult.
Th e m ana gem ent expectations of a
large firm often ar e inconsistent with
the business requirem ents o f a struggling new venture. "C o n t r o l system s
that w ork in the opera ting com po nents
are often inadequat e for the am biguous
and quickly cha ngin g envir on m e nt of
the innovating system . The assum ption
underlying control in the large, com plex, operational com ponents is that everybody needs to know all the tim e
what is going on. Hen ce t her e is constant reporting and m on it or in g of t he
business act ivitie s. New ventures, in

MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING/ NOVEMBER 1986

contrast, often need to protect themselves from close scrutiny." (p. 118) In
short, overcontrol, which perhaps can
be laid at the feet of management accountants, may be the worst enemy of
tru l y su cces sfu l new ven t u re
development!
Accountants in a company seriously
considering expanding through innovati o n an d st art -u p of n ew ven tu res
should take the words of this important
study to heart.
Alfred M King
Women in Charge
Aileen Jacobson, Van Nostrand Reinhold Co., 135 West 50th Street, New
York, N. Y. 10020, 1985, 234 pp. —Aileen Jacobson cleverly shows how, as
authority figures, ordinary women face
career - related dilemmas, discusses why
they occur, and offers pragmatic successful solutions. The book tries to help
women increase their competence and
confidence. "Women are not trained to
think of themselves as bosses, nor are
they usually conditioned from childhood onward to develop the skills and
attitudes that are needed to become an
effective boss —a woman in charge."
Interviews with 35 women holding
man ageri al posit ions reveal th ei r
thoughts and feelings on such topics as
career demands, family responsibilities,
sex discrimination, and gaining authority. Chapters include hiring and firing
tactics and tips, juggling family and career, ambitions and career paths, and
the management step, to name a few.
With much confidence comes Ms. Jacobson's last line: "It is possible to be a
women in charge." This book is recommended for all women who either aspire
to climb or are climbing the corporate
ladder.
Kim Serocke
Managing Computer Risk: A Guide for
the Policymaker
Gerald M. Ward and Jonathan D. Harris, John Wiley & Sons, 605 Third Ave.,
New York, NY 10158, 1986, 180 pp.—
This book is the third volume in the
NAA /Wiley /Ronald Press professional
book series. It is based, in part, on research that one of the authors conducted for NAA. Written for a very broad
audience, it deals with a topic of utmost
concern. "Computer- related business

risk increases with th e nu mber an d
complexity of systems and with an organ i zat i o n 's
d ep en d en ce
on
computers."
With the proliferation of microcomputers and the ever - increasing dependence on mainframe systems, this book
is must reading for all management accountants. The authors take a top management viewpoint and rightfully so.
Chapter 6, on Data Security, for example, lists ten tough questions that every company's financial staff should be
required to answer. They include:

• Does a data security function exist,
and to whom does it report?
• Do internal auditors really have EDP
auditing capabilities?
• Are the password and user -ID system
serious or trivial?
• When were corporate data security
co n t ro l s last revi ewed by top
management?
The book has thought - provoking
comments on these and many o th er
points. We reco mmen d it with out
reservation.
AMK

Lighten up.
If the pro blems and costs of
re c or d-ke eping ar e be co ming too heavy, it's time to
call in The Administrato r.'
The Administrator is a sophisticated
personal computer software package
that can dramatically lighten the
physical, mental and financial
burden of processing your 401K.
The Administrator is amazingly
easy to install and use. Even if you
know very little about computers,
you'll soon be efficiently handling all
the functions of a defined contribution plan.
System is expandable, designed to grow
your needs. It can even interface with
payroll system for automating the post f salary reductions. And it's priced to
or itself within a year.
uarantee that The Administrator is
sr to use than your present method. To
)r yourself how it can lighten your load,
;all or send in the coupon for our demo
age (the complete system, but limited
participants).

- -- Benefit Administration Systems, Inc. - - -16 Knight Street. Norwalk. Cr 06851 (203) 853 -6584
I want to try out The
Administrator for
45 days; a check is
enclosed for $100.00.
0 Se nd me additional
information about The
Adminis tra tor and other
BAS, Inc. products and
services.
Microprocessor installed:
IBM PC/XT /AT
1-1
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Phone(

Zip
i

Circle number 17 on reply card.
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING /NOVEMBER 1986

71

Donald Kirk
26 "
years since 1977. He also serves on that board's
budget and audit committees, helping set the town
budget and working with internal and outside auditors. He also is a member of the Board of Overseers of the New York University Schools of Business, a director of the National Arts Stabilization
Fund, and president of his golf club.
In recognition of his contributions to the accounting profession, last month the AICPA presented him with its prestigious Gold Medal. In
1980, he received the Alumni Achievement
Award from New York University's Graduate
School of Business Administration and in 1979 an
honorary doctor of law degree from Lycoming
College.
Playful Pilot or Serious Student?

the FASB was being formed, I'd already decided
that if for some reason an opportunity came up,
I'd think seriously about it. I had been through
enough in the '60s and early 70s with reporting
problems, and I had a deep belief that there was a
need for standards. By the time I was approached,
I didn't hesitate. When asked if I were interested,
I said, 'Yes, I am, and if you're offering it to me, I
accept.' "
In 1977, Marshall Armstrong, the first chairman, decided to retire, and the search began for a
replacement. Don Kirk toyed with this prospect.
Ironically, he wasn't the trustees' first choice.
They wanted someone from the outside, but "they
ran out of other possible candidates," Mr. Kirk
said. "I was the only one left. Back in those days
we operated with a Board vacancy at one time for
close to nine months. This was not a popular place
to work. I'm sure there were many people they
would have liked to have had as chairman at that
time who probably said, 'no way.' " The trustees
obviously were satisfied. He has been a Board
member longer than anyone else ever has. Or
probably will, with the rules allowing someone to
serve only two five -year terms. His first was a partial term, so it didn't count as a whole.

His career has been accounting, but it wasn't a
lifelong ambition, even though it was part of his
heritage. His father, who had come to America
from Glasgow, Scotland, in 1929 when he was 19
years old, was a CPA. He first worked as a male
secretary in Buffalo, N.Y., then moved to Cleve- The Road Ahead
This month he turns 54, and after 13 years and
land where Don was born in 1932. He joined a
printing company, eventually becoming treasurer, 10 months with the FASB, he's ready to move on
but changed to public accounting during World to something else. "I don't feel like I'm winding
down, though. We had a very busy summer beWar II.
Don Kirk says he learned about accounting cause of two controversial public hearings (regufrom his father, "but it didn't really mean any- lated industries and nonrefundable loan fees and
thing to me." He became interested in it only after costs), and various projects are under way that are
taking an accounting correspondence course as a keeping us busy. They are controversial projects,
Navy pilot during the Korean War. "When we too, so we're getting hate mail on several of the
were sitting around the ready room, waiting to be subjects. It keeps us on our toes. One of these
called to fly, I'd be working on accounting prob- days, however, the realization will set in —when
lems." He laughs. "The other flyers couldn't fig- it's all over. Right now it feels like three days
ure me out. Was I a playful pilot or a serious stu- since I joined the Board, two since I became chairdent? I changed roles frequently." He had left man, and one since I started my second term."
Because he has been such an integral part of the
Yale University after two years to join the Navy,
so when he completed his service, he returned for Board and staff operations, it's hard to imagine
the final two years, avidly pursuing accounting. FASB without him, colleagues say. His imprint is
When he graduated in 1959, he joined Price Wa- everywhere and "probably will be seen even more
terhouse & Co., making partner in an unusually clearly when the history of the FASB unfolds in
years to come," Paul Kolton muses. Yet, laughs
fast eight years.
On the audit staff, he pursued client work, ven- Mr. Kirk, no one has further bent the rules and
turing from New York to Washington, D.C., to tempted him to stay, least of all himself, so he'll be
London, working with motion picture companies trying a new career soon. Colleagues also predict
( "fascinating accounting problems," he says); it might be as hard for him to step into a different
Royal Dutch Shell Group, an international oil working dimension and environment as it is for
company; and several smaller clients and special them to operate without him. He can't reveal his
projects. It was during this era that he became plans until January, when his term is officially
aware of the need for standards setting to combat over, although —he suddenly grins — "I don't
think I'll return to public accounting. I can't pic"creative" accounting.
D
Mr. Kirk recalls, "In the back of my mind, as ture myself testifying before the FASB."
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Indicated that careers in industry offer
considerable nonmonetary or psychic
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Unfortunately,
Most Accountin g Software Stops
Growing Long efore You Do.
If all you're getting from your accounting software is a severe case of growing pains,
take heart. SYSGEN offers a proven cure.
THE 38 /ACCOUNTANTx It's IBM System /38 software developed with growing
companies in mind.
Our exclusive elastic data base offers virtually unlimited expandability without
assistance from the DP department.
In fact, THE 38 /ACCOUNTANT gives control to the one department that needs it
most Accounting. And for growing companies, that's an important feature in itself.
Completely unassisted, the accounting department can redefine complex coding
structures and control the data selection, data flow and spacing of reports.
To take control of your future, look into the future of accounting software.
THE 38 /ACCOUNTANTfrom SYSLEN.
For more information, call (919) 361-1914 or write SYSGEN, P.O. Box 13707, Research
Triangle Park, NC 27709 -3707.
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GASB/FASBRound Table
Whose rules apply where? NAA sponsors a meeting
to discuss potential differing standards by two accounting boards.
What if the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board prescribes a different
standard from its sister organization,
the Financial Accounting Standards
Board, for the same economic event?
That was the question that 27 men
and women discussed at a special round
table meeting in New York sponsored
by NAA. The participants included
members of GASB and the Financial
Accounting Foundation, and preparers
and users of financial statements. The
meeting was chaired by Dr. Robert Anthony, professor emeritus at Harvard
Business School.
Concern has been expressed by many
observers that different accounting standards may be set in place by the FASB
and GASB applying to very similar economic situations. For example, hospitals owned by a government entity may
be virtually identical in economic substance to hospitals in the private sector.
Similar circumstances can exist for universities, public utilities, and other quasi- government controlled or funded
GASB /FASB round table meeting at
the Metropolitan Club in New York

City.

s

organizations.
The potential for conflict between the
two boards was given added urgency
when GASB unanimously agreed at a
meeting in July to add a project on financial rep ort ing by colleges and
universities.
The National Assn, of College and
University Business Officers (NACUBO) is especially concerned with the
potential for conflicting standards, one
set applying to private colleges and the
other to public. NACUBO representatives argue that public and private institutions face uniform regulations and
disclosure requirements with respect to
solicitation of charitable contributions
and that these can best be met with uniform financial statements.
Under a structure agreement that became effective when GASB was established in 1984, GASB will "establish
standards for activities and transactions
of state and local governmental entities." FASB, on the other hand, would
establish standards for activities and
transactions of all other entities."
The structural agreement also states
that the hierarchy of generally accepted
accounting principles applicable to state

and local governmental entities would
be: First, GASB pronouncements; second, FASB pronouncements; and third,
fourth, and fifth, pronouncements of
other sources.
Dr. Anthony pointed out that under
the structure agreement FASB standards apply to entities in the public sector "except in circumstances where the
GASB has issued a pronouncement applicable to such entities or activities."
But the opposite is not true: If GASB
puts out a statement, it stands no matter
what FASB does.
Those participating in the roundtable
meeting agreed that standard - setting
credibility would be damaged if GASB
promulgated a conflicting standard on
the same economic issue. Speaking on
behalf of GASB, Martin Ives, GASB director of research, and Board vice chairman, said the jurisdiction agreement
was clear: GASB will establish standards for any governmental unit and its
standards have primacy in government
areas.
One of the participants pointed out
that the agreement was clear but the
problem arose when considering entities
that fall in "the twilight zone between

Opinion

public and private institutions."
The Structure Committee of the Financial Accounting Foundation, which
exercises gen eral overs ight of bo th
boards, has been studying the problem

counting Standards Board are headquartered in the same building.
Several part ici p an t s favored t h e
Foundation's four points and, in addition, urged that the accounting stan-

60
expected to. The symposium's purpose
was served by generating interest in and
creating an awareness of the problems.
This it did, at least for me, but the answers won't be easy to come by.

Wyden H

Chairman Hobert Anthony looks on as Prof. Patricia Douglas clarifies a
point with Thomas L. Holton, chairman of the FAF Structure
Committee.
of differing accounting requirements for
similar economic situations. Thomas L.
Holton, Committee chairman summarized the conclusions of this group:
1. That public perception of, and respect for, the entire standards - setting
process is likely to be adversely affected if the two Boards establish different s tan dards for wh at are, or
what the public perceives to be, the
same circumstances.
2. The so- called "standards overload"
problem would be exacerbated if the
two Boards established different
standards for what are perceived to
be the same circumstances.
3. It wou ld b e in ap p ro priate i f th e
Trustees establish a third party to
arbitrate any technical decisions by
the two Boards that appear to be inco n s i s t en t with each wi t h o u t
justification.
4. Each Board and its respective technical staff already attempt to stay informed about what the other is doing, although there is some room for
improvement in this area, namely cooperation and communication between both Boards.
Both the Financial Accounting Stan ards Board and the Governmental Ac-

dards of the FASB should govern the financial reporting requirements of all
entities that have activities corresponding to those in the private sector, unless
GASB can demonstrate that different
accounting standards will provide better
information. They pointed out that the
burden should be on the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board to justify
any differences from GAAP as adopted
by FASB.
Others maintained that GASB should
set standards for entities that are controlled by or financed by state or local
government so as to recognize the special needs of these agencies, especially
because GASB received financial support from the states.
Even though a number of the participants, including NAA President Glen
Woodson, urged all those involved to
try to solve the problem before the accounting profession was unnecessarily
exposed, most seemed to think little
could be done other than calling for increased cooperation on the part of the
two boards. Summing up, Dr. Anthony
said, "The meeting was helpful because
it gave both the government and private
sector people a better understanding of
each other's point of view."
❑
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Anyone who has played baseball has
probably faced a pitcher with a sneaky
fast❑ball❑—❑usually❑a❑little❑guy❑with❑a
slow, easy windup. Then, PLOP! The
ball is in the catcher's mitt, while the
batter still has his bat on his shoulder.
Wyden II, or the amended version of
HR 4886, the Financial Fraud Detection and Disclosure Act, sponsored by
Rep. Ronald Wyden (D- Ore.), is like
that. While the amended bill appears to
have met many of the objections to the
original (See Opinion, August '86), and
therefore should be easier to "hit," the
accounting profession may still hear the
ball plop in the catcher's mitt.
Public accountants would still be responsible for the detection of fraud that
is "material;" and then be required to
determin e if the aud it commi ttee or
management has or has not taken adequate corrective measures and, if not, to
report this to the proper authorities.
These provisions are still real problems,
however. Why? For one thing, materiality hasn't as yet been defined and once it
is, the definition may well be qualitative
as well as quantitative. And the bill continues to place the onus for the detection of fraud on the outside auditors.
How many times under their current
procedures do auditors detect fraud?
What will it cost to revise their procedures so that they can detect fraud? The
cost will be on every public company,
including those where fraud doesn't exist in the first place? If the bill passes, I
can hear th e "pl op " i n t he catcher's
mitt already.
These issues may not augur the coming o f an accoun ti ng win ter. Then,
again, they might. Certainly other issues
could be added to the list. All of us had
better be activists in working toward solutions to these problems. Passive standing on the sidelines certainly isn't the
answer, but passivity certainly would
bring the cold accounting winter.
❑
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People in the News
Promotions and New Positions
Mary Starkey , Alameda County - South,
is now assistant corporate controller of
Plantronics, Inc., San Jose.... Joseph
F. Vautier is now vice president and
chief financial officer of Rollins Burdick
Hunter of Northern Calif., Inc.
Enrico Petri, Albany, has been appointed chairperson of the accounting department at the State University of
N.Y. at Albany.
Kathy A. McDowell, Cedar Rapids, has
been elected chief financial officer of
MorAmerica Financial Corp.
J. Wayne Reynolds, Central Arkansas,
has joined the Listerhill reduction plant
of Reynolds Metals Co. as controller.
Gary P . LeB lanc, Central Illinois, is
now director of finance of the Peoria
Housing Authority.

Edward Fisher, Columbus, is now treasurer and vice president— finance at the
newly formed Shoe Corp. of America
(S C OA), and J e r o me W. Is l er,
controller.
Robert J . Bruns, Dallas, has been admitted to the partnership of Ernst &
Whinney.
Steven G. Selfridge, Delaware, is now
co nt rol l er o f C h eckp o in t Syst ems,
Thorofare, N. J . . . . R o ger To d d h as
been appointed director of finance and
administration at Tetra Tech Richardson, Inc., a subsidiary of Honeywell.
Daniel C. Maher, Detroit, was named a
partner at Touche Ross.
Mary Jo Orwoll , Dubuque Tri- State,
has become controller at Riggs Biochemical in Dubuque.
Patricia A. Frishkoff, CMA, Eugene Springfield, is now director of the newly
formed Family Business Program at the
College of Business at Oregon State
University.
Douglas C. Phelps, Hartford, was appoined director of financial services at
the Brand -Rex Cable Systems Division,
BRlntec Corp.
Thomas J. Crotty, Illowa, was promoted to controller of the John Deere East
Moline Sales B ran ch . . . . J a mes M.

SO

Isaacson is now vice president— finance
at TransTechnology Electronics.
John F. Barron, Louisville, was appointed assistant treasurer of Liberty National Bancorp, Inc.
James W. Sanders , Member -at- large,
USA, is now vice president of finance at
T.M. Smith Tool International, Mt.
Clemens, Mich.
James B. Hare , Minneapolis Viking, is
now controller of Morison Securities,
Inc.
John Rozsa, New York, has been named
corporate controller of First Jersey National Corp. A vice president, he is also
director of taxes and insurance.
Gregory C. Kowert, Northwest Arkansas, was promoted to vice president —finance, treasurer, and secretary, and Jerry D. Peerb o lt e was pro mot ed to
controller, at Baldor Electric Co.
William Kane, Ohio Western Reserve, is
now controller at Sandcap Industries,
Alliance. Ohio.
Richard T. Forsythe, Packerland, was
appointed vice president — finance and
treas urer of Eggers Industries, Two
Rivers, Wis.
Gerald F. Sand, Platte Valley, is now
vice president and treasurer of Equita-
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"Farewell, Stanley, we'll never forget the contribution you made
to this firm. "
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ble Savings and Loan Association, Columbus, Neb.
Michael A. Troup, Sr., Quincy Area,
was promoted to controller of Quintron
Corp.
Thomas G. Strauss, Rochester, has been
promoted to controller of Seneca Paper.
Susan L. Campo, Spokane Area, is now
controller at Old National Credit Corp.
Leonardo Gravel, Jr., Springfield, has
been appointed controller at Herson
Jewelers.
Mary Knoll, Wa ukes h a Ar ea , was
named vice president /treasurer of Mail
Advertising Supply Co.

shire, past president, 1975. ELA.
J. Austin Bourdreau, 83, Lehigh Valley,
1944. ELA.
James H. Cook, 56, Wheeling, 1959.
Thomas J. Chwazik, 57, Morris - Essex,
1965.
John Funaro, 81, Sacramento, 1949.
ELA.
Juan J. Garcia, 46, San Juan, 1973.
William V. Giegold, 76, Montgomery
Prince Georges, 1960. ELA.
L. D. Hiester, 71, Cape Canaveral,
1963.
Alan M. Hoffman, 49, New York, 1969.

Warren T. Jackson, Jr., 50, Atlanta
North, 1985.
Harold G. Johnson, 75, Calumet, 1964.
ELA.

If you would like to pay tribute to
a deceased member ofthe Association, a fitting way might be to send
a tax - deductible contribution to
th e NA A Memorial Ed ucation
Fund, 10 Paragon Drive, Montvale, N.J. 07645 -1760.
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Emeritus Life Associates (ELAs)
James E. Bohn, Toledo, past president.
George A. Chapin, Northwestern Ohio.
Stuart P. Childress, Richmond Lee.
William O. Dotson, Akron Cascade.
S. R. Easter, New Jersey Meadowlands.
George B. Fearn, Jr., Los Angeles.
Marvin D. Gibson, Toledo.
Daniel R. Gillen, Member -at- Large.
W. E. Hamrick, Northern Virginia.
Ivan D. Hoge, Northwestern Ohio, past
president.
Glenn W. Johnson, Olean - Bradford
Area, past president.
Fred T. Kidd, Lynchburg.
Arthur J. Koenig, St. Louis, past
president.
Howard C. Lewis, Stockton Area.
Moreton N. Meinhart, Los Angeles.
Salvatore Mu, Rochester.
William A. Richmann, Fox River
Valle v.
William A. Simmons, Northeast
Mississippi.
Norman M . S t ec k , Minn eapo lis
Northstar.
Donald James Wharton, St, Louis.
Kenneth E. Wire, Harrisburg Area.

The difference between another job and
a new career could begin here.
In Accounting /Finance, Banking or
Data Processing (our people are professionals from the field in which we place you,
well known and knowledgeable).
ROMAC° meet with success. Contact
the ROMAC office in your business
community.

WROMC.
ROMAC & ASSOCIATES
Professional Personnel
Consultants

In Memoriam
Ralph L. Arnheim, 95, Chicago, 1940.
Emeritus Life Associate (ELA).
Chalmer A. Balfanz, 92, Chicago, 1946.
ELA.
David T. Ball, 79, Albany, 1933. ELA.
Nathaniel F. Bigelow, 82, New HampMANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING /NOVEMBER 1986

Franchises available. For more information call 1- 800 - 341 -0263.
Albany, Atlanta, Bala Cynwyd PA. Baltimore, Blo omington MN, Bo ston, Buffalo, C harlotte,
Chicago, C leveland, Co lumb us, Dallas . Dayto n, Denver, Detro it, F ort Lauderd ale, Hartford,
Houston, Jackso nville, Memphis , Milford CT , Milwaukee, Minneapo lis, Orland o, P aramus NJ,
Philadelp hia, P ho enix, P o rtland ME, P o rtsmo uth NH, P rovidenc e, Raleigh /Durham,
Ric hmond, Ro chester, St. Louis, 'rampa, W as hington D. C. , Wellesley Hills MA, W ilmington
DE, Winston -Salem
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New Products /Services

Elizabeth Warren, Editor

a,

Manufacturers Hanover Trust (MHT) continuous forms with five or mo re
has introduced Business Manager, a parts, sheets one through four are promanagement software package for mid- cessed on the first pass. The remainder
sized companies that automates and in- of the set is fed onto a special refolding
tegrates cash management and account- tray and handled in a second run. Outing functions. The software is designed put rates depend on form length. In one
in three modules permitting corporate hour's time, handling four -part forms,
users to select only the banking services the KST -4 can process 3,300 eleven and treasury management functions inch forms, 6,000 six -inch forms or
they need. The basic module includes 9000 four -inch forms. Due to its vertical
automatic communications to Manufac- design, the KST -4 occupies only about
turers Hanover and up to five other one -third of the floor space of the typibanks for information reporting. Auto- cal burster /decollator installation. For
matic retrieval of balance and transac- further information, write to the compation reports is a key function. Checks - ny at 290 Hansen Access Road, King of
paid reports, deposit concentration Prussia, Pa. 19406, or call (215) 265information, and controlled disburse- 8420.
ment reports are available with the
same immediacy. Business Manager's Research Press, Inc. has released Tax
second module offers all the capabilities Reform Impact Analysis (TRA86), a
of the basic package,a plus it performs Lotus 1 -2 -3 (ver. 2.0) template program
account reconciliation, provides float that will show how much taxes you will
analysis reporting, and offers automated pay in 1986, 1987, and 1988 based on
check printing. The third module inte- the new tax law, compared to what your
grates accounts payable and receivable taxes would have been in 1985. The
data. Business Manager runs on IBM TRA86 program uses the details of the
and PC- compatible computers. For new tax laws according to information
more information, contact Michael He- released by the staff of the Joint Confergarty in New York, at (212) 286 -4937 ence Committee, as of August 29, 1986.
It computes and compares virtually evor Richard Matteis, at (212) 286 -7335.
ery item included in the 1040 tax return
for single taxpayers or taxpayers filing
joint returns for tax years from 1985
through 1988. For tax years after 1986,
the program computes the following
new items introduced by the 1986 tax
reform law: the 20% exclusion on meals
and entertainment expenses; the limitation on losses of a limited business interest and the five -year phase -out of such
losses; the new $25,000 annual limit on
real estate losses; the "recapture" of the
benefit of the 15% bracket and the exemption deduction for high income taxpayers; transitional investment tax credRENA Systems' KST -4 burster /collator
it limitations; the "recap ture" of the
RE NA Syst ems, Inc. has released alternative minimum tax personal exRENA KST -4, a vertical burster /decol- emption. The TRA86 program requires
lator that removes carbons, trims trac- the use of an IBM PC or compatible
tor margins, and separates and stacks comp uter wit h a full 640KB of free
multiple -part forms in a single opera- memory, and the Lotus 1 -2 -3 program
tion. The KST -4, capable of handling (version, 2.0). For more information,
four -part forms in one pass, can split all contact the company at Box 8137 -P,
forms into single sheets, or can keep se- Prairie Village, Kans. 66208, or call
lected, consecutive forms together, For (913) 362 -9667.
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Pitney Bowes' postage -by -phone mailing
system.

P itney B owes' postage -by -phone
(RMRS), meter resetting system allows
customer to reset their own postage meters. Postage -by -phone customers simply make a toll -free phone call to the
postage -by -phone data center and exchange account information. They can
then reset their own meters with the desired amount of postage in about a minute. Customers receive monthly activity
reports showing beginning and ending
balances, debits, credits, dates, amounts
of meter resettings, and miscellaneous
transactions. More precise auditing of
postage expenses is possible with an
electronic "chargeback" unit that tracks
postage costs by client account numbers. Chargeback reports show user,
class of mail, cost and type of service,
and at the end of each month prints out
each client's totals. For further information, contact the company at 185 Crosby Street, Stamford, Conn. 06926 -0700,
or call 1- 800 -Mr,- Bowes, ext. 455.
Epson America has introduced the EX1000, a high - speed, wide - carriage printer for accounting professionals. The
EX -1000, at 136 columns wide, is well
suited for printing spreadsheets, business graphics, accounting tables and
schedules, and other documents requir-
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Moniterm Corporation's RT -6155 monitor.
Moniterm Corporation has released the
RT -6155 monitor, a 19" high - resolution
monochrome monitor for the IBM RT
personal computer. The large screen
RT -6155 is designed for multiple windowing applications significant to the
T operating environment where sever 1 applications are being run simulta-

Three D Graphics has introduced PERSPECTIVE, a graphics software package for personal computers that enables
users to generate complex 2- and 3 -dimensional graphs with just a few keystrokes. The program can automatically
translate data -files from word processors, Lotus 1 -2 -3, MULTIPLAN, and
other spreadsheet systems into high -resolution 2D and 3D graphs. In addition
to its 2- dimensional capabilities, PERSPECTIVE offers 512 preset 313-graph
presentations that can be further customized by th e user. The perceived
viewing angle of any of the graphs can
easily be changed, allowing the user to
"fly around" the graph while controlling rotation and movement along any
axis. The program also offers the ability
to pan, zoom, stretch, shrink, or change
the perspective of the graph as desired.
A selection of up to 180 different shades
and patt erns for graph s urfaces and
backgrounds is available. PERSPECTIVE runs on IBM PC, PC/XT, PC/
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Executive Data Systems, Inc. (EDSI)
has announced a free software offer for
registered users of its client write -up
pro gram, LEDGERMASTER, who
wish to expand their management services activities. EDSI is providing a free
General Ledger (software for businesses
that want to produce their own financial statements) to both current registered users and any acco unting firm
that purchases LEDGERMASTER before the end of the year. Both LED GERMASTER and General Ledger are
compatible with EDSI's other accounting software, including LEDGERMASTER/Transaction Entry (a module allowing clients of accounting firms to
enter their own transactions), and Accounts Payable (a fully - featured package that prints checks). The software is
available for most PC- DOS/MS -DOS
computers. For more information, call
the company in Atlanta, Ga., at (800)
272 -3374, or (404) 955 -3374.
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Three D Graphics' PERSPECTIVE.

AT or is compatible with IBM EGA or
Hercules Monochrome Graphics board;
AT &T 6300 or 6300 +; Hewlett Packard Vect ra; C ord at a AT, ATP, PC 4000, PPC -400; NE C AP C III. Requ iremen ts are DOS versi on 2 .0 o r
higher and minimum 512K bytes memory. For more information, call Celia
Cushing - Brawley, toll free, in Pacific
Palisades, Calif., at 1 -800- 233 -0736;
outside Calif., call 1- 800 -521 -8877.

.

neously, or where multiple terminal emulations need to be seen on the screen at
the same time. The display system addresses a variety of large- screen applications, in particular desktop publishing
where seeing an entire page of printing
is often critical. The RT -6155 is a plug to -plug replacement for the 15" IBM
6155 extended monochrome graphics
display and will plug directly into the
IBM 4768 display adapter, also known
as the IBM APA 16 display adapter.
There are no software co mpatibility
problems; all software written for the
4768 display adapter will simply be
more legible on the 19" screen. For
more information, call the company in
Minnetonka, Minn., at (612) 935 -4151;
Telex: 753626; Fax: (612) 933 -5701.

&

ing columns of data and wide paper.
The nine -pin EX -1000 prints both text
and graphics bi- directionally (first line,
left to right; second line, right to left;
third line, left to right, etc.) and has a
print head speed of 3000 CPS in efite
draft mode and 60 CPS in elite near -letter- quality mode. A type face selection
panel allows the user to select draft,
pica, elite, normal, NLQ roman, NLQ
sans serif, proportional or condensed typestyles. Indicator lights on the panel illuminate current selections. Other featu res o f t h e EX -1000 in cl u d e, a
four -color ribbon cartridge which produces text and graphics in seven colors— black, red, blue, violet, yellow, orange, and green, and an 8K bu ffer
enabling users to load and print up to
four pages of information while continuing to work on their computers. The
printer's paper- handling features allow
for trouble -free printing of multi -page
documents and switching between different sized paper. The EX -1000 connects to most popular computers via
built -in serial and parallel interfaces,
and comes with a one -year limited warranty. For further information, call the
company in Torrence, Calif., at (213)
539 -9140; outside California, call the
company's consumer hotline (800) 4215426.

......................
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Classified
COMPUTER
SOFTWARE
DEPRECIATION /FIXED ASSET CONTROL. IBM- PC /XT /AT and Compatibles. Federal, State and Book detail by
month. SL, DB, DDB and ACRS methods. Detailed records, full screen editing,
custom reports, sorting, splitting & merging, variable FYE and more. $50.00. Visa/
MC accepted. Money Back Guarantee.
Softlink, 10 Avon Road, Binghamton,
N.Y. 13905. (607) 722 -4652.

BUSINESS
OPPORTUNITY
UNIQUE TAX PRACTICE, Harrisb urg,
Pa. area CPA retiring. Price 1X approximate gross — $90,000. Most equipment included. Box 400.

BUSINESS
FORMS
Mail a set of your business forms to receive
our quote. Thank you. A &B Printing Co.,
313 West Battle, Talladega, Ala. 35160.

WANTED
CONFIDENTIAL: We work with professional recruiters nationwide to provide you
with new career opportunities. Your identity is protected until a match is found. No
cost to you. Accounting /Finance positions. Mail your resume indicating salary

to be responsible for government financial
reporting including the planning and
scheduling of funds. Must have familiarity
with completing CPR's (Cost Performance
Report) and CFSR's (Contract Funds Status Report) plus generating /preparing internal company reports. Will report to
Manager of Program Control and supervise small staff. To quality, persons should
have a B.S. in Finance or Accounting, at
least 5 years comparable experience in industry or government, and some supervisory /leadership background. Position pays
in upper $30K's to mid $40K's (commensurate with experience) plus a comprehensive benefit package. Chicago area location. For immediate consideration, call or
send resume to: Steve Collisher, 400 W.
Rand Road, #207A, Arlington Heights,
III. 60004. Phone (312) 870 -0949.

level and desired location along with a self addressed stamped envelope to: Confidential Resume Referrals, P.O. Box 21211,
Little Rock, Ark. 72212.

HELP
WANTED
ACCOUNTANT NEEDED to provide
accounting services to small businesses in
Camden County New Jersey. Responsibilities include write -up, tax returns, analysis
of results, consulting, and customer development. This is a ground floor opportunity. CMA required. Write CMA, P.O. Box
1753, Philadelphia, Pa. 19105.
ASSISTANT CONTROLLER —Fast
growing midtown publisher seeks dynamic
"shirt sleeves" individual with 3/5 years
supervising experience to assist controller.
You will prepare monthly financial and
statistical reports, do forecasting, analytical review, and oversee accounting functions. Should have strong computer & PC
background plus good inter personal and
communication skills. Accounting degree,
CPA and public experience a must; some
private experience, a plus. Excellent benefits including profit- sharing and opportunities for rapid advancement. Resume must
contain history and current requirements.
Please send handwritten letter and resume
to Box 401.

FREIGHT
CHARGES
IS YOUR FIRM MAXI MIZING ITS
FREIGHT BUDGET? Allow our team of
freight distribution analysts to examine
your shipping documents. We provide a
complete package of pre- audit, post audit,
freight brokerage, and freight bill payment.
REMINDER: freight overcharges are recoverable for three years after services. For
information contact MDCA Traffic Group
(314) 487 -5221.

Reputable government contractor has a
challenging opportunity for an individual

T.J. HAYES ASSOCIATES, INC.
P RO F ES SIO NAL CA REE R CENTER
P.O. Box 2725 Fall River, MA 02722 617- 679 -0202

September 13, 1986
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING

10 Paragon Drive
Montvale, NJ 07645 -1760
ATTN: DORYNE GERSTEIN

Dear Doryne:
Our firm recently placed an advertisement in the newly created classified section of MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING in
the September, 1986 issue. I am writing to inform you that we are very pleased with the response we have received.
We were able to reach the audience we were seeking, and the cost was minimal in comparison to the rewards. We
will certainly be advertising again in your magazine.
Sincerely yours,
Donna J. Ozug
15 word
minimum. Abbreviations. ZIP
codes, and phone numbers count
as o ne word each. All classified
advertising must be prepaid.
Non- commissionable.

Copy: All advertising must be submitted in type written, double spaced form. No telephone orders
accepted.

Closing Date: Deadline for copy is

Display
Classified: One - twelfth
page (one column x 2% ") is available at $395.

Rates: $2.00 per word,

the first day of the month preceding publication date.
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Box
Dept.

Number:

Inquire Classified

Payment: Payment in U.S. funds

must accompany each order. Mail
copy to Doryne Gerstein, MANAGE.
MENT ACCOUNTING, 10 Paragon
Drive, Montvale, NJ 07645 -1760.
Publisher reserves
the right to accept or reject advertisements for MANAGEMENT A o
COUNTING Classified.

Acceptance:

Up to 50 words FREE ' to companies that are looking for employees
who hold CMA certificates and so
specify in advertisement.
'Up to s.r mseaions
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You can carry a gold card MasterCard'" or Premier Visa'"
card�—�plus�an�extra�-high�line�of�credit�—�from�Beneficial
National Bank USA, for half the annual fee charged for
comparable cards.
As a member of NAA you're entitled to a reduced annual
fee of $25.00 for a card that gives you full service features.
Cash advance privileges at 140,000 participating banks,
free personalized Money Management Checks, plus a
nationwide network of MasterTeller" automatic teller
machines.
Preferred�rate�—�4 % above prime or 17 .52 %, whichever
is higher.
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Account Application for NAA Members

®

Please provide all Information requested. Incomplete applications must be returned
(Flratl

(Middle)

Free Air /Travel Accident Insurance�—�$250,000 with
your gold MasterCard or Premier Visa Card.
When your income is $40,000 or more, you should have
this�extra�high�line�of�credit�—�at�a�reduced�price�for�NAA
members.�Send�us�your�application�today�—�and�enjoy�the
line of credit that 's far easier to use , and costs you far less
to carry.
- - - - - - - - - - OTHER CREDIT REFERENCES

Yes, as a Member of the National Association of Accountants,
I want to receive a: (select only one, please)
Beneficial gold MasterCard account Including a credit line of up
to $15,000
Beneficial P remier V isa acco unt Including a credit line o f up
to $15,000

Full Name:

An se�pecially�high�line�of�credit�—�$5,000�up�to�$15,000,
depending on your individual desires and qualifications.
No�interest�charge�on�purchases�—�when�you�pay�your
balance in full each month.

It you currently have any of the following accounts, please indicate how many
of them you presently hold in the space provided:
Sears _ J . C . P e n n e y

_ W ard s

Amex

_ Other

_ Auto Loan

_ M as t e r C ar d

Bank name — Checking

$ Balance

Bank name — Savings

$ Balance

VISA

(Lest)
Estimated T otal Debt (excluding home mortgage)

Social Security No.

Binh Date

Address (F.D. Box not acceptable)

-

Rent

Own Home
Previo us Add ress (If at new a ddres s less than 3 yrs )

Home Phone

'

Monthly mortgage/rent payments

.

Empl oye rs Name

Number of dependents

Y e a r s Th e r e

I'm Interested in credit life Insurance. Send details.

FOR CO-APPLICANT ( if any)

Addresti

MAIL TO:

Beneficial National Bank USA, P.O. Box 1010, Wilmington, DE 19899

Your Full Signature

Today's Date

Co- Applicant's Full Signature

Today's Date

Bus in es s Pho ne

Yearly Income (Self - employed must Include most recent 1040 Tax F orm)

Co- Applicant's F ull Name:

1 agree to be bound by the Beneficial National Bank USA Cardholder Agreement
and Disclosure Statement that will be mailed to me along with my gold
MasterCard or Premier Visa card. I understand that If my total household Income
Is less than $40,000 1 will be Issued a regular MasterCard or Visa card. This
application Is not for a company account.
K- 6706 -11- 0000.1

(F use

IMid dlel

Member FDIC
Circle number 10 on reply card.

(Lesq

For additional information call:

(II different than applicants)

1- 800 - 854 -7100, ext. 255

Social Seeurtry No.

Birth pate

Employe rs Name

Business Phone

Years There
Yearly Income ISelf- employed must Include moat recent 1040 Tax

nfM
-V Beneficial°
National Bank USA
To cover the administrative costs of arranging a national program, the Association receives a small Ise.
This offer should not be construed as an endorsement by the Association of the lender or any other
products or services included in the Group Discount Program.
The Annual Percentage Rate for purchases and cash advances is variable, and will be the higher of 17.62%
or 4% above the "Prime Rate'. T here is a minimum finance charge of $.50 in any billing period In which a
finance charge is due. Of course, no interest will be charged for purchases which first appear on your
most current billing statement if payment In full of the new balance is received by the payment due date.

"7n our suit -happy societti; checking references for the
real meaning is as difficultan art as writing them. No
serr ice booklet could be more valuable than this. "
Malcolm S. Forbes, Chairman, Forbes Magazine
'Any businessperson who doesn't read this booklet
carefully is missing a wealthofpractical information. "
Martin Edelston, Publisher, Boardroom Reports

A 1986 Robert Half In
All offices independei

'A savvy, clear - headed look at the tough businessofgetting a job candidate's old employer to open up to you."
Ed Foley, Editor, Executive Productivity
"Never hire another manager without following Robert
Half's advice. Business would be better run ifexecutives
took the time to do what this booklet suggests. "
Alfred M. King, National Assn. ofAccountants

